
 

Democratic Services democratic.services@brighton-hove.gov.uk 

 
 
 

Title: Environment Cabinet Member Meeting 

Date: 26 May 2011 

Time: 10.30am 

Venue Council Chamber, Hove Town Hall 

Members: Councillor: 
Subject to confirmation following Annual Council 
on 19 May 2011 

Contact: Tanya Davies 
Acting Democratic Services Manager 
01273 291227 
tanya.davies@brighton-hove.gov.uk 

 
The Town Hall has facilities for wheelchair users, 
including lifts and toilets 

 

T  

An Induction loop operates to enhance sound for 
anyone wearing a hearing aid or using a transmitter 
and infra red hearing aids are available for use 
during the meeting.  If you require any further 
information or assistance, please contact the 
receptionist on arrival. 

  

 FIRE / EMERGENCY EVACUATION PROCEDURE 
 

If the fire alarm sounds continuously, or if you are 
instructed to do so, you must leave the building by 
the nearest available exit.  You will be directed to 
the nearest exit by council staff.  It is vital that you 
follow their instructions: 
 

• You should proceed calmly; do not run and do 
not use the lifts; 

• Do not stop to collect personal belongings; 

• Once you are outside, please do not wait 
immediately next to the building, but move 
some distance away and await further 
instructions; and 

• Do not re-enter the building until told that it is 
safe to do so. 

 



 

 
 

Democratic Services: Meeting Layout 
 

 
Speaker 

Democratic 
Services 
Officer 

Cabinet 
Member 

Lawyer 

Opposition 
Spokes- 
person 

(Conservative) 

Public Seating 

Press 

Opposition 
Spokes- 
person 
(Labour) 

Lead 
Officer 



ENVIRONMENT CABINET MEMBER MEETING 

 
 

AGENDA 
 

Part One Page 
 

1. PROCEDURAL BUSINESS  

 (a) Declarations of Interest by all Members present of any personal 
interests in matters on the agenda, the nature of any interest and 
whether the Members regard the interest as prejudicial under the 
terms of the Code of Conduct.  

 
(b) Exclusion of Press and Public - To consider whether, in view of the 

nature of the business to be transacted, or the nature of the 
proceedings, the press and public should be excluded from the 
meeting when any of the following items are under consideration. 

 
NOTE:  Any item appearing in Part 2 of the Agenda states in its 
heading either that it is confidential or the category under which the 
information disclosed in the report is exempt from disclosure and 
therefore not available to the public. 

 
A list and description of the categories of exempt information is 
available for public inspection at Brighton and Hove Town Halls. 

 

 

2. MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING 1 - 8 

 Minutes of the meeting held on 31 March 2011 (copy attached).  
 

3. CABINET MEMBER'S COMMUNICATIONS  

 

4. ITEMS RESERVED FOR DISCUSSION  

 (a) Items reserved by the Cabinet Member 

(b) Items reserved by the Opposition Spokespersons 

(c) Items reserved by Members, with the agreement of the Cabinet 
Member. 

NOTE: Public Questions, Written Questions from Councillors, Petitions, 
Deputations, Letters from Councillors and Notices of Motion will be 
reserved automatically. 

 

 

5. PETITIONS 9 - 12 

 Report of the Strategic Director, Resources (copy attached).  

 Contact Officer: Tanya Davies Tel: 29-1227  
 Ward Affected: All Wards   
 
 
 
 



ENVIRONMENT CABINET MEMBER MEETING 

 
 

6. PETITIONS DEBATED AT COUNCIL 13 - 24 

 (a) Save the Drive Cycle Lanes, Hove. 
 

(i) Draft extract from the proceedings of Council on 24 March 2011 
(copy attached). 

 

(ii) Report of the Monitoring Officer (copy attached). 
 

(b) Royal Sussex County Hospital parking. 
 

(i) Draft extract from the proceedings of Council on 24 March 2011 
(copy attached). 

 

(ii) Report of the Monitoring Officer (copy attached). 

 

 

7. PUBLIC QUESTIONS  

 (The closing date for receipt of public questions is 12 noon on 19 May 
2011) 
 
No public questions received by date of publication. 

 

 

8. DEPUTATIONS  

 (The closing date for receipt of deputations is 12 noon on 19 May 2011) 
 
No deputations received by date of publication. 

 

 

9. LETTERS FROM COUNCILLORS  

 No letters have been received.  
 

10. WRITTEN QUESTIONS FROM COUNCILLORS  

 No written questions have been received.  
 

11. NOTICES OF MOTION  

 No Notices of Motion have been received.  
 

12. SHOREHAM HARBOUR: INTERIM PLANNING GUIDANCE (IPG) 
UPDATE 

25 - 56 

 Report of the Strategic Director, Place (copy attached).  

 Contact Officer: Mike Holford Tel: 29-2501  
 Ward Affected: Hangleton & Knoll;  

South Portslade; Wish 
  

 

13. ROTTINGDEAN CHARACTER STATEMENT 57 - 100 

 Report of the Strategic Director, Place (copy attached).  

 Contact Officer: Sanne Roberts Tel: 29-2261  
 Ward Affected: Rottingdean Coastal   



ENVIRONMENT CABINET MEMBER MEETING 

 
 

 

14. LOCAL DEVELOPMENT FRAMEWORK CORE STRATEGY - 
UPDATED BACKGROUND STUDIES 

101 - 106 

 Report of the Strategic Director, Place (copy attached).  

 Contact Officer: Liz Hobden Tel: 29-2504  
 Ward Affected: All Wards   
 

15. CEDARS GARDENS HIGHWAY IMPROVEMENT SCHEME 107 - 112 

 Report of the Strategic Director, Place (copy attached).  

 Contact Officer: Robin Reed Tel: 29-3856  
 Ward Affected: Withdean   
 

16. SUPPORTED BUS SERVICES: AREA NETWORK REVIEW 
CONSULTATION 

113 - 118 

 Report of the Strategic Director, Place (copy attached).  

 Contact Officer: Paul Crowther Tel: 29 - 2479  
 Ward Affected: All Wards   
 

17. PEDESTRIAN CROSSING ASSESSMENT METHODOLOGY 119 - 126 

 Report of the Strategic Director, Place (copy attached).  

 Contact Officer: Robin Reed Tel: 29-3856  
 Ward Affected: All Wards   
 

 

The City Council actively welcomes members of the public and the press to attend its 
meetings and holds as many of its meetings as possible in public.  Provision is also made 
on the agendas for public questions to committees and details of how questions can be 
raised can be found on the website and/or on agendas for the meetings. 
 
The closing date for receipt of public questions and deputations for the next meeting is 12 
noon on the fifth working day before the meeting. 
 
Agendas and minutes are published on the council’s website www.brighton-hove.gov.uk.  
Agendas are available to view five working days prior to the meeting date. 
 
Meeting papers can be provided, on request, in large print, in Braille, on audio tape or on 
disc, or translated into any other language as requested. 
 
For further details and general enquiries about this meeting contact Tanya Davies, (01273 
291227, email tanya.davies@brighton-hove.gov.uk) or email 
democratic.services@brighton-hove.gov.uk  
 

 

Date of Publication - Wednesday, 18 May 2011 

 

 





ENVIRONMENT CABINET 
MEMBER MEETING 

Agenda Item 2 
 
Brighton & Hove City Council 

 

BRIGHTON & HOVE CITY COUNCIL 
 

ENVIRONMENT CABINET MEMBER MEETING 
 

4.00PM 31 MARCH 2011 
 

COUNCIL CHAMBER, HOVE TOWN HALL 
 

MINUTES 
 

Present: Councillor G Theobald (Cabinet Member) 
 
Other Members present: Councillors Allen, Bennett and Young 
 

 
 

PART ONE 
 
 

114. PROCEDURAL BUSINESS 
 
114(a) Declarations of Interests 

114a.1 There were none.  

114(b) Exclusion of Press and Public 

114b.1 In accordance with section 100A of the Local Government Act 1972 (“the Act”), the 
Cabinet Member considered whether the press and public should be excluded from 
the meeting during an item of business on the grounds that it was likely, in view of the 
business to be transacted or the nature of the proceedings, that if members of the 
press and public were present during that item, there would be disclosure to them of 
confidential information (as defined in section 100A(3) of the Act) or exempt 
information (as defined in section 100I(I) of the Act).  

114b.2 RESOLVED - That the press and public be not excluded from the meeting. 

 
115. MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING 
 
115.1 RESOLVED - That the minutes of the meeting held on 10 March 2011 be approved as 

a correct record, subject to the following amendments: 
 

(i) the insertion of the word ‘Member’ after ‘Cabinet’ at paragraph 105.2. 
(ii) the replacment of the word ‘were’ with ‘was’ at paragraph 106.1. 

 
 
 

1



 ENVIRONMENT CABINET MEMBER MEETING 31 MARCH 2011

116. CABINET MEMBER'S COMMUNICATIONS 
 
116.1 The Cabinet Member reported that The Lanes Car Park had won the award for ‘Best 

Refurbishment’ at the British Parking Awards and that the Cityclean call centre had 
won the award for ‘Customer Communication Strategy of the Year’ at the Institute of 
Customer Services Awards. He welcomed the national recognition and paid tribute to 
the officers whose hard work had resulted in the awards. 

 
117. ITEMS RESERVED FOR DISCUSSION 
 
117.1 RESOLVED – That all items be reserved for discussion. 
 
118. PETITIONS 
 
118(i) Consult on Queen's Park bowling green 
 
118.1 Councillor Duncan presented an epetition and accompanying paper petition signed by 

a total of 113 people calling for the council to carry out a consultation on the future use 
of the Queen’s Park Bowling Green among all park users. 

 
118.2 Councillor Duncan was unable to attend the meeting. 
 
118.3 RESOLVED – That the petition be noted and a written response be provided. 
 
118(ii) Parking Problems - Bakers Bottom 
 
118.4 Mr Chris Cooke presented an epetition and accompanying paper petition signed by a 

total of 103 people calling for the council to consider the introduction of double yellow 
lines at the junctions of Rochester/Livingstone St, Bute/Livingstone St and 
Hendon/Livingstone St in the area commonly known as "Bakers Bottom", to alleviate 
the problem of cars causing an obstruction in the area. 

 
118.5 The Cabinet Member confirmed that he would instruct officers to investigate current 

parking demands in the area. 
 
118.6 RESOLVED – That the petition be noted. 
 
118(iii) Hove Station Foot Bridge 
 
118.7 Mr Adam Love had submitted an epetition signed by of 29 people concerning the 

maintenance and improvement of Hove Station Foot Bridge. 
 
118.8 Mr Love was unable to attend the meeting. 
 
118.9 RESOLVED – That the petition be noted and a written response be provided. 
 
 
 
 
 

2



 ENVIRONMENT CABINET MEMBER MEETING 31 MARCH 2011

118(iv) Save Our Buses 
 
118.10 Mr Tom French presented an epetition and accompanying paper petition signed by a 

total of 556 people calling for the council to protect subsidised bus routes from cuts, 
including the no. 21, 21B, 81, 81A and 22. 

 
118.11 The Cabinet Member advised that, unlike other authorities, around the country, the 

Administration had fought hard to protect its bus services in difficult economic times to 
ensure our residents still had access to jobs, local amenities and the city centre. 

 
118.12 RESOLVED – That the petition be noted. 
 
118(v) Make Hollingdean Dip Safe 
 
118.13 Ms Christina Summers presented an epetition and accompanying paper petition 

signed by a total of 835 people calling for the council to make the Hollingdean Dip 
safer to cross by reviewing the traffic calming measures in the area and taking steps to 
improve road safety. 

 
118.14 The Cabinet Member advised that the council had already taken positive steps to 

improve road safety at “The Dip”.  The road had undergone a number of improvements 
that included adjusting the road layout with dropped kerb crossing points that 
incorporated tactile paving for blind or partially sighted pedestrians and chicanes that 
forced vehicles to give way and slow down. Illuminated traffic calming signs had also 
been provided. Road safety data for the last 3 years showed that the measures had 
been effective as the number of collisions had fallen significantly compared with the 
original road layout.   

 
The Cabinet Member explained that, while the council did not consider Hollingdean 
Dip to have a specific safety issue, it was sensitive to the concerns and perceptions of 
residents and so had developed a new methodology for assessing the requirements 
for pedestrian crossings that would not only take accidents into account, but also 
include pedestrian and vehicle counts, triggered by specific requests from residents. 
He stated that he would ask officers to look into the request with the new methodology 
in mind. 

 
118.15 RESOLVED – That the petition be noted. 
 
118(vi) George Street, Hove – change to opening hours 
 
118.16 Councillor Young presented an paper petition signed by 56 traders and residents of 

George Street, Hove calling for a change to the street opening hours to 4pm daily 
effective from 1 April 2011 and continuing thereon.  

 
118.17 The Cabinet Member advised that he would instruct officers to investigate the 

proposal, but as it would require a consultation and a Traffic Order and some re-
negotiation with establishments who have tables and chairs outside on the 
carriageway, it could not be implemented from 1 April 2011. 

 
118.18 RESOLVED – That the petition be noted. 

3



 ENVIRONMENT CABINET MEMBER MEETING 31 MARCH 2011

119. PUBLIC QUESTIONS 
 
119.1 The Cabinet Member reported that one public question had been received. 
 
119.2 Mr Steve Hare asked the following question: 
 

“The Pedestrian Crossing Assessment Methodology document talks of the need to 
include "public perception of dangerous roads, and the impact of crossings on 
community cohesion ", yet this isn’t scored in the assessment, nor are near misses, 
predictable risk increasing dynamic situations (cars overtaking buses at build-outs 
every ten minutes), factoring for number of children under 10 in the PV2 count (the 
highest percentage group within pedestrian fatalities) or adherence to speed limits. 
How will BHCC ensure that residents' daily experience of the dangerousness of the 
Hollingdean Dip (Hollingbury Place) is incorporated into the road safety assessment 
process?” 

 
119.3 The Cabinet Member gave the following response: 
 

“Thank you for your question. 
 
The assessment methodology has been developed to ensure that all requests for 
pedestrian crossings in any road of the city can be consistently and robustly assessed, 
so those that can deliver the greatest benefit are prioritised for implementation. It will 
enable us to fairly and robustly consider the relative need for a crossing facility at the 
Hollingdean Dip compared to other potential locations across the city.  If the result of 
the assessment suggests that the Hollingdean Dip should be considered a priority 
location then designs will be prepared, consultation carried out and a crossing facility 
implemented as soon as possible, subject to the availability of funding.   
 
A report will be brought to the next Environment Cabinet Member Meeting on 26th 
May where consideration will be given to adopting this new methodology. 
 
As you have obviously taken the time to consider the new methodology in some detail, 
I will ask officers to respond to you separately regarding the specific points you have 
raised in relation to the public perception of dangerous roads and near miss incidents, 
amongst other things.” 

 
119.4 Mr Hare asked the following supplementary question: 
 

“Even if BHCC decides to ignore the community’s experience and anecdotal evidence 
of near-misses in its assessment methodology in relation to the Hollingdean Dip, Local 
transport note 1/95 section 3.5.2. states that  “if accidents are below average – may 
not be reasonable to predict a benefit in accident terms, although there may be other 
advantages if a crossing is installed”. What consideration does BHCC intend to give 
the fact that by installing a Zebra crossing and taking measures such as burning out 
central white lines on roads, planting trees to reduce line of sight or reducing speed-
limits to 20 mph this will improve the quality of life for local residents, traders and 
visitors, reduce levels of anxiety when walking in the area, and strengthen the local 
sense of community?” 

 

4



 ENVIRONMENT CABINET MEMBER MEETING 31 MARCH 2011

119.5 The Cabinet Member gave the following response: 
 

“I will ask officers to respond to you on each of the specific points raised.” 
 
120. DEPUTATIONS 
 
120.1 There were none. 
 
121. LETTERS FROM COUNCILLORS 
 
121a.1 A letter had been received from Councillor Allen concerning parking in Springfield 

Road, Southdown Avenue, Rugby Road and Florence Road and the timetable for the 
proposed review of the Area J controlled parking zone. He asked for confirmation of 
when the impact assessment would take place and whether spare permits in Area J 
could be made available to the residents in the area who wished to purchased them, 
despite not living within that parking zone. 

 
121a.2 The Cabinet Member reported that a number of residents throughout the City had 

asked for their roads to be consulted for controlled parking as part of a parking 
scheme.  A citywide parking review was planned for later in the year and it would look 
at various aspects of controlled parking, including requests from residents and ward 
councillors to review existing parking schemes, therefore assessment on any one zone 
could not begin before the review had taken place and a timetable had been consulted 
upon and approved. 

 
 The Cabinet Member noted the request for residents in roads immediately to the north 

of the scheme to be able to apply to purchase Area J permits; currently the council did 
not allow households on the edge of a parking scheme to apply for permits for 
adjacent zones because of capacity issues.  However, this would also be investigated 
as part of the citywide parking review. 

 
121a.3 RESOLVED – That the letter be noted. 
 
121b.1 A letter had been received from Councillor Bennett calling for Kestrel Close to be 

included in the surrounding CPZ at the request of the residents who were experiencing 
serious problems trying to park in their road. 

 
121b.2 The Cabinet Member stated that residents asked to be excluded from the scheme 

during the original consultation. The citywide parking review later in the year would 
look at various aspects of controlled parking and include requests from residents and 
ward councillors to review or extend existing parking schemes.  

 
 The Cabinet Member advised that, in view of their previously expressed position, it 

would be helpful if residents could gather support for the proposal by submitting a 
petition to a future Environment Cabinet Member Meeting. 

 
121b.3 RESOLVED – That the letter be noted. 
 
121c.1 A letter had been received from Councillor Bennett calling for parking restrictions to be 

implemented in The Droveway to alleviate the problems experienced by residents. 

5



 ENVIRONMENT CABINET MEMBER MEETING 31 MARCH 2011

121c.2 The Cabinet Member confirmed that he would instruct officers to investigate current 
parking demands in the road and consider the way forward. 

 
121c.3 RESOLVED – That the letter be noted. 
 
122. WRITTEN QUESTIONS FROM COUNCILLORS 
 
122.1 There were none. 
 
123. NOTICES OF MOTIONS 
 
123.1 There were none. 
 
124. PLANNING BRIEF - PARK HOUSE SITE 
 
124.1 The Cabinet Member considered a report of the Strategic Director, Place concerning 

the consultation process undertaken in relation to the development of a planning brief 
for the Park House site and seeking approval of the planning brief. 

 
124.2 The Cabinet Member explained that the site had been the subject of two refused 

planning applications and two appeals. He was pleased that a Planning Brief had been 
prepared which sought to provide clarity on the planning requirements for the site. A 
Public Exhibition had been held in February generating 70 written responses. The 
Brief addressed all of the themes that emerged as key issues  from the public 
consultation and sought to balance the various planning issues relating to the site with 
the developer’s concerns. It would be used to provide up-to-date planning guidance to 
developers and would also be a material planning consideration in the determination of 
planning applications relating to the site. 

 
124.3 Councillor Bennett, ward councillor for Hove Park ward where the site was situated, 

advised that she and her ward colleague, Councillor Brown, were supportive of the 
outcome of the consultation. 

 
124.4 The Cabinet Member noted that Councillor Davis, ward councillor for neighbouring 

Goldsmid ward, had written to him to express her broad support for the Planning Brief. 
 
124.5 Ms Valerie Paynter from ‘saveHOVE’ stated that the resulting Planning Brief took full 

account of the comments made during the public consultation and was pleased that 
residents had been listened to. 

 
124.6 The Planning Projects Manager explained that the consultation results had been 

carefully incorporated into the Planning Brief. He recognised that, although the 
developer was not supportive of all elements of the Brief, the council was confident 
that it would enable them to move forward and that it would ultimately result in an 
appropriate scheme. 

 
124.7 RESOLVED - That having considered the information and the reasons set out in the 

report, the Cabinet Member accepted the following recommendations: 
 

6



 ENVIRONMENT CABINET MEMBER MEETING 31 MARCH 2011

(1) That the results of the public consultation exercise that have been taken into 
account in the preparation of the planning brief (see Appendix 2) be noted. 

 
(2) That the planning brief be approved in order to provide planning guidance to 

developers and assist the council in the assessment of future development 
proposals and planning applications concerning the site. 

 
125. TAX FREE BIKE SCHEME CONTRACT RENEWAL 
 
125.1 The Cabinet Member considered a report of the Strategic Director, Place concerning 

renewal of the contract for the council’s tax free bike scheme for staff. 
 
125.2 RESOLVED - That having considered the information and the reasons set out in the 

report, the Cabinet Member accepted the following recommendation: 
 

(1) That the Tax Free Bike Scheme contract be awarded to P&MM Limited 
commencing 1 April 2011 for a period of two years, with a potential extension of 
up to 24 months thereafter. 

 
125.3 The Cabinet Member stated that it was the final meeting of the Administration’s four 

year term and that local elections would take place in May. He wished to place on 
record his thanks to the officers who had provided administrative, legal and technical 
advice and support during that time, and also to the councillors and members of the 
public who had attended the meetings. 

 
 

The meeting concluded at 4.30pm 
 

Signed 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Cabinet Member 

Dated this day of  
 

7



8



ENVIRONMENT CABINET 
MEMBER MEETING 

Agenda Item 5 
 

Brighton & Hove City Council 
 

 

Subject: Petitions 

Date of Meeting: 26 May 2011 

Report of: Strategic Director, Resources 

Contact Officer: Name:  Tanya Davies Tel: 29-1227 

 E-mail: tanya.davies@brighton-hove.gov.uk 

Key Decision: No  

Wards Affected: Various  

 
FOR GENERAL RELEASE 
 

1. SUMMARY AND POLICY CONTEXT: 
 

1.1 To receive any petitions presented at Council, any petitions submitted directly 
to Democratic Services or any e-Petition submitted via the council’s website. 

 
2. RECOMMENDATIONS: 
 

2.2 That the Cabinet Member responds to each petition and in each case gives 
consideration to a range of options, including the following: 

 

§ taking the action requested in the petition 
§ considering the petition at a council meeting 
§ holding an inquiry into the matter 
§ undertaking research into the matter 
§ holding a public meeting 
§ holding a consultation 
§ holding a meeting with petitioners 
§ referring the petition for consideration by the council’s Overview and 

Scrutiny Committee* 
§ calling a referendum 
§ writing to the petition organiser setting out the council’s views about the 

request in the petition 
§ noting the petition 

 

3. PETITIONS 
 

5. (i) Historic Signage in Brunswick Town 
 
 To receive the following e-Petition submitted via the council’s website Mr 

Brian Stone and signed by 18 people: 
 

We the undersigned petition the council to introduce signs to denote the 
historic area of Brunswick Town. 

 

 

 

 

9



5. (ii) Pedestrian Crossing, Sackville Road, Hove 
 
 To receive the following petition presented at Council on 24 March 2011 by 

Councillor Oxley and signed by 100 people: 
 

We the undersigned request a pedestrian crossing or island to be put in 
place on Sackville Road, Hove, between Montgomery Street and 
Livingstone Road. This will enable pedestrians safe passage between 
the Poets Corner area and Hove Station. 
 

5. (iii) Traffic Calming around Bevendean Pub area 
 
 To receive the following petition presented at Council on 24 March 2011 by 

Councillor Caulfield and signed by 30 people: 
 

We, the undersigned, hereby petition Brighton and Hove City Council to 
implement traffic calming measures in the streets around the Bevendean 
Pub, there having been a serious hit-and-run accident on Saturday 
morning, and many, many near misses. There has been huge concern 
over a considerable amount of time about the lack of measures and 
residents often feel scared to even cross the roads. Considering the 
millions of pounds given to the East Brighton Trust we are disappointed 
that this has not resulted in helping our roads become safer, where 
children and animals are at particular risk. 
 

5. (iv) Double Yellow Lines, Findon Road 
 
 To receive the following petition presented at Council on 24 March 2011 by 

Councillor Morgan and signed by 11 people: 
 

We, the undersigned residents of Findon Road and surrounding area, 
call on Brighton & Hove City Council to install double yellow lines at the 
junction of Findon Road and Whitehawk Road. 
 
Since the implementation of the extension to the Area H controlled 
parking scheme, the parking congestion at this junction has become 
dangerous causing restricted vision for motorists resulting in several 
‘near-misses’ for drivers trying to exit Findon Road. 
 

5. (v) Puffin crossing outside Elm Grove Primary School 
 
 To receive the following petition presented at Council on 24 March 2011 by 

Councillor Randall and signed by 146 people: 
 

Following a road accident involving a child using the Pelican Crossing 
outside Elm Grove Primary School in Elm Grove on Thursday 3 
February, the undersigned believe Brighton and Hove City Council 
should install a safer Puffin Crossing outside the school to improve road 
safety for the pupils, their parents and all other residents who use the 
present crossing. 
 
 
 
 

10



5. (vi) Double yellow lines on the Western side of St Johns Road 
 
 To receive the following petition presented at Council on 24 March 2011 by 

Councillor Elgood and signed by 11 people: 
 

We request double yellow lines for a distance of 15 feet – 4.6 metres – 
from the inset parking spaces for ‘The Sands’ north to the property 
known as ‘Pebbles’. 
 
This is in order to prevent obstruction and allow reversing vehicular 
access to the Palmeira Square. 
 
We further request a revised attendant Road Traffic Order for ‘no 
parking at any time’. 
 

5. (vii) Cycle lane threat - stop Council waste 
 
 To receive the following e-Petition presented at Council on 24 March 2011 by 

Councillor Davis and signed by 169 people: 
 

We the undersigned petition the council to keep the cycle lane on Grand 
Avenue and The Drive. At a cost of £1.1m to remove the lane we believe 
this proposal is a waste of tax payers' money, and will severely reduce 
opportunities for safe cycling in Hove and Goldsmid ward. 
 

5. (viii) Getting rid of Cycle Lanes in The Drive 
 
 To receive the following e-Petition submitted via the council website by Mr 

Dervish Bayram and signed by 10 people: 
 

We the undersigned petition the council to get rid of the cycle lanes in 
The Drive and Grand Avenue. 
 
As a Brighton and Hove taxi driver, this scheme is not only dangerous 
but is an accident waiting to happen, as taxi drivers we cannot pick up 
and drop off elderly passengers because the layout of the road is very 
dangerous, I am surprised nobody has been killed yet, its just a question 
of time. 

11



12



ENVIRONMENT CABINET 
MEMBER MEETING 

Agenda Item 6(a)(i) 
 

Brighton & Hove City Council 
 

 
 

 
EXTRACT FROM THE DRAFT PROCEEDINGS OF THE COUNCIL 

MEETING HELD ON THE 24 MARCH 2011 
 

BRIGHTON & HOVE CITY COUNCIL 
 

4.30pm 24th MARCH 2011 
COUNCIL CHAMBER, HOVE TOWN HALL 

 
DRAFT MINUTES 

 
Present:  Councillors: Wells (Chairman), A. Norman (Deputy Chairman), Alford, Allen, 

Barnett, Bennett, Brown, Carden, Caulfield, Cobb, Davey, Davis, Deane, Drake, 
Duncan, Elgood, Fallon-Khan, Fryer, Hamilton, Harmer-Strange, Hawkes, Hyde, 
Janio, Kemble, Kennedy, Kitcat, Lepper, Marsh, McCaffery, Meadows, Mears, 
Mitchell, Morgan, K. Norman, Older, Oxley, Peltzer Dunn, Phillips, Pidgeon, 
Randall, Rufus, Simpson, Simson, Smith, Steedman, C. Theobald, G. Theobald, 
Turton, Wakefield-Jarrett, Watkins, West, Wrighton and Young. 

 
 
 

PART ONE 
 
 

84(C). SAVE THE DRIVE CYCLE LANES, HOVE 
 
84. Save the Drive Cycle Lanes, Hove 
 
84.39 The Mayor stated that under the Council’s petition scheme, if a petition contained 

1,250 or more signatures, it could be debated by the Full Council and such a request 
had been made in respect of an e-petition concerning the Drive cycle lanes in Hove. 

 
84.40 The Mayor invited Councillor Davey to present his petition. 
 
84.41 Councillor Davey thanked the Mayor and stated that a total of 3,543 people had 

signed the e-petition which read as follows: 
 

“We the undersigned, call on the Conservative administration running Brighton & Hove 
City Council to withdraw its proposals to improve vehicular access to the seafront and 
Shoreham Harbour by spending £1.1m removing the cycle lanes on The Drive and 
grand Avenue in Hove. 

 
The increased traffic levels, particularly the likely greater use by heavy goods vehicles, 
will increase the risk to other road users particularly pedestrians and cyclists. 

 
These cycle lanes were installed by the same Conservative administration in 2008 at a 
cost of over £600,000.  To spend nearly twice as much removing them now would be 
an irresponsible waste of public money.  This money would be much better spent 
constructively elsewhere. 

13



L 

 
 

COUNCIL 24 MARCH 2011 

 
Please stop this before it’s too late.” 

 
84.42 Councillor Davey stated that he hoped that having secured the cycle lane at the 

previous Budget Council meeting in light of the significant level of support for it, that it 
would now remain in situ and any necessary improvements made. 

 
84.43 Councillor Theobald noted the petition and stated that very good reasons for the 

proposed removal of the lane had been outlined as part of the budget process.  With 
regard to the saving achieved by retaining the cycle lane, he noted that the funding 
had been allocated to other areas and therefore he could not confirm whether 
resources were available for other safety measures to be put in place.  

 
84.44 Councillor Davis stated that she supported the petition and noted that the cycle lane 

had been installed under the supervision of the National Cycling Group.  She also 
stated that she wished to move a Labour Group amendment to the report’s 
recommendation, to ensure that cycling was supported by the council. 

 
84.45 Councillor Mitchell formally seconded the amendment. 
 
84.46 Councillor Davey moved an amendment on behalf of the Green Group to the report’s 

recommendation and stated that there was a need to improve cycling facilities and to 
address any safety issues. 

 
84.47 Councillor Phillips formally seconded the amendment. 
 
84.48 Councillor Mears stated that concerns had been raised over the safety of the lane and 

these had been highlighted in Safety Audit reports.  She noted that both the 
amendments referred to the issue of safety, which had been the primary concern for 
the Administration’s proposal to remove the lane in the first instance. 

 
84.49 Councillor Young stated that she had asked the local MP to look into the safety issue 

and noted that taxi drivers had also expressed concerns over safety and the ability to 
come out of properties along Grand Avenue. 

 
84.50  Councillor Elgood stated that he had contacted Norman Baker MP as the 

Parliamentary Secretary to the Transport Secretary, who he had confirmed that had 
the council attempted to remove the cycle lane, the government would have taken 
legal advice on whether the previous funding towards the cost of installation could be 
reclaimed.  He was happy to provide copies of the reply and stated that he believed 
the proposal to remove the lane had been irresponsible and that the aim should be to 
make it work and encourage cycling not deter it. 

 
84.51 Councillor West stated that there was a need for the cycle lane and the amendment at 

the budget council meeting had prevented a waste of public money. 
 
84.52 Councillor Kemble stated that as a taxi driver he had experienced the difficulty in 

getting out of drives along Grand Avenue and suggested that other Members should 
try it for themselves to see the danger that existed. 

 

14



L 

 
 

COUNCIL 24 MARCH 2011 

84.53 Councillor Hamilton stated that the previous funding of £1.1m saved by not removing 
the cycle lane had been taken from the Revenue Budget and not the Capital Budget 
and therefore suggested that resources were available for improvement works. 

 
84.54 Councillor Theobald noted the comments and stated that he believed the overall 

budget of £4.3m had been reduced by £1.1m and that had then be set aside to fund 
other services.  With regard to the previous funding contributed by a Quango which 
had now been dissolved, he questioned whether there was an avenue by which that 
funding could be reclaimed.  He had received a number of emails on the issue all 
asking for the cycle lane to be removed and he questioned just how many of the 3,000 
plus petitioners actually use the cycle lane. 

 
84.55 The Mayor noted that two amendments had been moved along with the 

recommendation to refer the petition to the Environment Cabinet Member Meeting and 
stated that he would put each one to the vote. 

 
84.56 The Mayor then put the Labour Group’s amendment followed by the Green Group’s 

amendment to the vote, each of which was carried. 
 
84.57 The Mayor then put the substantive recommendations as amended to the vote which 

were carried. 
 
84.58 RESOLVED:  
 

(1) That the petition is referred to the Environment Cabinet Member Meeting for 
consideration; 

 

(2) That the Cabinet Member is requested to seek to ensure that the council actively 
promotes cycling as a sustainable form of travel and continues to invest in safe 
cycling facilities across the city; 

 
(3) That the Cabinet Member is requested to: 

 

• thank the public for their strong expression of interest and tremendous level of 
support for retaining and improving the cycle lanes; 

 

• acknowledge that there is clear public support for the retention of these lanes; 
 

• place all safety audits that have been undertaken on The Drive into the public 
domain; and 

 
(4) That the Cabinet Member is requested to: 
 

• instruct officers to identify immediate measures that can be taken to address 
safety concerns; and 

 

• instruct officers to identify measures both in the immediate and longer term 
which may increase usage such as completing links to the north of the city 
and developing routes to the east and west. 

 

15



16



 

Item 6(a)(ii) on the Environment Cabinet Member Meeting Agenda 

Council 
 

 

24 March 2011 

Agenda Item 84(c) 
 
 

Brighton & Hove City Council 
 

 

 
 

Subject: Save the Drive Cycle Lanes, Hove 

Date of Meeting: 24 March 2011 

Report of: Monitoring Officer 

Contact Officer: Name:  Mark Wall Tel: 29-1006 

 E-mail: mark.wall@brighton-hove.gov.uk 

Wards Affected: All  

 
For general release 
 
Note:  The subject matter of the petition is an executive function and therefore not 

one that Full Council can make a decision on. 
 
PETITION TRIGGERING A FULL COUNCIL DEBATE 
 
1. SUMMARY AND POLICY CONTEXT: 
 

1.1 Under the Council’s Petition Scheme if a petition contains more than 1,250 
signatures and is not a petition requesting officer evidence, it will be debated by 
the Full Council. 

 
1.2 A combined paper and e-petition has resulted in triggering a debate at the 

council meeting, having exceeded the threshold with a total of 3,543 signatures. 
 
2. RECOMMENDATIONS: 
 

2.1 That the petition is referred to the Environment Cabinet Member Meeting for 
consideration. 

 
3.  RELEVANT BACKGROUND INFORMATION / CHRONOLOGY OF KEY EVENTS: 
  

3.1 The Petition 
 

“We the undersigned, call on the Conservative administration running Brighton 
& Hove City Council to withdraw its proposals to improve vehicular access to 
the seafront and Shoreham Harbour by spending £1.1m removing the cycle 
lanes on The Drive and grand Avenue in Hove. 
 
The increased traffic levels, particularly the likely greater use by heavy goods 
vehicles, will increase the risk to other road users particularly pedestrians and 
cyclists. 
 
These cycle lanes were installed by the same Conservative administration in 
2008 at a cost of over £600,000.  To spend nearly twice as much removing 

17



 

  

them now would be an irresponsible waste of public money.  This money would 
be much better spent constructively elsewhere. 
 
Please stop this before it’s too late.” 

 
 Lead Petitioner – Councillor Ian Davey 
 
3.2 As the subject matter of the petition relates to an executive function, the options open 

to the council are: 
 

• To note the petition and take no action for reasons put forward in the debate; 
or  

 

• To refer the petition to the relevant Cabinet Member Meeting; or  
 

• To refer the petition to the relevant Cabinet Member Meeting with 
recommendations. 

 
4.  PROCEDURE: 
 
4.1 The petition will be debated at the Council meeting in accordance with the agreed 

protocol: 
  

(i) The Lead petitioner will be invited by the Mayor to present the petition and will 
have up to 3 minutes in which to outline the prayer of the petition and confirm 
the number of signatures; 

 
(ii) The Mayor will then call on the relevant Cabinet Member to respond to the 

petition and move a proposed response; 
 

(iii) The Mayor will then open the matter up for debate by councillors and call on 
those councillors who have indicated a desire to move an amendment or 
additional recommendation(s) to the recommendation listed in paragraph 2.1 of 
the report; 

 
(iv) Any councillor may move an amendment or recommendation, having regard to 

the recommendation in 2.1 above and any such proposal will need to be 
formally seconded; 

 
(v) After a period of 15 minutes, the Mayor will then call an end to the debate and 

ask the relevant Cabinet Member to reply to the points raised; 
 

(vi) The Mayor will then formally put:  
 
(a) Any amendments in the order in which they are moved, and then 
(b) The substantive recommendation(s) as amended (if amended). 

 

18



ENVIRONMENT CABINET 
MEMBER MEETING 

Agenda Item 6(b)(i) 
 

Brighton & Hove City Council 
 

 
 

 
EXTRACT FROM THE DRAFT PROCEEDINGS OF THE COUNCIL 

MEETING HELD ON THE 24 MARCH 2011 
 

BRIGHTON & HOVE CITY COUNCIL 
 

4.30pm 24th MARCH 2011 
COUNCIL CHAMBER, HOVE TOWN HALL 

 
DRAFT MINUTES 

 
Present:  Councillors: Wells (Chairman), A. Norman (Deputy Chairman), Alford, Allen, 

Barnett, Bennett, Brown, Carden, Caulfield, Cobb, Davey, Davis, Deane, Drake, 
Duncan, Elgood, Fallon-Khan, Fryer, Hamilton, Harmer-Strange, Hawkes, Hyde, 
Janio, Kemble, Kennedy, Kitcat, Lepper, Marsh, McCaffery, Meadows, Mears, 
Mitchell, Morgan, K. Norman, Older, Oxley, Peltzer Dunn, Phillips, Pidgeon, 
Randall, Rufus, Simpson, Simson, Smith, Steedman, C. Theobald, G. Theobald, 
Turton, Wakefield-Jarrett, Watkins, West, Wrighton and Young. 

 
 
 

PART ONE 
 
 

84(A). ROYAL SUSSEX COUNTY HOSPITAL PARKING 
 
84. Royal Sussex County Hospital Parking 
 
84.1 The Mayor stated that under the Council’s petition scheme, if a petition contained 

1,250 or more signatures, it could be debated by the Full Council and such a request 
had been made in respect of a combined e and paper petition concerning the Royal 
Sussex Hospital. 

 
84.2 The Mayor invited Councillor Bennett to present her petition. 
 
84.3 Councillor Bennett thanked the Mayor and stated that a total of 1,745 people had 

signed either the paper or e-petition version which read as follows: 
 

“We the undersigned petition the council to relax their parking policies and work with 
the hospital trust to ensure that the amount of on site parking for all Royal Sussex 
County Hospital patients and their visitors is greatly increased. 

 
Parking at the hospital should be easy and safe for patients and visitors, at what is for 
most people a stressful time.” 

 
84.4 Councillor Bennett stated that she hoped a workable solution could be found to the 

parking issue at the new development and hat the petition would be fully supported. 
 

19



L 

 
 

COUNCIL 24 MARCH 2011 

84.5 Councillor Theobald welcomed the petition and stated that he understood the difficulty 
and that he felt access for everyone concerned with the working at or visiting the 
hospital was important.  He noted that the council and the NHS Hospital Trust were 
working closely with each other in regard to the overall development of the site and 
that the council was pressing for the maximum number of parking spaces to be 
included. 

 
84.6 Councillor Turton stated that as the Chair of 3Ts Hospital Liaison Group he had been 

involved in discussions with the Hospital Trust over the development and he welcomed 
the petition that Councillor Bennett had brought forward.  He also stated that he 
wished to move a Labour Group amendment to the report’s recommendation, as there 
was a need to give consideration to the increased staffing levels and to take account 
of alternative transport arrangements. 

 
84.7 Councillor Morgan formally seconded the amendment. 
 
84.8 Councillor Fryer moved an amendment on behalf of the Green Group to the report’s 

recommendation and stated that there was a need to find a solution to the problem 
that accounted for the needs of all and provided alternative options to parking. 

 
84.9 Councillor Davey formally seconded the amendment. 
 
84.10 Councillor Carol Theobald stated that she hoped consideration would be given to how 

people could get to the hospital from the outskirts of the city as well as the staff 
parking. 

 
84.11 Councillor Geoffrey Theobald stated that he hoped the proposed new transport model 

would help to offer solutions to the issue as not everyone could rely on alternative 
methods to a car to get to the hospital. 

 
84.12  The Mayor noted that two amendments had been moved along with the 

recommendation to refer the petition to the Environment Cabinet Member Meeting and 
stated that he would put each one to the vote. 

 
84.13 The Mayor then put the Labour Group’s amendment followed by the Green Group’s 

amendment to the vote, each of which was carried. 
 
84.14 The Mayor then put the substantive recommendations as amended to the vote which 

were carried. 
 
84.15 RESOLVED:  
 

(1) That the petition is referred to the Environment Cabinet Member Meeting for 
consideration, about how to improve access to the hospital for everyone, in 
particular in light of the proposed 3Ts development. This will include making 
public transport more accessible through ensuring the hospital promotes bus 
routes and working with bus and taxi companies to make sure they can both stop 
in or very near the hospital as well as making it easier to access the hospital by 
foot or bike. This will help to ease congestion and improve air quality around the 
hospital and ensure that emergency vehicles can reach the hospital more quickly 
and safely; 

20



L 

 
 

COUNCIL 24 MARCH 2011 

 
(2) That the petition is referred to the Environment Cabinet Member Meeting for 

consideration with the following recommendations: 
  

(i) That the council works with Brighton, Hove and Sussex NHS Hospital Trust 
to ensure that the number of 450 additional staff that will be working at the 
Royal Sussex County Hospital site once the development is complete is 
taken into account when setting final car-parking numbers; 

 
(ii) That the council actively encourages the Trust to significantly increase the 

frequency and capacity of the 40X bus; 
 
(iii) That the council completes an area-wide feasibility study to determine 

whether through-traffic can be diverted away from the immediate vicinity of 
the hospital in accordance with the council’s agreed LDF Core Strategy 
document; and 

 
(iv) That the council works with the hospital Trust and other large employers in 

the city to provide genuine sustainable travel modes and choices for their 
workforce. 

 

21



22



 
Item 6(b)(ii) on the Environment Cabinet Member Meeting Agenda 

Council 
 

 

24 March 2011 

Agenda Item 84(a) 
 
 

Brighton & Hove City Council 
 

 
 

Subject: Royal Sussex County Hospital parking 

Date of Meeting: 24 March 2011 

Report of: Monitoring Officer 

Contact Officer: Name:  Mark Wall Tel: 29-1006 

 E-mail: mark.wall@brighton-hove.gov.uk 

Wards Affected: All  

 
For general release 
 
Note:  The subject matter of the petition is an executive function and therefore not 

one that Full Council can make a decision on. 
 
PETITION TRIGGERING A FULL COUNCIL DEBATE 
 
1. SUMMARY AND POLICY CONTEXT: 
 

1.1 Under the Council’s Petition Scheme if a petition contains more than 1,250 
signatures and is not a petition requesting officer evidence, it will be debated by 
the Full Council. 

 
1.2 A combined paper and e-petition has resulted in triggering a debate at the 

council meeting, having exceeded the threshold with a total of 1,745 signatures. 
 
2. RECOMMENDATIONS: 
 

2.1 That the petition is referred to the Environment Cabinet Member Meeting for 
consideration. 

 
3.  RELEVANT BACKGROUND INFORMATION / CHRONOLOGY OF KEY EVENTS: 
  

3.1 The Petition 
 

“We the undersigned petition the council to relax their parking policies and work 
with the hospital trust to ensure that the amount of on site parking for all Royal 
Sussex County Hospital patients and their visitors is greatly increased. 
 
Parking at the hospital should be easy and safe for patients and visitors, at what 
is for most people a stressful time.” 

 
 Lead Petitioner – Councillor Jayne Bennett 
 
3.2 As the subject matter of the petition relates to an executive function, the options open 

to the council are: 
 

23



  

• To note the petition and take no action for reasons put forward in the debate; 
or  

 

• To refer the petition to the relevant Cabinet Member Meeting; or  
 

• To refer the petition to the relevant Cabinet Member Meeting with 
recommendations. 

 
4.  PROCEDURE: 
 
4.1 The petition will be debated at the Council meeting in accordance with the agreed 

protocol: 
  

(i) The Lead petitioner will be invited by the Mayor to present the petition and will 
have up to 3 minutes in which to outline the prayer of the petition and confirm 
the number of signatures; 

 
(ii) The Mayor will then call on the relevant Cabinet Member to respond to the 

petition and move a proposed response; 
 

(iii) The Mayor will then open the matter up for debate by councillors and call on 
those councillors who have indicated a desire to move an amendment or 
additional recommendation(s) to the recommendation listed in paragraph 2.1 of 
the report; 

 
(iv) Any councillor may move an amendment or recommendation, having regard to 

the recommendation in 2.1 above and any such proposal will need to be 
formally seconded; 

 
(v) After a period of 15 minutes, the Mayor will then call an end to the debate and 

ask the relevant Cabinet Member to reply to the points raised; 
 

(vi) The Mayor will then formally put:  
 
(a) Any amendments in the order in which they are moved, and then 
(b) The substantive recommendation(s) as amended (if amended). 

 

24



ENVIRONMENT CABINET 
MEMBER MEETING 

Agenda Item 12 
 

Brighton & Hove City Council 

 

Subject: Shoreham Harbour:  Interim Planning Guidance (IPG) 
Update  

Date of Meeting: 26 May 2011 

Report of: Strategic Director Place 

Contact Officer: Name:  Mike Holford Tel: 29-2501 

 E-mail: mike.holford@brighton-hove.gov.uk 

Key Decision: No  

Wards Affected:  Hangleton & Knoll; South Portslade; Wish 

 
FOR GENERAL RELEASE 
 
1. SUMMARY AND POLICY CONTEXT: 

  
1.1 The report seeks approval to consult on an update of Interim Planning Guidance 

(IPG) for Shoreham Harbour. The initial IPG was subject to consultation for four 
weeks in November 2008. Prior to the production of more formal planning 
policies to guide the regeneration of Shoreham Harbour, Interim Planning 
Guidance was jointly produced with Adur District Council and West Sussex 
County Council and adopted by all three Councils in January 2009. The IPG has 
now been updated to reflect factual changes since then. The most significant 
being:- 
i. the three local authorities leading the project rather than the Regional 

Development Agency,  
ii. the proposed abolition of the South East Plan,  
iii. the completion of a capacity study showing the potential for a significantly 

smaller scale of development than initially proposed (2,000 dwellings rather 
than 10,000) and, 

iv. the production of a Master Plan by the Shoreham Port Authority.  
v. The reduction in the area covered by the IPG in Brighton & Hove. 

 
Adur District and West Sussex County Councils will be following a similar 
process. 

 
2. RECOMMENDATIONS:  

  
2.1 That the Cabinet Member agrees to consultation on the Shoreham Harbour: 

Interim Planning Guidance update, subject to any minor grammatical and non-
material text and illustrative alterations agreed by the Strategic Director Place in  
consultation with the relevant Cabinet Member, and agreed by Adur District 
Council and West Sussex County Council. 

 
 
 
 

25



3. RELEVANT BACKGROUND INFORMATION/CHRONOLOGY OF KEY 
EVENTS: 

 
3.1 For some time there has been an aspiration to regenerate the Shoreham 

Harbour Area, and this is an objective that Brighton & Hove City Council (BHCC), 
Adur District Council (ADC), and West Sussex County Council (WSCC), the 
three responsible authorities, have supported and continue to support. The 
objectives of regeneration are reflected in previous and emerging planning policy 
documents for the area, notably the BHCC saved local plan policies, and the 
emerging BHCC (and ADC) core strategies. At a national level, this has been 
recognised by the project receiving funding under growth point and eco town 
programmes. 

 
3.2      The purpose of the Interim Planning Guidance (IPG) is to provide those 

interested in the regeneration of the Harbour with a), a summary of the existing 
planning policy framework for the Harbour, namely the relevant policies as 
contained in the BHCC Local  Plan and emerging BHCC and ADC core 
strategies, and b), an overview of the future development priorities for the 
Shoreham Harbour regeneration area during the interim period (2011-2012).  

 
3.3  The IPG does not establish new planning policy but, through setting out the 

background and context to the regeneration plans, aims to help encourage the 
type of development that is in keeping with the future vision for the Harbour, 
whilst planning policies are being prepared in the respective core strategies. The 
IPG has now been updated to reflect a number of factual changes (as set out in 
paragraph 1.1). 

 
3.4 The IPG does not constitute a formal Supplementary Planning Document (SPD) 

as part of the Local Development Framework but the policies it contains are 
material planning considerations in the determination of any planning application 
to which those policies apply. 

 
4. CONSULTATION 

 
4.1 The contents of this report have been discussed and agreed in advance with 

Adur District Council and West Sussex County Council. 
 

5. FINANCIAL & OTHER IMPLICATIONS: 
 
 Financial Implications: 
 
5.1 The consultation referred to will be funded via Adur District Council. The only 

financial implications for Brighton and Hove City Council relates to a small 
element of staff time. 

 
 Finance Officer Consulted: Karen Brookshaw                 Date: 10/05/11 
 
 Legal Implications: 
 
5.2 As stated in paragraph 3.4 of the report the Interim Planning Guidance does not 

have any formal status under the Local Development Framework. However, 

26



insofar as the Interim Planning Guidance contains saved Brighton & Hove Local 
Plan policies and planning policies as contained in Brighton and Hove City 
Council and Adur District Council's emerging core strategies those policies are 
themselves material planning considerations to be taken into account in the 
determination of relevant planning applications. No adverse human rights 
implications have been identified as arising from the report.  

 
 Lawyer Consulted:  Hilary Woodward  Date: 09/05/11 
 
 Equalities Implications: 
 
5.3 None directly arising through the IPG. 
 
 Sustainability Implications: 
 
5.4 The IPG aims to prevent piece-meal development in the short-term that would 

hinder the long term sustainable regeneration of the Shoreham Harbour area. 
 
 Crime & Disorder Implications:  
 
5.5 None identified. 
 
 Risk and Opportunity Management Implications:  
 
5.6 See below. 
 
 Corporate / Citywide Implications: 
 
5.7 The intention of the IPG is to minimise the risk of inappropriate piecemeal 

development. Shoreham Harbour is a potentially significant employment area 
and strategic development site for the city. Careful management of development 
in this area is a city-wide priority. 

 
6. EVALUATION OF ANY ALTERNATIVE OPTION(S):  
 
6.1 The alternative was not to produce Interim Planning Guidance in which case the 

potential for development to prejudice the long-term aims for the area would 
remain. Another option would be to produce a formal Supplementary Planning 
Document. This option has been discounted due to the time and costs involved in 
preparing an SPD. 

 
7. REASONS FOR REPORT RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
7.1 To provide informal planning guidance in the short-term for the wider Shoreham 

Harbour area pending the preparation of Core Strategies. 
 
 
 

 
 
 

27



SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION 
 
Appendices:  
 
1. Shoreham Harbour: Interim Planning Guidance Update 

 
Documents in Members’ Rooms:  
 
None 
 
Background Documents:  
 
1. Shoreham Harbour: Interim Planning Guidance Update 
 

28



Item 12 Appendix 1a 

 1 

 

 
 

 
 
 
Shoreham Harbour: 

             Interim Planning Guidance 
 
 
 
 
 
 Updated February 2011 

 
 
 

      

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

                                    
                   

Refer to: www.shorehamharbour.com to download electronic version 

29



Item 12 Appendix 1a 

 2 

Table of Contents 
 
1 Introduction...................................................................................................... 3 
2 Shoreham Harbour in Context ......................................................................... 4 
3 Strategic Vision and Priorities .......................................................................... 8 
4 Planning Policy Framework ........................................................................... 10 

 

30



Item 12 Appendix 1a 

 3 

1 Introduction 
 
Purpose and status of this guidance 

 
1.1 The purpose of this Interim Planning Guidance (IPG) is to provide 

prospective applicants with a summary of the existing planning policy 
framework for the Harbour and to provide an overview of the future 
development priorities for the Shoreham Harbour regeneration area during 
the interim period (2011-2012), whilst detailed policies are being prepared.  

 
1.2 This IPG does not establish new planning policy but, through setting out the 

background and context to the regeneration plans, aims to help encourage 
the type of development that is in keeping with the future vision for the 
Harbour. 

 
1.3 This IPG does not constitute a Supplementary Planning Document (SPD) as 

part of the Local Development Framework (LDF). It has however been 
subject to consultation by project partners and key stakeholders prior to 
adoption by the three authorities. It is underpinned by the Government’s 
Growth Point and Eco Town programmes and the associated investment to 
date.  

 
1.4 Refer to www.shorehamharbour.com for further information on background 

and context, timeline to date, funding sources, partners and stakeholders, 
latest news and business opportunities. 

 
Relationship with emerging Shoreham Harbour policies 
 
1.5 At the heart of the regeneration programme is the commitment to prepare 

and adopt planning policies relating specifically to the regeneration area. 
Eventually these will be adopted by Adur District Council (ADC), Brighton & 
Hove City Council (BHCC) and West Sussex County Council (WSCC) and 
will be used to determine future planning applications within the Harbour 
area, alongside the Core Strategies and relevant national policies. 

 
1.6 The Shoreham Harbour policies will be subject to stakeholder and public 

consultation during 2011/2012 and will then be reviewed and taken forward 
to public examination.  

 
 

31



Item 12 Appendix 1a 

 4 

 

2 Shoreham Harbour in Context 
 
2.1 Shoreham Harbour is located on the south coast of England, five miles west 

of Brighton and five miles east of Worthing. The Harbour stretches for three 
miles and is bounded to the north by the A259 south coast road and the 
adjacent coastal communities (from west to east) of Shoreham-by-Sea, 
Kingston-by-Sea, Southwick, Fishersgate, South Portslade and Hove.   

 
2.2 The Harbour area straddles the local authority boundaries of Adur District 

Council and West Sussex County Council in the west, with a smaller section 
of the Harbour falling within Brighton & Hove City Council to the east. Refer 
to Appendix 1. 

 
2.3 The Shoreham Harbour regeneration area contains the entirety of the 

working trust Port of Shoreham operated by the Shoreham Port Authority 
(SPA). The ownerships within the Port are a mixture of privately owned 
sites, sites leased from SPA, SPA owned and operated sites and a small 
amount of local authority owned land such as part of Southwick Beach, 
Kingston Beach and several car parks. SPA owned and operated sites are 
largely concentrated in the eastern arm and canal including Lady Bee 
Marina and operational infrastructure such as the terminals, wharves, dry 
dock and moorings. Refer to www.shoreham-port.co.uk/Masterplan for site 
locations. 

 
2.4 The regeneration area also takes in a number of sites outside the Port’s 

jurisdiction including immediately adjacent residential and employment 
areas as well as vacant and underused sites between the A259 and the 
railway line to the north.  

 
2.5 The precise boundary of the Shoreham Harbour regeneration area is still to 

be determined subject to further consultation. 
 
Background to the regeneration plans 
 
2.6 There has been a long standing aspiration to maximise the potential of 

Shoreham Harbour and to revitalise the area for the benefit of local 
communities and the wider sub-region. The three local planning authorities 
BHCC, ADC and West Sussex County Council (WSCC) continue to support 
the regeneration of the area and are working jointly together to progress a 
viable, locally-supported, strategic long-term vision. 

 
2.7 The three authorities are working in partnership with SPA, South East 

England Development Agency (SEEDA)1, the Homes and Communities 
Agency (HCA). The Government Office for the South East (GOSE)2 and the 
Environment Agency (EA) also work closely with the partnership.  

                                                 
1
 The Government has announced that all RDAs including SEEDA will close by April 2012. 
2
 The 2010 Comprehensive Spending Review confirmed that the Government Offices for the 
Regions will close at the end of March 2011 

32



Item 12 Appendix 1a 

 5 

 
Regional Spatial Strategy – The South East Plan 
 
2.8 The aspirations for Shoreham Harbour were originally  identified in the 

Regional Spatial Strategy (RSS) for the South East (May 2009)3.The RSS 
states that “Shoreham Harbour has scope to provide for a significant level of 
mixed use development to achieve significant social and economic 
objectives through regeneration, comprising employment, housing and other 
uses”. 

 
Regional Economic Strategy (2006-2016) 

 
2.9 The Regional Economic Strategy (RES) produced by SEEDA states the 

following: 
 

§ Priority 6: To invest in the long-term sustainable growth of key ports and 
to explore future prospects for smaller ports such as Shoreham. 

 
Growth Point and Eco-Town status 
 
2.10 Central Government has demonstrated its commitment to regenerating 

Shoreham Harbour through designating the area as a new Growth Point as 
part of the Growth Points programme4 and have provided significant funding 
to progress plans for the area.  

 
2.11 In March 2010 Shoreham Harbour received further funding as part of the 

Government’s Eco-Towns programme. The funding agreement requires 
further technical assessment to test the extent to which new development at 
the Harbour can meet with the Eco-Town standards as set out in the Eco-
Towns Supplement to Planning Policy Statement 15.  

 
2.12 These designations, their associated conditions and the level of 

Government investment in the project to date will be taken into account 
when considering development applications within the regeneration area.  

 
Coast to Capital Local Enterprise Partnership (LEP) 
 
2.13 The successful ‘Coast to Capital’ LEP bid covers the whole of West Sussex, 

Brighton and Hove, the Gatwick Diamond and the London Borough of 
Croydon, and is formed of local authorities and employers. The bid outlined 
the potential to create 100,000 jobs in the private sector over the next 25 
years. The LEP is likely to be up and running by April 2011, subject to 
further Government guidance. Shoreham Harbour is identified within the 

                                                 
3
 In May 2010 the Government announced the abolition of the Regional Strategies, a key proposed 
change to the planning system further detailed within the Localism Bill launched in December 2010. 
 
4
 Further information at http://www.communities.gov.uk/publications/housing/partnershipsforgrowth 
 
5
 Download at http://www.communities.gov.uk/publications/planningandbuilding/pps-ecotowns 
 

33



Item 12 Appendix 1a 

 6 

LEP bid document as being an opportunity area for employment and 
business growth. To download a copy of the LEP bid, refer to 
www.westsussex.gov.uk/LEP. Coast to Capital has two key priorities: 

 
§ Enterprise and entrepreneurship – tackling low levels of enterprise 

and business formation so that the longer term competitive health of the 
area is secured. 

§ International trade – 60% of UK productivity gain is driven by 
businesses that are internationalised. The area has some slight 
competitive advantage in this, but the proposal is to significantly increase 
the numbers of firms who trade internationally. 

 
Shoreham Port Authority and Port Masterplan 

 
2.14 Shoreham Port Authority has recently produced a Port Masterplan.6 

Although not a statutory planning policy document, the plan is reflective of 
the Port’s future aspirations. The Masterplan has been subject to public and 
stakeholder consultation and should be taken into account when 
considering any new development in the vicinity of Shoreham Port. The Port 
Master Plan can be viewed at www.shoreham-port.co.uk/Masterplan. 

 
2.15 SPA is supportive of exploring the potential for an eco-town at the Harbour 

because it compliments the Port’s own sustainability objectives. Examples 
of current sustainable development activities at the Port include: 

  

§ Supporting renewable energy generation including exploring plans for 
wind and solar power generation 

§ Protection of wildlife habitats and heritage sites including an adjacent 
Site of Special Scientific Interest, Local Nature Reserve, Scheduled 
Ancient Monument and Village Green 

§ Recently undertaking an environmental audit under the Eco Ports 
Initiative and working towards gaining certification under the Port 
Environmental Review System 

§ Implementing measures to improve water quality and preventing water 
pollution 

§ Working with the Environment Agency to undertake flood risk modelling 
and improvements to the flood defence system 

§ Ongoing monitoring and regulation of air quality and emissions from 
port-related traffic 

 
2.16 Through physical consolidation and improving commercial viability, the 

development plans for the Harbour will help to ensure that Shoreham Port 
continues to play an important role in the local economy. The priority for the 
Port Masterplan is to provide a clear strategy of land use that maximises: 

 
§ Availability of operational land 
§ Economic use of non-operational land and financial return from it 

 

                                                 
6
 As recommended by the Department for Transport in its interim report on the Ports Policy Review 
(July 2007). 

34



Item 12 Appendix 1a 

 7 

2.17 It is advisable to consult with the Port Authority as part of any pre-
application discussions related to developments that fall within, or adjacent 
to, the Port Authority’s jurisdiction.  

 
2.18 Under section 6 of the Masterplan, proposals for specific areas are set out 

as follows: 

 

 
Port Masterplan: Proposals 
 
§ South Quayside (together with the outer layby berths) is the main operational 

area of the Port. The focus will be on continuing to improve operational 
efficiencies, develop new port trade, and accommodate the relocation of 
existing port operators. With the exception of the existing Power Station, and 
the Waste Water Treatment Plant, non-port operations would be resisted in 
this area. 

 
§ Aldrington Basin is the area with significant potential for change. It is mostly 

non-port uses. The area could be developed for either port-related activities or 
new employment (non-port related) development. 

 
§ North Quayside area has a mix of vacant land, port operators and other 

businesses, but with the relocation of certain non-port related uses, together 
with limited land reclamation and a new access road, it has the potential to 
develop as a new port operational area. 

 
§ Southwick Waterfront has the potential to be redeveloped for commercial 

and leisure purposes including increased marina berths with associated 
facilities, a new ‘public hub’, extra parking and improved public access to the 
waterfront. It is also an important Conservation Area. 

 
§ Lock Gates / Dry Dock area is a key functional part of the port, where the 

locks, port control and pumping station are located. It is identified as the main 
new engineering base together with a renovated dry dock and associated 
facilities. It is also an important Public Right of Way. 

 
§ Harbour Mouth / Outer Lay-by is the sea entrance to the Port with important 

tidal berths, new RNLI station, amenity areas and historic sites (Shoreham 
Fort, Lighthouse). Kingston Beach and the Fort have the potential to be 
improved as local community amenity areas. 

 
§ Western Arm / River Adur area has the potential for significant change with 

the relocation of port-related activities to other areas of the Port, the possible 
relocation of other uses and in the longer term redevelopment for residential, 
leisure and employment uses.   

 
§ Public Beaches: Southwick and Portslade beaches are important to local 

residents and watersport participants and there are opportunities for 
upgrading / enhancing them as valued local amenity areas. 

 
 

Source: www.shoreham-port.co.uk/Masterplan 

35



Item 12 Appendix 1a 

 8 

3  Strategic Vision and Priorities  
 
3.1 As stated in the original Growth Point Programme of Development 

(submitted to Government in October 2008), the long term aim is to create a 
high-quality exemplar sustainable development at Shoreham Harbour 
potentially comprising a mix of residential, employment, community, 
education, leisure and ancillary retail development; to support the 
regeneration objectives of increasing housing and employment opportunities 
and skills in the area, whilst also raising environmental quality.  

 
3.2 The key priorities underpinning the vision are set out below. These were 

identified through a consultation process with local Councillors and 
stakeholders and will be further explored during forthcoming consultation 
phases.  

 
 
Key Priorities: 
 
§ Reducing inequalities by improving housing for local people and providing new 

homes in a range of sizes, tenures and types of accommodation to 
complement the existing housing stock and to meet identified needs, including 
affordable and family homes. 

 
§ Improving the area’s economy by investing in the business environment and 

providing a range of premises for business and commerce to support and 
complement the wider economy of the Brighton and Hove diamond of growth 
and the long-term needs of the community; including promotion of high-value 
sectors. 

 
§ Reducing inequalities by equipping the area’s residents and workers for the 

jobs of the future by providing facilities to enable them to acquire the 
education, training and skills they will need. 

 
§ Enabling Shoreham Port to continue to play an important role in the local and 

wider economy including consolidating it on land reclaimed from the sea to the 
east of the Harbour mouth.7 

 
§ Ensuring that development at Shoreham Harbour provides opportunities for 

people to live and work within easy reach, and that it is served by high quality 
integrated transport systems including walking, cycling and public transport 
routes and interchanges , reducing existing and new demand  for travel by 
private car. 

 
§ Reducing the risks from flooding and coastal erosion in the area, in particular 

Shoreham Town Centre and the Canal area, and ensuring that risks are not 
increased elsewhere. 

 
§ Creating places that enable healthy and enjoyable living by improving existing 

and providing new: open spaces; recreation and sports facilities; and making it 
easier to get to the waterfront, coast and beaches, to the Adur Valley and 

                                                 
7
 Note: Land reclamation (in relation to the testing of 10,000 new homes at Shoreham Harbour) is 
now not being pursued following viability testing and assessment of impact on coastal processes. 

36



Item 12 Appendix 1a 

 9 

other local facilities, and to the Downs.  
 

§ Protecting and enhancing the area’s historic, environmental and other 
important assets including Shoreham Fort; Kingston Village Green and the 
Lighthouse; the Riverside Conservation area (Southwick); the Adur Estuary; 
and the vegetated shingle beaches, and providing better opportunities for 
them to be experienced and understood.   

 
§ Making the most of the area’s coastal and waterfront location, including 

designing new development so that it complements the existing built 
environments of Shoreham town centre, Southwick, Fishersgate and 
Portslade; enhances the appearance of and access to river and canal-side 
waterfronts and beaches, and is appropriate to its setting within the largest 
urban area in Sussex.  

 
§ Improving Shoreham, Southwick and Portslade town centres and creating a 

new neighbourhood centre for Fishersgate.  
 
§ Enhancing community services and facilities, including providing new schools, 

to serve the existing and future population. 
 
§ Ensuring that the area is a leading example of sustainable living, including one 

that mitigates and adapts to climate change, where the natural environment is 
enhanced, natural resources are used wisely, and environmental issues are 
considered in a joined up way.  New development will be designed, built and 
laid out in ways which reduce reliance on the private car; use energy and 
water efficiently; minimise waste; and keep the carbon-footprint as low as 

possible.  
 
Source: Shoreham Harbour Members Steering Group 28/04/09  

 
 
3.3 Technical studies currently being prepared as part of developing the Core 

Strategies and the Shoreham Harbour policies will further establish the 
spatial and viability implications of achieving these aspirations. These 
studies relate to capacity and viability, flood risk, transport, economic 
development, water management and sustainability. 
 

 
 
  
 
 

37



Item 12 Appendix 1a 

 10 

4 Planning Policy Framework 
 
4.1 The aim of this section is to outline the main considerations for planning 

applications in the interim period whilst the Shoreham Harbour policies are 
being prepared.  

 
4.2 ADC and BHCC are the local planning authorities for Shoreham Harbour, 

responsible for preparing local planning documents and determining the 
majority of planning applications. For sites within the ADC part of the 
Harbour, WSCC is the strategic land use planning authority. It determines 
planning applications for minerals and waste as well as for other ‘County 
matters’ (e.g. schools, libraries) and is the highways authority for roads and 
transportation within the County. BHCC is the highways authority for areas 
of the Harbour that fall within its Council boundaries. 

 
4.3 Set out below is an overview of key documents and policies that should be 

taken account of in preparing planning applications for sites within the 
Harbour area. There are a number of significant changes currently taking 
place more widely within the planning system and these changes will be 
taken account of accordingly as they emerge. Other relevant national 
planning policy and legislation should also be taken into account, in 
particular, relating to development within ports and Harbours. 

 
4.4 In the interim whilst the Shoreham Harbour policies are being developed, 

changes of use and new developments that help to promote the 
regeneration objectives set out at 3.2 and are in conformity with the future 
plans for the area as set out in the Port Masterplan will continue to be 
encouraged. All applications will be assessed against relevant national and 
local planning policies as set out in Section 4.  

 
4.5 Development that is inconsistent with the objectives but could reasonably be 

permitted temporarily (without prejudicing the longer term vision) may be 
granted time-limited permissions of up to 5 years where appropriate. 

 
Port Authority Permitted Development Rights 
 
4.6 The Shoreham Port Authority has permitted development rights for certain 

types of development within the Harbour area meaning that planning 
permission from the local planning authority is not required. These rights are 
set out within the Shoreham Harbour Acts and also reflected within the 
General Permitted Development Order (GPDO) 1995; Part 17, Development 
By Statutory Undertakers, Class B (Dock, Pier, Harbours, Water transport, 
canal or inland navigation undertakings) as set out below: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

38



Item 12 Appendix 1a 

 11 

 
 
Class B Dock, pier, harbour, water transport, canal or inland navigation 
undertakings 
 
 
Permitted development 
 
B.  Development on operational land by statutory undertakers or their lessees in respect 
of dock, pier, harbour, water transport, or canal or inland navigation undertakings, 
required -  
 
(a) for the purposes of shipping, or 
 
(b) in connection with the embarking, disembarking, loading, discharging or transport of 
passengers, livestock or goods at a dock, pier or harbour, or with the movement of 
traffic by canal or inland navigation or by any railway forming part of the undertaking. 
 
 
Development not permitted 
 
B.1  Development is not permitted by Class B if it consists of or includes –  
 
(a) the construction or erection of a hotel, or of a bridge or other building not required in 
connection with the handling of traffic, 
 
(b) the construction or erection otherwise than wholly within the limits of a dock, pier or 
harbour of –  
 

(i) an educational building, or 
 
(ii) a car park, shop, restaurant, garage, petrol filling station or other building 
provided under transport legislation. 
 

 
Interpretation of Class B 
 
B.2  For the purposes of Class B, references to the construction or erection of any 
building or structure include references to the reconstruction or alteration of a building or 
structure where its design or external appearance would be materially affected, and the 
reference to operational land includes land designated by an order made under section 
14 or 16 of the Harbours Act 1964(7) (orders for securing harbour efficiency etc., and 
orders conferring powers for improvement, construction etc. of harbours), and which has 
come into force, whether or not the order was subject to the provisions of the Statutory 
Orders (Special Procedure) Act 1945(8). 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

39



Item 12 Appendix 1a 

 12 

Interim policy guidance 
 
4.7 The area that this IPG applies to is identified on the map within Appendix 1.  
 
 

Interim Policy Guidance 
 

•     Development within the Shoreham Harbour IPG area will be encouraged if it is 
consistent with the vision and regeneration objectives as outlined in section 3 
above, with the Port Masterplan and with relevant national and local planning 
policies. 

 

•     Development may not be supported if it is considered likely to prejudice the 
emerging Shoreham Harbour policies and regeneration objectives set out in 
section 3 and/or is inconsistent with the Port Masterplan and relevant national 
and local planning policies. 

 
The following considerations apply to respective forms of development: 

 
i) The following uses may be supported within the Harbour area in locations which 
are appropriate for the respective use, in accordance with national and local 
planning policies, and should not conflict with port operations and port-related 
uses: residential, B1 business uses, tourism, retail, leisure / recreation related 
uses and non-residential community uses. 

 
ii) New development, extensions and changes of uses relating to port operational 
and port-related uses may be supported in the eastern arm and canal of the port, 
particularly on the south side.  

 
iii) B2 (General Industrial) and B8 (Storage & Distribution) development, that does 
not require a port-side location, will not normally be supported in locations 
identified in the Port Masterplan for future mixed-use (where it includes 
residential). Planning permissions may be granted for a temporary period so as 
not to conflict with future development plans. 

 
 

 
Key planning considerations 
 
4.8 In line with relevant national and local policies, key factors in considering 

new development and changes of use in the Harbour area are likely to 
include: 

 
§ Consistency with regeneration vision and priorities: Pre-application 

discussions with ADC or BHCC are advisable to further discuss 
alignment with regeneration plans as set out at 3.2 

 
§ Consistency with eco-development standards: Shoreham Harbour is 

currently exploring its potential to meet Eco-Town standards as outlined 
above. A Sustainability Statement setting out the extent to which these 
standards have been taken into account will be expected as part of 
planning applications. Refer to Appendix 2. 

 

40



Item 12 Appendix 1a 

 13 

§ Impact on Shoreham Port operations: Consultation with Shoreham 
Port Authority is advisable at an early stage and a statement 
demonstrating how the Port Masterplan has been taken into account will 
be expected as part of all planning applications. 

 
§ Impact on Minerals and Waste: The impact of development on 

safeguarded wharves and existing waste facilities and the extent to 
which the development contributes to meeting future needs for minerals 
imports and waste management will be taken into account. Further detail 
is set out within the objectives and policies of the emerging Minerals and 
Waste Core Strategies. 

 
§ Flood Risk: The approach to development in flood risk areas (as set out 

in PPS25: Development and Flood Risk) must be adhered to.  The 
Strategic Flood Risk Assessments (SFRA) for Adur and Worthing and for 
Brighton & Hove identified the majority of Shoreham Harbour as being 
located within Flood Zones 2 and 3. These SFRAs will be updated as 
more detailed flood risk information becomes available. Contact 
Planning Policy section of either ADC or BHCC for the latest information. 

 
§ Environmental impacts on traffic generation, noise, air quality, 

vibration and other forms of pollution: Depending on the nature of the 
development a traffic impact assessment and travel plans may be 
required. The impact on Air Quality Management Areas at Shoreham 
High Street, Old Shoreham Road in Southwick and South 
Portslade/Hove will also be considered. 

 
§ Proximity to Health and Safety Executive (HSE) Consultation 

Zones: Limited parts of the Harbour area are subject to development 
constraints due to their proximity to hazardous installations. ADC, BHCC 
and Shoreham Port can provide further detail of affected areas and 
implications on request.  

 
§ Contaminated land: A site investigation and remediation strategy may 

be required to accompany planning applications for development on 
contaminated land. Further investigations are currently underway to 
establish the extent and nature of contamination on sites within the 
harbour area. 

 
§ Impact on water quality and marine habitats: For developments likely 

to impact on the marine environment, the Environment Agency and 
Natural England should be consulted at an early stage. 

 
Planning Policy Statement: Eco-towns - A Supplement to Planning Policy 
Statement 1 
 
4.9 The detailed design standards that will be expected of new developments in 

the regeneration area are currently being developed and will be set out in 
full in the forthcoming Shoreham Harbour policies. In the interim period, 
developers will be expected to demonstrate the extent to which they are 

41



Item 12 Appendix 1a 

 14 

able to meet the standards outlined at Appendix 2 and a Sustainability 
Statement will be expected to accompany the majority of planning 
applications.  

 
Brighton & Hove City Council – Adopted Local Plan (2005) saved policies8  

 
4.10 The majority of the Local Plan policies have been saved. Of particular 

relevance to Shoreham Harbour are the following: 
 
4.11 Policy EM12 makes provision for interim development control in the context 

of earlier regeneration policies for the Harbour, anticipating that these would 
be superseded by a more detailed policy document in the future.  

 

 
           Policy EM12: Shoreham Harbour – mixed uses 

 
Planning permission will be granted for Port related activities prior to 
the construction of a transport link, provided they do not add to the 
environmental disadvantages suffered as a result of HGV traffic passing 
along the roads used for port access and provided they do not generate 
unreasonable levels of noise dust, fumes and other forms of pollution. 
 
Planning permission for redevelopment of the site for employment, 
housing, leisure, specialist marine and small scale retail uses, hotel 
accommodation and public open space will be granted in accordance 
with a future development brief for the area, provided the proposals 
do not add to the environmental disadvantages suffered as a result of 
HGV traffic along the existing roads used for Port access and provided 
they do not generate unreasonable levels of noise, dust, fumes and 
other forms of pollution. 
 
The proposed mix of uses: location details; design; landscaping and 
access arrangements; will be expected to comply with a future 
development brief. Planning permission will not be granted for 
permanent extensions to existing Port related activities, industrial 
buildings or new industrial development within the area. 
 
Planning permission will be granted for temporary Port related 
development and temporary buildings for existing industrial users prior 
to the construction of a transport link provided they do not add to the 
environmental disadvantages suffered as a result of HGV traffic passing 
along the roads used for Port access and provided they do not generate 
unreasonable levels of noise, dust, fumes and other forms of pollution. 
Redevelopment of the site will be phased to allow for the completion 
of transport infrastructure improvements and the relocation of the 

            existing industrial and commercial uses to land proposed for reclamation9  
            in Adur District. 

 

                                                 
8
 Download at: http://www.brighton-hove.gov.uk/downloads/bhcc/local_plan_2005/adopted_local_plan-

saved_policies_july_08_Chapter05.pdf 

 
9
 Since adoption of the Local Plan, land reclamation proposals have been to found to not be viable 
or implementable in the foreseeable future. 

42



Item 12 Appendix 1a 

 15 

 
Brighton & Hove City Council - Local Development Framework 
 

Core Strategy Proposed Submission Document (February 2010) 
 

4.12 Information about the current status of the BHCC Core Strategy can be 
found by visiting the Local Development Framework page on www.brighton-
hove.gov.uk.  

 
4.13 The submitted Core Strategy contains a specific Policy DA7 for the Harbour 

area. Technical Background Papers were also submitted about the status of 
the Shoreham Harbour regeneration strategy. 

 
4.14 Policy DA7 – Shoreham Harbour and South Portslade10: Shoreham 

Harbour and South Portslade are identified as a Development Area. Policy 
DA7 sets out the City Council’s priorities for the area and the aim to create a 
highly sustainable neighbourhood adhering to the latest standards for 
sustainable development including, amongst other things, new and higher 
quality jobs, new homes with a mixture of tenure and housing types, new 
retail, leisure and community facilities with a high quality network of public 
open space, and modernised and consolidated port activity.  

 
4.15 Shoreham Harbour Area Background Papers 1 & 211 : A Technical 

Background Paper and a Statement of Common Ground accompanied the 
Core Strategy Submission document to provide clarity on the joint working 
arrangements with ADC and the other partners.  

 
Sustainable Building Design – Supplementary Planning Document (June 
2008) 
 
4.16 Brighton and Hove’s adopted Sustainable Building Design Supplementary 

Planning Document (SPD) (2008) sets out recommendations for minimum 
standards of sustainable design in new development within the City. These 
standards are set out in full in Appendix 2. 

 
Adur District Council – Adopted Local Plan (1996) saved policies12  
 
4.17 Within Part 10, Business, Industry and Warehousing of the Local Plan, key 

saved policies relating to the Harbour include: 
 

                                                                                                                                                    
 
10
 Download at: http://www.brighton-

hove.gov.uk/downloads/bhcc/ldf/REg_27Core_Strategy_Proposed_Submission_February_2010v2.
pdf 
 
11
 Download at: http://www.brighton-hove.gov.uk/downloads/bhcc/ldf/CS_Sub-

Shoreham_background1_2.pdf 
 
12
 Download full list of Saved Local Plan policies: http://www.adur.gov.uk/docs/planning/ldf/amr-

saved-policies-2009-2010.pdf 
 

43



Item 12 Appendix 1a 

 16 

 
           Policy AE7: Shoreham Harbour 
 
           The District Planning Authority recognises the primary function of         
           Shoreham Harbour as a commercial Port. Development will be approved  
           within the area of the Port covered by Inset Plan 3 if it does not affect the  
           operation of the Port or prejudice its economic viability and subject to  
           Policies AT3 and AT4. 

 

 
4.18 Policy AE7 protects the ongoing viability of Shoreham Port and recognises 

its primary function as a commercial port and its integral role in the local 
economy.  Land subject to Policy AE8 allows for non-port related uses 
where port-related use is impracticable or where wider benefits may be 
secured as a result.  

 
 
            Policy AE8: Shoreham Harbour 

 
On land shown subject to this policy on the Proposals Map, permanent   
development unrelated to the commercial Port of Shoreham-by-Sea will be   
permitted where port-related uses is impracticable without unacceptable impact or  
where wider benefits may be secured as a result. All development proposed  
under this policy will be assessed in relation to Policy AT3 or Policy AT4 as  
applicable. 

 

 
4.19 The use of the Harbour area for water-based leisure and recreation is 

acknowledged within Part 13, Recreation, Leisure and Tourism. Key policies 
for consideration include AR13, AR14 as well as AR15, AR16 and AR17. 

 

 
Policy AR13: Shoreham Harbour 

 
The District Planning Authority will normally permit the development 
of facilities for active or passive recreation at Shoreham Harbour (in 
the areas covered by Inset Plan 3) subject to:- 
(a) no conflict with the operation and natural expansion of the 
Harbour's commercial activities; 
(b) no conflict with nature conservation; 
(c) local environmental considerations; including effect on the 
residential amenity of nearby dwellings, and 
(d) on-site car parking arrangements and access to the public highway 
being acceptable under Policy AT12 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

44



Item 12 Appendix 1a 

 17 

 
Policy AR16: Public hards 

 
In any proposals for the comprehensive development or redevelopment 
of land adjacent to any public hard within the Local Plan area, 
developers will be required to provide improvements to the hard, 
including access to it, and conveniently sited parking for cars and 
trailers. 
 
This policy shall not be taken to preclude the re-siting of a public hard 
(subject to the necessary legal procedures) if this is necessary to 
produce a satisfactory development or redevelopment, providing the 
standard and effectiveness of use of the facility remains the same or is 

            improved. 

 

 
 

4.20 The Local Plan also includes a number of other saved polices that may be 
considered relevant to development at the Harbour depending on the nature 
of the proposal. These may be found at: 
http://adc/intranet/planning/ldf/annual-monitoring-report.htm   

 
Adur District Council – Local Development Framework 

 
Emerging revised Core Strategy 

 
4.21 The Adur Core Strategy is currently being revised and consultation will take 

place in early 2011.  For information on the current status of the Core 
Strategy refer to www.adur.gov.uk/planning/ldf/core-strategy.htm. 

 
4.22 The emerging Core Strategy policies have not yet been subject to 

consultation and are therefore not stated in this IPG.  
 
Minerals and Waste Policy Framework 
 
4.23 Development impacting upon waste and minerals in the Harbour area is 

currently subject to the policies of the following plans. These policies aim to 
safeguard sufficient capacity for the importation of minerals (e.g. landing 
crushed rock and marine-dredged aggregate) and management of waste 
(e.g. exporting metal for recycling): 

 
West Sussex Minerals Local Plan (2003) 

 
4.24 Until the emerging Core Strategy is adopted, a number of policies from the 

adopted Minerals Local Plan have been saved.13 Of key relevance Saved 
Policy 40 aims to safeguard and improve wharves in West Sussex and 

                                                 
13
 Download at 

http://www.westsussex.gov.uk/your_council/strategies_and_policies/policies/mineral_and_waste_p
olicy/local_plans.aspx 
 

45



Item 12 Appendix 1a 

 18 

specifically safeguards five areas within Shoreham Harbour as minerals 
wharves. Please refer to Appendix 3 for a map of these sites. 

 

 
Policy 40: Safeguarded wharves 

 
Wharves with current or potential mineral use will be safeguarded from  
inappropriate development. The improvement, modernisation and increase in  
capacity of aggregate wharves will be encouraged provided that such operations  
would not have an unacceptable impact on the environment and would not cause  
a significant increase in disturbance due to factors including increases in noise,  
dust and traffic. 

 

 
East Sussex and Brighton & Hove Minerals Local Plan (1999)  

 
4.25 All of the policies within the East Sussex and Brighton & Hove Minerals 

Local Plan have been saved.14 Of key relevance, Policy 8 highlights the 
importance of retaining aggregates facilities at the Port and limiting further 
effects of increased traffic. 
 

 
Policy 8: Aggregates 

 
The mineral planning authority supports the retention of the existing facilities for   
receiving and processing sea-borne imported aggregates at the Port of  
Shoreham. Planning permission for new or improved facilities will normally be  
granted where it can be shown that the effects of the traffic generated would be  
acceptable and would not give rise to significant environmental problems in Hove.  
Proposals should accord with agreed port development policies for Shoreham. 

 

 
West Sussex Waste Local Plan Revised Deposit Draft (2004)  

 
4.26 Although not part of the statutory development plan, the West Sussex 

Waste Local Plan Revised Deposit Draft (2004) was approved by the 
County Council for development control purposes in December 2005. Work 
undertaken on the plan is being fed into the preparation of the Minerals and 
Waste Core Strategy. 

 
4.27 Policy A1A of the Draft Waste Local Plan safeguards existing waste 

management sites from development that would prevent or prejudice their 
use. Existing sites safeguarded under this policy within the regeneration 
area are: 

 
§ Shoreham-Brighton Road - Household Waste Recycling site (Ref:AD65) 

                                                 
14
 

http://www.eastsussex.gov.uk/environment/planning/development/mineralsandwaste/mineralslocalp
lan.htm 
 

46



Item 12 Appendix 1a 

 19 

§ Shoreham Waste Water Treatment Works, Basin Road, Southwick 
(Ref:AD66) 

 
 

Policy A1A: Existing Waste Management Sites 

 
Development that would prevent or prejudice the use of the following sites for 
waste management uses will not be permitted unless sufficient operational 
capacity remains within the County to meet identified waste management 
needs or a replacement site has been identified and permitted: 
 
(a) the existing permanent waste management sites listed at the end of the 
Plan; and 
(b) the sites allocated in Policy A1 as shown on the Proposals Map; and 
(c) new sites permitted and developed for waste management uses during 
the plan period. 
 
Proposals for new built facilities for the collection, sorting, transfer, treatment 
or recovery of waste will be acceptable in principle at existing permanent 
waste management sites safeguarded under this policy, provided that they can 
be accommodated without conflict with other development plan policies. 
. 

 
 

East Sussex County Council and Brighton & Hove City Council Waste Local 
Plan (2006) 

 
4.28 The East Sussex and Brighton & Hove Waste Local Plan was adopted in 

2006 and its policies are saved until the emerging Core Strategy is 
adopted.15 The plan has a similar policy to safeguarding existing waste sites 
under policy WLP5 and deals with changes to existing facilities under policy 
WLP6. Existing waste facilities listed in the plan that fall within the 
regeneration area include: 

 
§ Skip It, Basin Road, South Portslade - Skip It Containers (Plan Ref 10) 

 

 
WLP5: Safeguarding Sites 

 
Development proposals which would prevent or prejudice the use of the 
following sites for waste management uses will be resisted: 
a) the preferred sites and areas of search identified in this plan for 
strategic waste development; 
b) existing waste management sites with permanent planning 
permission. 

 

 

 

                                                 
15
 Download at 

http://www.eastsussex.gov.uk/environment/planning/development/mineralsandwaste/wastelocalpla
n.htm 
 

47



Item 12 Appendix 1a 

 20 

WLP6: Expansions or Alterations to Existing Facilities 

 
Proposals for expansion or alterations to existing waste management 
facilities will be permitted, subject to other policies of the plan where 
relevant, where it is demonstrated that: 
a) the development is required to meet current environmental 
standards; or 
b) the development is required to improve the operational efficiency of 
the facility; or 
c) the development would contribute towards achieving net self sufficiency 
of the Plan area in waste management facilities 

 
 

Emerging Waste and Minerals Core Strategy for East Sussex and Brighton 
& Hove  
 

4.29 The second key stage of consultation on the Preferred Strategy took place 
in early 2010.16 The (yet to be adopted) strategy includes a proposed policy 
CS10b on safeguarding wharves that enables provision of wharfage 
capacity within West Sussex to be taken account of: 

 

 
CS10b: Safeguarding of wharf and rail facilities 

 
The Councils will safeguard rail and wharf facilities in order to contribute towards  
meeting the regional apportionment set out within the South East Plan and to  
support modal shift in the transport of minerals.  
 
Capacity for landing and processing of minerals at the following wharves will be  
safeguarded unless alternative provision is made elsewhere within that port such  
that there is no net loss of capacity for handling minerals:  
 
• Berths 1 to 5 at North Quay, Newhaven Port  
• Halls Aggregate Wharf, Shoreham Port  
• Britannia Wharf, Shoreham Port  
• Ferry Wharf, Shoreham Port  
• Rye Wharf, Rye Port  
• Rye Marine Wharf (Rastrums Wharf), Rye Port 
 
Further research in relation to any necessary Appropriate Assessment under the  
Habitats Regulations is currently taking place and due to be completed by the end  
of 2009 and will be taken into account for the submission document.  
 
The Councils acknowledge because Shoreham Port is partly within West Sussex,  
that landings at wharves in the West Sussex part may also help meet demand in  
Brighton & Hove and the western part of East Sussex. So on that basis alternative  
provision of equivalent capacity of wharfage within either part of Shoreham Port  
may be acceptable.  

Emerging Waste and Minerals Core Strategy for West Sussex  

                                                 
16
 Further information at: 

http://www.eastsussex.gov.uk/environment/planning/development/mineralsandwaste/consultation20
09.htm 

48



Item 12 Appendix 1a 

 21 

 
4.30 The first draft of the Core Strategy, the 'Preferred Option' was subject to 

public consultation during 2007. Work on the Preferred Options document 
was discontinued but it will be used to inform the preparation of the current 
Minerals and Waste Core Strategy. Policy CSM6 – Wharves and Railheads 
safeguards wharves and railheads with current or potential mineral use and 
permits the improvement and modernisation of existing wharves and 
railheads.  Policy CW2 relates to the safeguarding of existing waste 
management sites. Further information can be found at 
www.westsussex.gov.uk/mwdf. 

 
4.31 WSCC commissioned a study to look at its existing wharves and 

railheads17.  This provides evidence of the current imports and future 
potential capacity of existing and safeguarded facilities and makes 
recommendations for their safeguarding. The Wharves and Railheads Study 
(2008) has informed the options presented in Background Paper 4: 
Transportation of Minerals and Waste, Version 2 (December, 2009), 
background evidence for the latest Minerals and Waste Core Strategy. 
Informal stakeholder engagement on the options presented in Background 
Paper 4 took place between December 2009 and February 2010.  For more 
information please refer to the website at www.westsussex.gov.uk/mwdf.  

 

4.32 An appropriate policy approach that reflects the studies will be incorporated 
into the emerging Minerals and Waste Core Strategies and the Shoreham 
Harbour policies in due course. In the interim, proposed development will 
need to reflect the objectives and policies of the Minerals Local Plans and 
Waste Local Plans or in cases affecting wharf capacity be subject to a 
Planning Obligation to secure equivalent wharfage capacity elsewhere 
within the Harbour. 

 
 

                                                 
17
 Land and Mineral management (2008). West Sussex Wharves and Railheads Study.  

49



Item 12 Appendix 1a 

 22 

 

Appendix 2: Guidance on meeting Eco-standards at Shoreham 
Harbour 
 
 

A.1  Eco-town Standards 
 
A1.1 The potential for Eco-town development at the Harbour is currently being 

investigated. The standards as outlined in ‘Planning Policy Statement: Eco-
towns – a supplement to Planning Policy Statement 1’ should be aspired to. 
The standards outlined in this document cover a wide range of topic areas. 
Below is a summary of the key sustainability requirements set out in the 
PPS (Refer to the PPS for the standards in full): 

 
§ Zero carbon in eco-towns: The definition of zero carbon in eco-towns 

means  that over a year the net carbon dioxide emissions from all energy 
use within the buildings on the eco-town development as a whole are 
zero or below. 

 
§ Climate Change adaptation: Future eco-towns should be Sustainable 

communities that are resilient to and appropriate for the changing 
climate. Eco-towns should deliver a high quality local environment and 
meet the standards on water, flooding, green infrastructure and 
biodiversity set out in this PPS, taking into account a changing climate 
for these, as well incorporating wider best practice on tackling 
overheating and impacts of a changing climate for the natural and built 
environment. 

 
§ Homes standards include:  

o Building for Life Silver Standard  
o Code 4 of the Code for Sustainable Homes (minimum)  
o Lifetime homes standards and space standards  
o Inclusion of real time energy monitoring systems, public 

transport information and high speed broadband access 
o Provision of at least 30 per cent affordable housing 
o High levels of energy efficiency in the fabric of the building 

(having regard to changes in building regulations and 
definition of zero carbon) 

o Achieve at least 70 per cent carbon reductions relative to 
current Building Regulations (Part L 2006) on the site of the 
housing development itself (Eco-towns as a whole must be 
zero carbon – see above) 

 
§ Healthy lifestyles: development should be well designed contributing to 

promoting and supporting healthier and more active living and reducing 
health inequalities. 

 
§ Green infrastructure: Forty per cent of the eco-town’s total area should 

be allocated to green space, of which at least half should be public – 

50



Item 12 Appendix 1a 

 23 

particular attention should be made to provision of local production of 
food from community, allotment and/or commercial gardens.  

 
§ Biodiversity: Eco-towns must deliver a net gain in biodiversity. 

 
§ Water: Eco-towns in areas of serious water stress should aspire to water 

neutrality, ie achieving development without increasing overall water use 
across a wider area. New development should: 

o be designed and delivered to limit the impact on water use 
o meet the water consumption requirement of Level 5 of the 

Code for Sustainable Homes or similar high standards of 
water efficiency (for non-domestic development). 

o Incorporate measures to improve water quality and manage 
surface water, groundwater and water courses to prevent 
flooding 

o Incorporate Sustainable Drainage Systems (SuDS) 
 

§ Flood risk management: Development should: 
o aim to reduce and avoid flood risk wherever practicable 
o not increase the risk of flooding elsewhere 
o ideally be located in flood zone 1  

 
§ Waste: New development should produce a sustainable waste 

resources plan setting out: 
o targets for waste and recycling should be substantially more 

ambitious than the 2007 national Waste Strategy targets for 
2020  

o how buildings will be designed to facilitate achievement of 
these targets, including the provision of waste storage 
arrangements  

o evidence that consideration has been given to the use of 
locally generated waste as a fuel source for combined heat 
and power (CHP) generation  

o how no construction, demolition and excavation waste is sent 
to landfill 

 
A.3  Brighton and Hove Standards: Sustainable Building Design 

Supplementary Planning Document (SPD) (2008) 
 
A3.1  Brighton and Hove’s adopted Sustainable Building Design Supplementary 

Planning Document (SPD) (2008) sets out recommendations for minimum 
standards of sustainable design in new development within the City.  

 
A3.2  The minimum standards recommended to developers in this SPD vary 

depending on the type of development (e.g. residential or commercial), its 
size (e.g. from individual homeowners to major development) and its 
location (e.g. Greenfield or Brownfield). The recommended standards 
include meeting certain code levels on the Code for Sustainable Homes and 
meeting certain BREEAM standards.  

 

51



Item 12 Appendix 1a 

 24 

A3.3   The SPD also recommends that for certain new developments, developers 
should complete Sustainability Checklists, Energy Reports as well as 
demonstrate various sustainability improvements that will be achieved 
through the development. Lastly, the following criteria are considered in 
relation to assessing the achievement of the recommended minimum 
standards: 

 

• site constraints, 

• technical viability, 

• financial viability: and 

• delivery of additional benefits. 
 
A3.4   The summary table below shows the minimum recommended standards as 

outlined in Brighton and Hove City Council’s adopted SPD. 
 

52



 

 25 

 

53



54



H
a
rb

o
u

r_
in

te
ri
m

_
b
o
u
n
d
a
ry

_
fi
n
a
l

(c
) 

C
ro

w
n

 C
o

p
y
ri

g
h

t.
 A

ll 
ri

g
h

ts
 r

e
s
e
rv

e
d
. 

L
ic

e
n

c
e

: 
1

0
0
0

2
0

9
9
9

, 
B

ri
g

h
to

n
 &

 H
o
v
e

 C
it
y
 C

o
u

n
c
il.

 2
0

1
0

. 
C

it
ie

s
 R

e
v
e
a

le
d
(R

) 
c
o
p

y
ri
g

h
t 

b
y
 T

h
e
 G

e
o

In
fo

rm
a

ti
o
n

(R
) 

G
ro

u
p
, 

2
0

1
0
 a

n
d
 C

ro
w

n
 C

o
p

y
ri

g
h

t 
(c

) 
A

ll 
ri

g
h

ts
 r

e
s
e

rv
e
d

.

¯
1

:1
5

,0
0

0
S

c
a
le

: 

55



56



ENVIRONMENT CABINET 
MEMBER MEETING 

Agenda Item 13 

 
Brighton & Hove City Council 

 

Subject: Rottingdean Character Statement 

Date of Meeting: 26 May 2011 

Report of: Strategic Director, Place 

Contact Officer: Name:  Sanne Roberts Tel: 29-2261      

 E-mail: sanne.roberts@brighton-hove.gov.uk 

Key Decision: No  

Wards Affected:  Rottingdean Coastal 

 
FOR GENERAL RELEASE 
 
1. SUMMARY AND POLICY CONTEXT: 

  
1.1 The report seeks approval of the Rottingdean Conservation Area Character 

Statement, following a positive public response to consultation.  The Character 
Statement has been welcomed as clearly defining the character and appearance 
of the conservation area, which needs to be preserved or enhanced.  This 
comprehensive appraisal, as now amended, will provide a sound basis for 
making development control decisions and may prompt future initiatives to 
improve the appearance of the area.   

   
1.2 A good deal of support was also received to the recommended changes to the 

conservation area boundary and to the making of an Article 4(1) Direction to 
control potentially unsympathetic alterations to dwelling houses.    

 
2. RECOMMENDATIONS:  
 
2.1 That the Rottingdean Conservation Area Character Statement be adopted, 

subject to any minor grammatical and non-material alterations agreed with the 
relevant Cabinet Member. 

 
2.2 That an Article 4(1) Direction be made for dwellings in the area under the Town 

and Country Planning (General Permitted Development) Order 1995, as 
recommended by the Rottingdean Conservation Area Appraisal and detailed in 
annex 3. 

 
2.3 That the proposed boundary changes, as set out in the Character Statement and 

illustrated in annex 4, be approved and formally designated under section 69 of 
the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990. 

 
3. RELEVANT BACKGROUND INFORMATION/CHRONOLOGY OF KEY 

EVENTS: 
 
3.1 Rottingdean conservation area was designated in 1970.  Since designation, the 

conservation area and its boundary have not been reviewed, and no up-to-date 
character statement therefore exists. 

57



3.2 The character statement (as amended following consultation), which is appended 
at annex 2, is in line with current guidance from English Heritage (2006).  It is 
informed by historic research and on-site analysis.  It describes the overall 
character of the area and notes four distinct character areas.  The review 
suggests a number of amendments to the boundary, in order to better reflect the 
area of special historic and architectural interest.  An Article 4(1) Direction to 
control incremental alterations to dwelling houses within the area is 
recommended, noting a threat to traditional architectural features such as timber 
sliding sash windows.  The proposed Article 4(1) Direction is appended in annex 
3, and the boundary changes in annex 4. 

 
4. CONSULTATION 
 
4.1 A draft Rottingdean Conservation Area Character Statement was approved for 

public consultation at the Cabinet Member’s meeting on 10 March 2011.  Formal 
public consultation took place between 14 March 2011 and 24 April 2011.  
Copies of the draft statement were made available on the Council’s website, at 
City Direct Offices and at Rottingdean Library.  Local residents, businesses, 
Ward Councillors, South Downs National Park Authority, Rottingdean Parish 
Council, Rottingdean Preservation Society and other local and national amenity 
societies, English Heritage and other key stakeholders were consulted.  Posters 
were displayed in the area, and articles placed in the local newsletters 
‘Rottingdean Village News’ and ‘The Deans’.  The statement was also reported to 
the Council’s Conservation Advisory Group (CAG). 

 
 Summary of Response to Consultation 
 
4.2 In total, 21 responses were received.  12 of these were from individual residents 

in Rottingdean.  Comments were also received from:  Rottingdean Parish Council 
(RPC), Rottingdean Preservation Society (RPS), Councillor Lynda Hyde, East 
Sussex County Archaeologist, Conservation Advisory Group (CAG), English 
Heritage, Society for the Protection of Ancient Buildings (SPAB), South Downs 
Society and Catholic Church of Our Lady of Lourdes. 

 
4.3 The responses broadly support the Rottingdean Conservation Area Appraisal 

and its recommendations, including the proposed boundary amendments and 
Article 4(1) Direction.  The main areas of response concerned (i) the proposed 
Article 4 Direction, (ii) the proposed boundary changes, (iii) flint walls, and (iv) 
traffic, and are outlined below and discussed in more detail in Annex 1. 

 
4.4 The making of an Article 4 Direction received wide support from the RPS, SPAB, 

South Downs Society, East Sussex County Archaeologist, CAG, English 
Heritage and 3 residents, whilst concerns were also raised by 3 residents.  It 
should be noted that a direction would provide the additional control to ensure 
careful consideration of alterations to historic properties in the area, and it is 
recommended to progress this proposal. 

 
4.5 With regard to the boundary review, the proposed amendments received general 

support from the RPC, RPS, residents, South Downs Society, East Sussex 
County Archaeologist, CAG and English Heritage. 

 

58



4.6 No clear consensus was evident for the area on the north side of Nevill Road 
(Area D).  It was acknowledged that this area is heavily altered and retains a 
poor quality public realm.  However, RPC and RPS felt the interest of the site as 
the former Electric Works, and the interest of numbers 18, 20 and 22 Nevill Road 
should be recognised, and Councillor Lynda Hyde felt the interest of the sorting 
office site should be recognised and the site remain within the conservation area. 

 
4.7 The site of the former Electric Works and its immediate surroundings are of poor 

quality and retain no architectural or historic merit.  No reasoned case was made 
for its inclusion.  Although the neighbouring flint terrace (numbers 18, 20 and 22 
Nevill Road) is of some townscape merit, this would be most appropriately 
acknowledged through inclusion on the list of buildings of local architectural of 
historic interest.  It is therefore recommended to remove the area of modern 
development to the north of Nevill Road from the conservation area.  The sorting 
office – formerly Rottingdean National Mixed School – which is surrounded by a 
historic flint wall, is proposed for retention in the conservation area. 

 
4.8 The RC Church of Our Lady of Lourdes objected to the inclusion of the 

remainder of its grounds (Area B); however it is still deemed appropriate to 
rationalise the current boundary in this area and to extend protection to the flint 
wall around the Church’s grounds.  Indeed, there is significant support from other 
respondents for the protection of flint walls in the area.  The importance of flint 
walls is acknowledged and has been reflected in the revised text for the 
character statement.  It is recommended the walls are further protected through 
inclusion on the local list and through designation of the western section of the 
flint wall to Dean Court Road (which the existing boundary abuts) as part of the 
conservation area. 

 
4.9 There was no local support for the inclusion of Rottingdean Public Hall or West 

Street, but support for the inclusion of Golden Square (Area E).  It is therefore 
proposed to include Golden Square.  The Public Hall and buildings on West 
Street form an important part of the setting of the conservation area, which is 
reflected in the revised character statement.  It is proposed that they are 
considered for inclusion on the local list. 

 
4.10 In summary, the proposed boundary changes are as follows:  The rear spaces 

and gardens associated with properties on The Green (Area A), the remaining 
grounds of the RC Church of Our Lady of Lourdes (Area B), Golden Square 
(Area E) and the western portion of the flint wall on Dean Court Road are 
recommended for inclusion.  A strip of land forming the rear gardens to 
properties on The Rotyngs (Area B) and an area of poor quality development to 
the north of Nevill Road (Area D) are proposed for removal.  

 
4.11 Traffic was highlighted as having a negative impact on the area.  This Statement 

is not the appropriate place for in depth discussion of traffic issues.  The 
Statement highlights that traffic levels do have a harmful impact on the character 
of the area, and will note that all future traffic management will need to be 
sensitively handled.  

 
 
 

59



5. FINANCIAL & OTHER IMPLICATIONS: 
 
 Financial Implications: 
 
5.1 Costs associated with the adoption of the Rottingdean Conservation Area 

Character Statement will comprise staff time and press notices in the Brighton & 
Hove Leader and London Gazette. These will be met from within the Design and 
Conservation Team’s existing revenue budget. 

 
 Finance Officer Consulted: Karen Brookshaw   Date: 10/05/11 
 
 Legal Implications: 
 
5.2 The Council has a duty under section 69 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and 

Conservation Areas) Act 1990 from time to time to review its area to determine 
whether any parts or further parts should be designated as conservation areas.  
There is no statutory requirement for public consultation prior to designation but it 
is highly desirable that such consultation should take place.  The proposed 
Article 4(1) Direction would be made under the Town and Country Planning 
(General Permitted Development) Order (1995) and provides a means through 
which to fulfil the Council’s obligation to preserve and enhance the character and 
appearance of the conservation area.  No adverse human rights implications are 
considered to arise from the Report. 

 
 Lawyer Consulted:   Alison Gatherer   Date: 10/05/11 
 

Equalities Implications: 
 
5.3 None have been identified. An Equalities Impact Assessment has not been 

carried out because the report does not concern matters of new primary policy. 
 

Sustainability Implications: 
 
5.4 The proposals in this report have no substantial impact upon the four priorities of 

the UK’s Sustainable Development Strategy.  
 
Crime & Disorder Implications:  
 

5.5 None have been identified. 
 

Risk and Opportunity Management Implications:  
 
5.6 The failure to maintain the character and appearance of the area and its historic 

buildings could lead to significant adverse publicity for the Council. 
 
 Corporate / Citywide Implications: 
 
5.7 The statement accords with the corporate priority to protect the environment 

whilst growing the economy.  More specifically the guidance is a response to the 
Council’s priority to protect the historic built environment and to secure new uses 
for redundant historic buildings. 

60



6. EVALUATION OF ANY ALTERNATIVE OPTION(S):  
  

6.1 None considered. 
 
7. REASONS FOR REPORT RECOMMENDATIONS 

  
7.1 Rottingdean Conservation Area does not have an up-to-date, in depth character 

appraisal.  A review of the Conservation Area would accord with the Council’s 
adopted Conservation Strategy (2003), and with national and Government 
guidance (English Heritage Guidance 2006, Planning Policy Statement 5: 
Planning for the Historic Environment).  

 
7.2 The responses to public consultation are broadly supportive. The 

recommendation to adopt the Statement and implement its proposals has taken 
account of the representations received during public consultation and the 
changes made to the document are a result of those comments.  The making of 
an Article 4(1) Direction will help preserve the character and appearance of the 
dwellings in the village through controlling incremental change. 

 
 
 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION 
 
Appendices: 
 
1. Analysis of consultation response 
 
2. Rottingdean Conservation Area Character Statement with proposed 

amendments highlighted 
 

3. Proposed Article 4(1) Direction 
 

4. Plan showing proposed boundary extensions 
 

Documents In Members’ Rooms  
 
None 
 
Background Documents 
 
1. Letters of representation 
 
2. Minutes of the Conservation Advisory Group - 5 April 2011 

61



62



���������	�

���������	
��	����
�
�	������	����
�

	�����
���������������������	
�����
������������
���
��������������������
�����
��������
������������
��������������
��������������
��������������������
�� 
����!�
��� ����
������
��"!����#!����$���� �������
���!�������
�
�������
��������
��
�����
�!�%�
������%���$�������#��������� 
����&
���� 
����!�� 
����!��
������
��
�����
��
����������'���������� ��'��������������
�����������
��(���"��!�
��
"
�������
�
��
������������
�	��
	��	�
�	������
�����������
����������
		�����
�����������������������������������������)�&������
�*�

•  ���
����
������&������
�����������������
��+�����
������������������,�
������������� �� ��'�� 
����&
���� 
����!��$���� �������
���!�
������
�
�����������%����

• (����������������������
���
���
���
������������
�����������
��������������
������������������������������������
�����������������!��
������
�������
����������

• (����������������-�
��
��
��������������
��������
�����.�/�����������������
��
��
����/����0�����������������������������/!�����!����������������/��
���
������
�����
���
�������/�
���������

• (������������
/1������������
��
��������
���2��

��������������
����
�
(�����������
���*�3�����������)�&������
��������
����������������������������
��������������3����������
������
������������������������������
��������������������
�����������������
�������������3���������������
���
���������/����
��������������
�/���
���4��������
����������!2������5�
���2��

��������������������
�����������������
����
�
����������
�������������
���
����������
�
�������������������/���������
�������������
6
��������������������
�������������������
�
�����
�
7��������
���������
���
�������������
�
�����������������
����/��������
���������������
��������������������
��
������!��
��
�������������������0����
������&������
���
�
�	��������������
	,�����
�����������������������������������
�
����/
�����!�������*�

• 8�����
��������������
������
����������������/
�����!���������������������
����������,������������������� �� 
����&
���� 
����!��$���� �������
���!�
������
�
��������%�����$�������#���������

• (������������9�����
���������������
��������
������
����
��#
��������
����
/��������������������
���
���
�������������

• 3�������������
��(���"��!�
��"
������
/1�������
�������
�
�����������
��

����������������
��������
�����������'�����������������#������������/!���!�
�����
��
����������������
������
���������������
���������!����������
�����
�
��������
��������

• (����������������$�������#����������
�
�������
����
��6�������
��������
������&��

• ���������� ���������
��������/
������������
�����6�������
���/
�����!�
������&��������
����������������������
�����������/
��������������������
����/����	+��
:�����

�6�������
����������������
�������������
������$��������
;
�0���������
�����������������������������
������
��"!����#!��������������
���������
�������
������
������������

63



���������	�

• )�����
��������
������������������ 
����&
���� 
����!�����$�������
#������������������
������
������������%
����� 9������$�������#�������������
����
������
�������������
������������/����#������������� 
����&
���� 
����!�
���������
������
������������;���� ������������$��

• 3����
��������
�������
�!�%�
���9�����
������������'������<������
����
/���������������������������
������
����������
��������������������/!�
���
���
����������
�������������0������������������������
�������

�
(�����������
���*�
�
�������=����������/����
�������!������������������ �������������������������
����
��������������
����������������������������	8���������!�������0��������������������
���������������������������������
��������������������������������
�������������������3���
���������
�������
���������
��������
������
����
��#
���������3������
��������/��
���������
�������!������������������
�������
���������
���������������
����������.��
���������������������
�
�������=�3�����������/
�����!���
������������������
��
���"��!�
��"
���������
�
���
������
��������
������3����������
��
����������������
��������
����������0��
�
����
�����������/
�����!���3������0�
���������������5����
�������������
�������������
#������������/!���!���������
�������
���
���
����!��������������������������
����
#
��������������������������������!��
�����
�����������/
�����!������
���
���������������
��������
������������������
�����
��
�����������������������������!����
�����/����
����
���������������=�����/��
�����3����������
��
������������������
���������
�
�������2�3����������
������������������������������/��/���������������������
����
��
�������
��������
��������������0��!��
������������������
����
�����
������������
�
�������
�������!��
���
��������
�����������������
���������
��������������
�������
����/!�������
�����!�
������6���
�������0����������������
��������
���������
���
����������
�������������������/��������
����
�
�������2�3���6�������
���������������������������������������

����/����������
��
�
�����
�������������������
��������������������3�����������������������������������
��
����
������������������!������
���/�������
�����������������	8,:��������������
���
�
�����������������������������3����������
����
������������������
���������
���������
�
��������
����������������
�������������������������������������5
������
���������������
7����������
���
�����������������������������9�����!�
�������
��������
������������
��
������
�
6��/����	+��
:�����

�6�������
����
�����������
�����������
���������
���������3��!�
����
���
�����������
����������
����������������������9�����!���3�������������������
�
��������
������0��������������������������
��6�������
��������������������#����
 �����������
��������
���������3��!���������
�������!�/������/1�����
���������
����
3����������
�0�
�����
�
���������
�����������������������������������
�������������
������
�
���������!���!��
�
3���������
�������
�����
����������
�����������������

��9�����!�������
�����
�����������
����
��6�������
�����������
��������
���������������������
��������
���������������������
������3���������
�����
���������������
�������
��������
��������
������!����������
�
������
����������
�/���
������������������������

64



���������	�

3��� 
������(��������������
����������
������6���
����>����� ��

����������������
����
����/
�����!��������7�������
�
���������������������������������������
��������
��
������
�
�������=�3����������
��
��������
����
�������������
��
��;���� ������
��������/����
#�����/�������
����
�������������
��
��%
����� 9�������7�����������
������
��������
����������
��������
��������������������
���������%
����� 9������
�
�
������������'������<����������
����������
�������
���
�����
����������������
����
�������0��������������������������
�������������������
���������������
�����������
���������������������
����������������������������
��������������
���������
�������
��������
�����������
����������
�����
��
������
�������������������������
����7������
��
���
���������
���������
����3���9�����!�
������������
��������������
��������������
��
�����
��������
���������������������������������������
�����7������
��
�����/���	
�
'������<����������������������
�������������
����������
������
���
���������������
/
�����!���������������
��������������
���������
���
�
���

�� ���!�����
?�����
��������@�������������� ��������� 
����&
���� 
����!�������
������������!�
�������
���������A��������������������
����������������
�������������
���/��������������
��������
�����
����/�����������
�������#���� ��������������9�����!��
��������
�
(�����������
���*�3����
��������
����������������� ��������������
�������������
�
����
����
����������������������6�������������������/���������������������
����������
��
��������������
�������
��������
���������3������
��������/�����������
�����������
�������!�������������������5��9����������������
����/������������!���������������
��������
������
����
�����
���������������������
�������
��������
��������
�
"���
��������
3������
�������
���������������
���������������
����������������������/!�)�
����
������������������,������������������� 
����&
���� 
����!��������������
������
�
���������
������������������������
��&�����
�����
����������������
��
�����������
�
��������
������������������
�������������
����
�����
�����
�
(�����������
���*�7�������
�
���������������������
����/�������������������
��������
��
������������������������������
������!���B�������������������������
�������
�/��
�
����������
���
�������������
�
�
������������������
��	����
����	����
�
�	���

• ����/���0��������/��
����������!������!��
�����
����

•  ����
�����9������������������

• 7�������������������
������
�!��������������������
��������������
�����

• >��
��������������������������������!�
�������������
�������������
���

• �
������
���������������������������!��
���������������������

• '
���������
��������%���������
���
��0�������/�����������!�

• "�����
������
��������%����������/���������������������!����������
�
��������������

�
(�����������
���*�3����������/�����
����������������������
����� ���������
����������
�������������
��������������
���
���!���������������������������
�
�������

65



66



�

���������	�
�����
�	����
�
�	
������

�
�������	�
���
���
����������������	�������������������
��	������������	������������
�
�
���
��������

�
����	������
���		����
�
� �� ��	�����
�!����
�"��������#�$�		���
�����������	�
���%&����	��#�'��� 	������	�����
� ��"��������������	�
�!�	 �������������	 (��)	 �������
�"����*�! �� ����"�
���� ��	���
#��&� 	 �� ���"������� ��)	 !��	���*�!��
��� � � �� "����*� 	��&���	��� �	� 	 �� ���� 	�� 	 ��
��)	 +� �	� �� ��!�����	� ��� 	 �����##�+� ��
����"�
�
� ���
��������� �����
� 	����!�����
�
,�*��
���$�		���
�������"����������&���	��	����	���#���	 ���)���)�
������&&)��	*+�
��
� ����� ��� �� 
��	���	���� #��� 	�)���	��� $�		���
���� ��&������� �� �),�	��	���� "�������
! �� +�
����	���),)�,���
�"����&��	���� �	��#�����+���&����������
��	���	���		��&��	�
������	��#��&�	 ��)�,������)�,�	�����#�'��� 	�����
���"�����
�
� ��������"�	���������!���
������	�
�������	�&,����
�����-	���&�������	 ��������#�
	 �� ��	�����"������+�����)
����	 ����� ��	���	���
�� ��.����+����!�������#���%����������
�������	��	 �����	���
�!��	�/0�����"�	�����������
��������� *�.��� ��1���
�
�&����	� �	��  ���	���� ����	�+� 	 �� ����� ���	����� ��� ���	�
� ,)��
����+� �� ������*� ���	�
�
,)��
�������
������� �������������	�#���	�����������2�#)�	 ������ �������������	�#���	����
�����+�3��� �
)��
�������	�&��)&��	����
��� ���	�
�,)��
����/$�		���
����4��
&���1�
������	�����	���&&�
��	���)���)�
�������5)� ��#�	 �������
�!����
��)���)�
����	 ��
"������� !��� 
������	�
� ��� ���	� �#� 	 �� ��)	 � ��!��� 6�	������ ���%� ��� ������ 3����
/78��	��������	�����������	�����.��� ��1��
�
��������"�	������������
�#���
����9������������	�
������

���
���������
������
�����������
��


���
��������		�����
������
�

��������������������	�������������
��
�:���� ���
��)&��	�
���%�� 	��
�#������
�������� 	 �� 9�������� ��	����	:� �#�$�		���
����0�����"�	��������+�
��
�&�%������&&��
�	�����#����	��#)	)���&�����&��	��
�
����������
��
�����	�
����
���

�
.�������0 ����	�����
����
��������		����
�
$�		���
������&����������),�	��	����
�!����
�"������+�!�	 �	 ��&�
��"���"������������
�	� �	��  ���	+� ��
� ��&�� ��	��� 3�	 � ���	)�*� 
�"����&��	� ��� �	�� #������� � ��	 �)� �
��	)�	�
�,*�	 �����+�	 ��"������:��
�"����&��	�!���,���
����&����*���������)�	)��+���
�
�� �)&,��� �#� #��&�	��
�� ��
� ���"��	�
� �����)�	)���� ,)��
����� �)�"�"��� � ��	��+� 	 ��
"������� ,���&�� ���)���� !�	 � ��	��	�� ��
� !��	���+� ! �� ,)��	� ������  �)���� ���	��
�
���)�
�	 ����������� ��"���������&�������	 ��"������&&)��	*���
�����#�����	� ��	�����
� ����	�����
�

Item 13 Appendix 2

67



�

� ��������"�	�����������"���� 	 �� ��	�����������#�	 ��"�������� �� ��&�
��"��� �	���	�
��		�����)�"�"��+���
����������*��#����������#��&;����	��
����	 ����� ��	���	�!�	 �	 ��
������<�!�	 ��	��� )�� ���
����������&�����/0 ��������1�(���	)�	�
�	��	 �����	 ����
�
� ��,)��	���"����&��	����"����
+���&��������	�� 	(%��	����)����#�"�����)������		�����
#��)���
� ���)�
� 	 �� ��� � �	���	+� ����
� 
�	�� �
� ����
������ ��	)�	�
� ��� ��
�"�
)���
���
������	�����)�
�	 ����������
�#��& �)������
����"��	�
�#��&�,)��
�����	��	 ��
���	 �� ��� �	����� "��)��� �� ������� ��� ������	�
� ,*� 	 ��)����#� 	��
�	������&�	������+�
���	��)����*���!�
��"����	*��#�#���	+����
�����,�
����	 ���
=����	���#��&�	����,�8��

�
� ��� ����	����#�$�		���
�������������*����%�
�	���	�����
��������		������� ��"����������
"��!�
� ��� 	 �����	�8	��#������
�!����
+�! �� ���	�� ��� ��� �&&�
��	�� ��&��
����#�
	 ��"������:���)��������	������
�	 �������)�	)������	���
��	���#�	 ���������-�����	��)���+�
	 ���	����*(�����
�'�����������	��	 ��!��	��#�	 �������#��&������&���	��	�,��%
����
	��"��!�����	 ��"���������$�		���
����4��
&����<���	�)�����	���%*�����<�#��&�����	��%����
���
&��%�#��&�!�	 ���	 ��"���������
�! ���������� ����$�		���
����#��&�'��� 	��+�
��
����������*��������	�
�!�	 �	 ��"������:���
��	�	*�����
�

�����

�
�!��&����%��
���#�#���	�!����)��
��������	�)�	�������$�		���
�������������������
�
���

�	������������	 ����&����)����	+�#���
�#���	������#���	����	 ���
�#��&�	 ��
�)�#������#����)� �
�#���
����� �*����������)���������>����
�� ������
�	��
�	�� �"��
��&�8	)����#�! �	��!��	 ���
����
���
�� ��*�,���%���	�������8����
���'��� �
��,,��������#���	��	 �	�����������	�
�#��&�	 ��,��� ���� �*������&��	 ���
�
��)�
�
����� ����
)��	����������,*�	 �����+���
��������	�
����������?)�����
��
�
@���������
�#���
�#���	��	��
�
�	��,��)��
�#��� )&,������		����+�,�������
�!�������
A���	���,,����!�����#	���)��
����	 ����	 ���
��
	 ����	)�*+����,�	 � )&,�����
�
����
�,)��
�������'�	 �%��
���#�#���	�����,��� ����
B����	�	���8�����&�����#�	 ��
� ��*�,���%���	��������� �����������
����		�����������
������������*�#�)�
���� �� ���
�	�	)��������	������-	�!������	��)����*����)�������	 ����	����	 ����	)�*���
�
���	��)�
�	 ��)� �	��	 ��&�
��
	 ����	)�*���C����&���#�	 ������
��	� �)���+�	 ��
#���	�!���%�����
�	��#��&�������*�#�		����9�?)����:��#�#���	����&����#��%����#�#���	�!����
�������&�	�&��������
����	 ��&��	���=���	��������������������
������������
�
A)�	 ���"����	*�������
)��
����#���	!��%�	 ��)� �
�##�����������	 ��
����	*+�
��)��������
��	��%��/	 ���������	�! �� �	 ��#���	���������
1��#�	 ��#���	�+���
�	 ����&��
&��	��:������)�+�	�8	)��+���&����	���+���&�����	��	���
�&�	 �
��#�����	�����
�
� ��	*�����#�#���	�)��
����$�		���
����<���
�	 ��"����	*�	 ������<�����8	��&��*�
�&���	��	�	��	 ��� ����	����#�	 ��������"�	���������/A��)����1���� ��&��	������
&���� �&������)�����	 ������+�
)��	��	 ��)����#����������
����
�	�&����+���
�
���	��,)	���	��������	��	� ��	������
��	�	*��#�	 ��������
�
����
��������������������
�����������������������������������������������
����������������
����
�������		������������������� �
���������!�

���
��������������"��#
����������������
������
������
������������"�

Item 13 Appendix 2

68



�

C	 ��������� ������� �)���)�
� 	 ��������"�	���� ����� (� 	 �����*���� #���
�����	�*�����
$��
B6�!���
�� $��
� (� #��&� �� �	����� �
��� 	�� 	 �� "������+� 
��	���)�� ���� �	� ������*�
#��&� �)���)�
���� �),)�,��� 
�"����&��	� ! ��� "��!�
� #��&� 	 �� �)���)�
����
 ���	������� ������	&��	����
��������	 �	�#���%�'��������������� ��	�������������
����
	��	 ��������	�������� ��.�����	 �	���&�����*�#��&�	 ���
����#�	 �� ��	�����"���������
A)�	 ��� ����	&��	�� ��
� ������ ������� 	�� 	 �� ���	 � �#� ���� ���	� 
�� ��	� � ���� 	 ���
 ��	����������
��	+�,)	�������"��	 ���������	��#�	 ����		�����#�	 ��������"�	�����������
� ���� ������� ��
� 	 �� �)���)�
����
�!����
� #��&��� 9������,)##��:� 	 �	��&� �������
	 �� ��	����� "������:�����������*�! ���*��)���� ��		������
�&���	���� ��"��)���,���%� #��&�
������� �����),)�,������!	 ������
�
$�		���
�����������	������	��������%��!�	 �	 �����;�	 ������������#�! �� ���#�)����
�
	 ��"������:�� ��	�����
�"����&��	���� ��"���������
���������"��!�
�����������	����#��&�
�)���)�
���� ���	���+����"�
�������	������������#��������
�
���	�����'��%���)�
���
���� ������*�
�
#
��������������
������
�������	���������
�������
�
$�		���
���� ��%��*��������	�
����)�
��� #��� �!�	�����������	�	 ��������/	 ���)����	�
!������	�� ����� ��&��
����#� 	 ��+� ��
� #��&�
�	 �����*���)�����#�!�	��� ��� 	 ��"�������
)�	��� ���
1�� � � �� "������� ����� �	� 	 �� =)��	���� �#� 	 �� ���	 (��)	 � ��)	�� �#� A��&���
$��
B��� ��	���	���
� ��	��������	(!��	���)	����������	 ��
�!��������&���� ����	����
	 �����#���	����� �!�����	 ����2
���	 ��5���/����5���3���.7�6C1+���
��	����	 )��
��%��*� 	 �	� 	 ���,���	*� 	��
��!�,��	����#��*� 	��� ����!�������

�	������,���#�	� 	�� �	��
����	���+���
���
��"���#���
�"����&��	�������	 ����� ��	���	�,�	!����	 ����������
�
� �����
�
� �� ��&�� $�		���
���� ��� �#� ��8��� ������� ��
� 	������	��� ��� 	 �� 9!��
�
� "����*� �#�
$�	�:��������:�� �� �� ���
����&��������$�		���
����!�����!��
�,*�7����.�
!����#�
D��	+�#�	 ����#�	 ����8���D���������
���$����
�
����	 ��
�&��
�*��)�"�*��#���������
9$�	����
���:+��	�!���,*�	 ���	�&�������
*����&����"��������#����	������������+�!�	 ���
�&����� )�� ���� ��&�����!���	����	�
�,*��)� �#��&�4�����&�
��4���������
�
�	��
�������	 ����	���#��������������8���� )�� +�	 ���)����	�� )�� ����
�
���	�
�	���	�
5������	�� � � �� ��"�� 
�	��� 	�� 	 �� �3	 � ���	)�*+� ��
� 	 �� 	�!��� ��
� � ������ !����
����	�)�	�
� ���	 ������*��2	 ����	)�*;����,�,�*� #����!���� 	 ������������#������������
	�!��������������
�
�)����� 	 �� �)�
��
� E�����4��+� $�		���
���� !��� �		��%�
� ,*� A���� � ���
���� ���
��"������������������)���������		��%�����2��+�&��*�"���������	��%���#)������	 ��� )�� �
,��#�*+�,)	������ �
�! ���	 �����
������	�#����	���	���7"�
������#�	 ��������	����,�������
��� 	 �� ���%� ��
� ����%�
� �	���!��%� ��� 	 �� � )�� �� � '*� 	 �� ��	 � ���	)�*� ���
� ���
$�		���
����,������
�	���	�����	�#�)��
�##����	�&�������
�
�����	�� �	�� ���8�&�	*� 	�� 	 �� ���+� $�		���
����!��� ���&����*� ��� �����)�	)���� "���������
5��*� �#� 	 �� "���������!�)�
�  �"�� �)����&��	�
� 	 ���� �����)�	)����!����!�	 � ��&��
#�� ����� �A��� �8�&���+� ��� 	 ����	 ����	)�*+�� �&����	��&��+� �
��"������ � ���+���
���
���#���	����
�!������	��!�����#������%,��	����
�

�����������<	

����������

������������
�������������

���������,���!

Item 13 Appendix 2

69



�

-�� 	 �� ��	 � ��
� ��	 � ���	)�*+� �	� ��� ���)	�
� 	 �	� �&)������� ����� �)����&��	�
� 	 ��
&��������	�&�	������&������ �������	�$�		���
������������	��	 ����!��	�����	����	 ��
���##�� ,�	!���� '��� 	��� ��
� 6�! �"��+� ��
� 	 ���#���� ���"�
�
� ��� �
���� ����	� �	�
! �� �	���&)��������
�������
���5��*��#�	 ��"���������!������"��"�
�����&)����������
���	��,��
����
���)� ����	��+�����+�!������
������	�+�! ���	�!����!����&)����
�,��%�
�)	�������	!��%��#�	)�����������	�
�*�������	�	 �����#���	�!�	 �&��*��#�	 ��"�������
������	����� � � �� �&)������� 	��
�� ��� $�		���
���� !��� �&&��	�����
� ,*� D������:�� 9��
�&)�����:������:��
�

����������������	������
#���������
����
��
�������
������������
���������
��

�������
��������

�
-	� ��� ���)	�
� 	 �	� 	 �� ������ �#� !��
&����� ��� '������ ����� !���� )��
� 	�� ������� 	��
�&)���������� ���)����	�!��
&����!�������	�
�������3+�	 ��&����!��������	������)�	���
�������'*���
���	��#)	)������%�
�)����	���+�����	�!���������
��#�)����	����������� ����
�������� !���� #�����*� #)�
�
� ,*� 	 �� 5��?)��� �#� �,����"���*� ��� �
��(�+� ��	 �)� � �	�
��&����
�
��)��
���� ����)����	��	 �	�	 ��!��
&����,*�	 �������	������
*����#��&�
���
�*&,����� ����� ��� 	 �� "�������� � -	� �����!�&���	����
�,*� 	 ��$�		���
����������"�	����
�����	*���
�
A��&� 	 ��&�
� ��	 � ���	)�*� ��� ����� �	� 	 �� ������� �#� � ��.����� ��
������0�)�	�
$��
�!���)��
������F)�%���')�����.��)�
���� ����	������)
���	 ��������*����	�
�'���
�
A�&��*���&,+���
�!��� ���	�)��
�#���,)����� ���	 ���
����� �� ��'���
�#�&��*�!�������
�&���	��	�������#�&��*;�! ��"����)��*��!��
�&)� ����
���
�������	*����$�		���
����
��
�	 ���)���)�
��������+�����)
����,�	 ���!����)�����
�������
����� ���8��	������#�
�)� � ��� �&����	� ���
�!�����F)�%��� #�&��*�<� �	� �� 	�&��! ��� �)� ����(���#��&��	�
����������!����&)� �������)	�
�(�������	��)����*�)�)�)����
�
$�		���
���� ��&����
� ���&����*� �����)�	)���� 	 ��)� �)	� 	 �� ���	(&�
��"��� �����
+�
!�	 �#�)��#��&�������	�����)	��#�	 ��"�������	 ��)� �	��	 ���
	 ����	)�*��4��	���
��
A��&;�0�)�	�A��&;�7��	���
��A��&���
�0 ���������A��&���� ������#���	�	 ��#�)�(!�*�
&��������
�"�
�������
*��"�
��	����	 ����	 ����	)�*����
�
� ��"������������,���&�����)����!�	 �
�*(	��������"���	����#��&�	 �����!���������	��	�
'��� 	������ ���!�����
�
�,*�	 ������	�)�	�����#�	 ��6�! �"����)����%�����
�������
	 �� ����	� ��� ��3��� � �� �)&,��� �#� ��	��������� !���� ��	�,��� �
� �"��� 	 �� #����!����

���
��� 	�� ��	��� #��� 	 �� 	�)���&� 	��
�+� ����)
���� ���� ,�	 ���� &�� ����+� ����	����
�"��	����
�	���� ������-����
��������!�*����+��)����������	��	�����	 �����+������,���#�*�
������	�
�'��� 	�����
�$�		���
����� ��������
�,*�'��� 	��� ��"��	���5���)��G��%+�
��
����%��&�
�9
�

*���������:+�	 ������!����������
�"�������������*(����	�)�	�
��������
� ������!�*������
�=)�	�#�"��*�������	�����$�&������#�	 ��	���%������	����,�������! ���
	 ��	�
������)	����
�
$�		���
����  �
� ����� ,���&�� �� ���)����  �)�	� #��� ��	��	�� ��
� !��	���;� ���%���� ��
?)��	�����	����	�"��	��	 �� )�	�����
�,)�	����#����� ,�)�����'��� 	������ �����
�	��	 ��
����	�)�	���� �#� ������ ����
������ ���)�
� 	 �� .����� 	 ��)� �)	� 	 �� ��	 � ��
� �
	 �
���	)����+� �#�! �� �&��*� �)�"�"�� /���� �
=����	� ,�81�� � � �� ��������
� ���)����	*� �#�
$�		���
���� !�	 � ��	��	�+� 	�)���	�� ��
� 	 �� &�

��� �������� ���%�� ��
� 	�� �� ����� ���

���������'������

���������4

���������7

���������	��	 ����	���
	 �

���������� ���8��	��8	��	+�
����	�����#����"�����
���"����#�
������"�	�����#�	 ��,)��������)�
�
�����! ���� ���*�	�	��,��

�	��&���
�

Item 13 Appendix 2

70



�

���)��	���+�#��&���2���������	���

3�����
������&����	��	��&������	�,�������
��	�+�
7
!��
�')���(H�������
�$)
*��
�D�����������	 ��&��	�#�&�)���
�
'*� 	 �� 	�&�� �#� 	 �� ���
(��������#	�C�
������ �)�"�*�5��� /5��� �1+� &��*� �#� 	 ��
����
� ������	����  �
� �����
*� ,���� ,)��	� ��
� 	 �� #��&� �#� 	 �� "������� !��� ������*�
��	�,��� �
;�!�	 ���#�����������#�,)��
���������
*��"�
��	�������	 ����� ��	���	���
�	 ��
�������������	����#���	�������	��	 ��������	��	 �����	 ���0�&��������!�	 �	 ����2
�
��	 ��5���/5���31���
� ��	�����C��&����/5���2�<���
�+�,���!1�� �!���&���#�	 ��
��	��� � ������ 	 �	� 	��%� ������ ���)�
� 	 �� �����+� ��� #)�	 ��� ����
� ����
������
���	��)�
�	��,��,)��	���
��8	��
�
��
�

�
�&����	� 	 ����	�,��� �
� #����)�,����������#� 	 ����� ��	���	+� 	 �� �	�	��*� �	��),*���
!���,)��	����	 ������*��
	 ����	)�*���C��������*���&�
�A���
���)�����
�����	�)�	�
����
������������
����+��	�!������)���������� ����,*���23���-�������$�		���
������ ����!���
��	�,��� �
��	�	 ��������	*+�,)	�������	�
�	��	 �����	 ��#�	 ��"������������
��/���#���	�
� �!�� ��� 	 �� ��
�� C�� 5��� (� 5��� 21�� � �	� 	 ��� ����	� 	 �� ������	� �	� �),*���
�������	��*��� ����	��%��"���	 ��,)��
���������
�
����	 �������&&)��	*��#�	 ��C�
����#��	�5��	 ��!�����	�,��� �
� ���$�		���
���� ���
�
�2+�!�	 �	 ���)����	����"��	������
�����
3����� �����"��	�� �������&����
�	 ��
#��)��#���0�	 �����!��� ������	 ������+�)�	�������!���	 ������ )�� �!�����������	�
�
����
������ ���)����	���
�
�$�&���0�	 ������� �����#�C)����
*��#���)�
��������
�
����
�
��
�
�#	��� 4���
� 4��� -+� 	 �� 
������� �#� � ���� #��&���� ��
� 	�� �����#����	� � ������ ���
$�		���
���+�!�	 �	 ��������#�&��*��#�	 ��#��&�	��
����
��)���)�
����#��&���
���� ��
����� �#� #��&�� ��� 	 �� �
3��� ��
� 	�� ���"������� �#� &��*� #��&� ,)��
����� 	�� ���&����*�
����
��	����)���� ��)
���0�����!��������#� 	 �� #���	+�! ���� 	!�� #��&���,����� ��
���
��!�� �
�#��&�0�)�	�A��&�!�������"��	�
���	�� �)����������9�)
��,�	 ��:��	*������
�
3
�� � � �� ��&���8� ����� ����)
��� �)&���)�� ��()��
�  ��	����� 	�&,����� � ��	���

')��
����� �� ��� 	�
����	 ����
��C��5���

• � �� .������ !��� ���,�,�*� #��&���*� 	 �� G�������+� ,)��	� ������ � ��	��	� ����
4�����&�6�� ������ ��"�
� 	 ���� ��� �
�3� 	�� �
���� � -	�!��� ���	���
� ��� 	 ��
�
3���,*�����7
!����)	*����

• � ��7�&��!���,)��	� ����������C��������*���&&������
�#��&�������	��#�	 ��
.����+� �� �)���!�������	�)�	�
� ���� �������+�! �� � 	 �� �)����	�  �)���
�������
���$)
*��
�D���������"�
� ����#��&���
��	���
�2��

• �������	�0�		���+��),��*�0�		������
�6��	 �7�
���)���
�	��	��	 ����	 �
���	)�*���C��������*�	 ����
!�������+��������	�0�		������
��),��*�0�		����
!������&,���
�)�
���	 ���!���� ����#�7
!��
�')���(H�����������4�����&�
6�� ������,�)� 	�	 �� �)��� ����
3�+��#	���! �� �����$�
����%� H�������
�
 ���!�#��7��
�'�����
�!���� ����
��	���
��

�
�6��	 �7�
���)���	�� 	 ��
������	*���� �*� �"����!�,����
�"�
�
�,��%���	��	 ����������	�� �)�����

• 0�"��
�� ���
���8����,�,�*�
�	��	��	 ����	 ����	)�*+�,)	�!������#���
����
	 ���
	 ���
�	 �� �)���!�����	���
�"�
�
���	��	!������
������

• � �������<����"��)��*�7�&���
�����
������0�)�	�<�!���)��
�������������
�	�,���,*����
��	�G�����	�� � -	�!�����,)��	���
��������
�,*�7�H�$�
�
���� ���
��������

Item 13 Appendix 2

71



�

���"��	�
� 	�� ��  �	��+� &��*� #��&� ��
� 	 ��	��� �	���� �	�*�
�  ���� ����)
���� #��&� �	���
'�		����"��+�,�#����	 ����&���8�!��������"��	�
�	�� �)��������	 ���
������A)�	 ���
#��&� ,)��
����� !���� ����� ���"��	�
� 	�� #��&� 	 �� ��!� ����
��	���� �)
��� 0�		����+�
0 ���������5�!�+���		���'������
�0�)�	�'������-���
3��	 ��"�������!�������8�
���	��
'��� 	��� ��
� �&���"�&��	�� 	�� 	 �� ����	� ���
� /5������ ���"�1� ��� �
22� ����	�*�
�� ����
����������� ����#��	����#�����	�	�
��),)�,������!	 ����	 ����������
�
� ��@�
�����##�����
�#��������
�����������	�
�����������!�&&���������/�����
���
�
��#����
�����

�1�!����,)��	� ������������!�	 �	 ������	�)�	�����#�	 ������	����
���� ��
���� 
�#������  ��	�
� �������� ����	��� �������� ! �� �  �
� ���	��)���*� ��	���
� 	 ��
$�		���
�������
��������� ����!����
���
�
�#���������&�	�
���"�����
�"����&��	��
���	 ������+�����)
����	 ��������	������
���,)��
�����#�	 ��4 �	��������0��� ����-���
��
�F)����G��	������),������)���/���������*���	)�	�
��	�! �	������!�4��	��	���	�����
���%1+���
�	 ������	�)�	�����#��)&,������(�3���� ��	���	���
���(���5���������"��
��
��	�5������	:��#��	��,���
��	 �����#���	���� ������	���	����+�	 ������
�#��������
�
	 ���),)�,������!	 �����������*��"�
��	����	 ���
����C��&���/5����1��
�
-���
��+�D�������.��
����<�	 ������	��#�	 �����
�����#�� ��7�&����
��������"�����!��
�	�	��<�!��� 	 ���	���
�!�	 ���
�"����&��	�� � -����
��� 	��������"�� 	 ������	��#� 	 ��
#��&���"������������+�$�		���
����������"�	���������	*�,�)� 	�	 �����
���
����	���
�
	 �����
���������	��
�	������G��	��������������� �����
����!����������	�
�	��'��� 	���
'���)� �0�)�������
������
�	��	 ���),��������
����
�
!�

�������
����������
��
��
�
7"�
����� #���6����	 ��� ��	�"�	*� �)�"�"��� ��� 	 �� $�		���
���� ����+�!�	 � �� �)&,��� �#�
!��%�
� #���	�� 
����"���
� ��
� ��"����� �8	��	� ��� ��	����� &��)&��	�� ��� 	 ��
�)���)�
����  ���	����� � C�� '������ ����+� �� �)&,��� �#� ,����!�� ��&���� )��	��
���+�
! �� ��������	��	�
�,*� 	!���� �
)��
�������	�&��)&��	�� ��
�	!����� �����������
��	�#���	���� ������� � �� #)�	 ���6����	 ��� ����� ,����!� /��� ���=����
� ,�!�� ,����!�1�
!��� ��&�"�
� ��� ���2� 
)����� 9�&���"�&��	�� 	�� 	 �� ����%�	� ���)�
:� /! �� � !���
����	�
����'����������1+�! ���	�#)�	 ���#��	)���������
��	�#��,�������������� �	����� ���
�
�� #)�	 ��� �����,��� ,�!�� ,����!�  ��� ,���� �
��	�#��
� ��� 	 ��  ���	��� 	�� 	 �� ���	� �#�
$�		���
���;��������������!�
�"�����
�����),)�,��� �)�����!�	 ������	
�������
�
�� ���
��#�$�&���������!�������)	�
�*�#�)�
�!�	 ������)������$�		���
���������
����
� ��������!����#�)�
�! ���	����)� ������#���
+���
�
�	�
�	����3�2(3�2���� ���8��	�
����	�����#�	 ��#��
���+� �!�"��+�)�%��!���
�
C��	 ���	 �H)������3+�	 ���)���8�4��%�*��
"��	����������	�
�	 �	���9�%���	����#����
������	�!������� ��
� �� �!��
:�  �
� ,���� 
����"���
� 
)����� 	 �� ����	�)�	���� �#� 	 ��
!��
&�������'����������+���
�	 �	�,�	 ��	�&��
���������
�! ���	�	 ����,�)�����!����
�	� �)�� �� � �� #)�	 ��� �%���	���!��� 
����"���
� 
)����� ����	�)�	���� �#� �� �����  �)���
�8	����������6�"����$��
�����

3���'�	 ��� )&�	���������	 �)� 	�	��,����������8����
�
0���)����#��	)�����"�
��	����'�������������)�
�����	��	��'���>������,)�����&�)�
�+�
���"��)��!��
&�������
B���	 ����	����#� ��	�����,���������A)�	 �����"��	���	����!�)�
�
,����?)���
�	����	�,��� �	 ���#)�	 ������
�

Item 13 Appendix 2

72



�

���	��������*����/���	��������*����.��� ��1�
�
� ����� ��	���	�#��&��	 ��&�����8������	 ��"���������
�������"�	��������;�#��&�����	��
��&&�������  ���	� ��
� ���%���� 	 �� ���#���	� 	�� 	 �� "������� ������� � A��&��� $��
� ��
�
5���������"��/	 ������	����
1�#��&�	 ��&������	�!�*���)	������	��	 ���������5������
���"��<���,)�*����
�(�#��&����� *������,�������,�	!����	 ��"���������
�	 �����+�! �� �
���
��� 	 ���  ��	����� ����	���� ���� � � �� ��)	�� �#� A��&��� $��
B��� � �	���	� ��� �����
�),=��	�	�� �� ���"�����#�	��##�������	�"��	���	����>����
�� ����	������ ��	��##���������	 ��
�����!� ��� � �	���	� ��� ���	��)����*�  ��&#)�+� ��� 	 �� ���#���	� ,�	!���� 	 �� ���
�� �#�
��
��	��������
�����)��������&��	��������	� ���������
�
'�*��
�	 ��&�������
�����	 ����������������	!��%��#�	!�		������
���	 ��	 �	�������	�
�&&�
��	��*��������	+�,)	����"�
�����
���
��	��������&��,���	*�	 ��)� �)	�	 �������
#��� 	 ���� #�&������ !�	 � �	�� � -���)
�
�!�	 ��� 	 ��� ��	!��%� ���� �� �)&,��� �#�  ��	�����

��"�!�*�� 	 �	� ���"�
�� ������� #��&� 	 �� "������� 	�� 	 �� 
�!��+� �)� � ���4 �	�!�*�
�������
��������	���
�
���������������#�������)������"�
���&)� ��#�	 ��������"�	�����������������	 ����� �
�	���	�	 ������#��&�
�,*����	�����,)��
���������!�	 �,)��
�����#���	����
����	�*���	��	 ��
�����!� ���
� !�	 � �����)���� ��"�&��	�;� ! �� � #��&�� �� ���	��)����*� ��	�&�	��
�	���	�����������	 �����	 +����������#�������)�����
����"��*����#��&�
�	 ��)� � �� �
!�������
�
�����"���	�	���+�! �� �#��&���"��)����
���	��	 ���	���	�#���	���� ��������
���"�
���#������	�����
�#���	�����#��),������
����"�	�������������������#�,�)�
��*����
�����������*�
�#���
�������A��&���$��
+�! ����������"������������	 �����
����&�	����
�)���+������?)���	*���6�"��	 �����+��),������
����"�	����������&�����
��	���	��
�
�� �)&,��� �#� �&���	��	� ����� ������� ���� �������	� !�	 ��� ��
� ���)�
� 	 ��
������"�	���������� �� ����������
�D�������.��
���� #��&� 	 ��&�����),���� ��������	�
	 ��  ���	� �#� 	 �� ������ � � �� ������ /����)
���� 	 �� ���
1� ��&������� �� "��)���*� �����
������! �� ����	���	��!�	 �	 ���)���)�
�����������#�,�)�
��*���D�������.��
���+����
!�������	 �����"�	�����
�����#�	 �� ������ �)������
�#��&�	��
��!�	 ���	 �����	 ����
 ��#��#�	 ��������"�	��������+���&�������,�)�
�
����������! �� �	 ���������#����"��*�
��
�������)��� ��� �&� �����
�� ���� �)� +�D�������.��
���� #��&����?)��	� �"���&)� �
��&�"�
� #��&� �)���)�
���� "������� ��	�"�	*�� � 5�	)��� "���	�	���+� ��� &��%�
� ��� 	 ��
�
=����	�����+����������&���	��	�	��	 ��� ����	�����
��������#����"��*����	 ��������
�
-&���	��	�"��!����+��#���
��������	 ��������"�	�������������)
��/A��)���31��
�

G�� G��!��,�	!����'������4��
&���+�'�������������
�	 ��������"�	���������/�+�,�
��
��1�

G3� G��!��,�	!����	 ��������"�	�����������
��)���)�
���������
�!����
�#��&�
! ����	 ��"����������"��!�
�����������	����!�	 �	 ��������
�
�!���/����
�,1�

G2� �	������������"��!���)	 �������	 ����� ��	���	�	�!��
��	 �����+� #��&�
���
�

����	�
�,*�#���%���� �)�����

G�� G��!��	������������
������#��&��������	 ���������
�
-&���	��	� ������� ��
� ���&��	���� ��)	��� ��� ��
� ���)�
� 	 �� ������"�	���� �����
����)
���
�

��� � ��.�������
����
�

�	
����������������	����

���������
)�����������!�*

Item 13 Appendix 2

73



�

�3� D�������.��
����
�2� '�����������
��� G������������A��&���$��
���
�	 ��.�����
��� �)���)�
����
�!����
���
��������������	 �	�#��&���
��	���	����,�	!����	 ��

"���������
��)���)�
�����),)�,���
�"����&��	���
��� 4�,� �#� 	!�		���� ��
� #��	��	 �� !�	 ��� 	 �� ����� ��
� ���
���� �)	� ��� 	�� 	 ��

��!���/&��%�
����,���%�
�� �������	 ���������	�
����� ��1�
��� H)��	���� �#�5���������"�� ��
���� � �	���	� ��� 	 ��  ��	����� "������� ��������
��

��
���!�	 ��&������	�!�*���	��	 �������
�

���������
&��%�������
�,���
��	 ��������"�	�������������)
���
�

��� '������4��
&����/A��)���21�
�3� �	�5������	:��0 )�� �
�2� � ��7�&��
��� 4 �	����������	���

�
��������	
���
�
�),��������&�	 ��)� �)	�	 ����������������*��#����
�?)���	*�����"�&��	����
���	 ������
��������*��)�#���
�!�	 ���
�,���%���"����!�	 ���
�,���%�%��,����� ���#��	����������	�"��
 ��	����� �
��	�	*� 	 �	� 
��	���)�� ��� 	 �� "������� #��&� �)���)�
���� 
�"����&��	���
��!�"��+� ��&�� ������ �#� �������&��	� ��
� ,���%� ��"���� ���	���	� !�	 � 	 �� ���������
,���)���	 �*�����&)� �&���� �&�����)�;���������
�� 	��,�� 	�%���	�����)��� 	 �*�
,���
� ���� � � ����"�&��	�� ���� �����)���� ���!�
	 ;�! ���� 	 �*� �������	��)����*�!�
�+�
��	����	�"�� �)�#���� 	���	&��	�� ����)
���� ������ �#� ��,,����  �"�� ,���� ���������	�
��
������ 	 �� ,���
� ��"�&��	� ��� G�������� ����+� #��� �8�&���+� ������ �#� ��,,����  �"��
,�������������	�
��������
��	 �����
�&����	���
���"�������������*�3�	 ����	)�*�	*���
D��	���� ����,�8���
����
	 ����	)�*��	*�����&����	��#���
��������&&������	 ��������
�������&���	��	 �������� ������$��
��)�#���������������*��������;� �!�"���	 ��������
���"��� #���� � 	�� 4 ������� ���	� ����� ��� �� ����	�"�� #��	)��+� �&� �������� 	 �� �)����
?)���	�����#�	 ����������
�
��� 	���� ��� &�8�
�� � �
	 � ���	)�*� ��&����	�� �#� ������ '��� 	��� 
������� ���
�&���	��
���)�
� 	 �����	���� �������)� ���� 	 ����� ��	���	� ��
�.������ �5)� ��#� 	 �� ��� 	����
������	 ����� ��	���	���&��������
	 ����	)�*��	*������	������		�� �
�	��,)��
�����<����
	 �������!�!�
	 ��#�	 �����
���
��	����"�&��	�� ������"��	�
���&����	��#��&�,�����
���	����
�� � ������ A��&��� $��
� 	 �� ��� 	���� /��
� ��
��
� 	 �� �)�#�����1� ��� &����
�	��
��
��
�
��	
	���

��	�����

�
� ��������"�	�������������,��
�"�
�
� ��	�� #�)��
��	���	� � ����	��������� /0 ����	���
����� .��� ��1�� � �� ��� � �	���	� <� 	�� 	 �� ��)	 � �#� 	 �� ����� <� ��&������� 	 ��
��&&�������  ���	� �#� 	 �� "������+� ��
� ��� � ����	�����
� ,*� �� 
����� )�,��� ������ �#�
���
�&����	�*��&���+�������*(�����
�"�����)������		�������	��������
�!�	 �����*�3�	 �
���	)�*� 	��������� � � �� G�������� ����� 0 ����	��� ����� ���	����� &�
���	��*(�����
�
 �)������	���������#��&��+��)�����������&��	���� ��.�����#��&��	 �����	�������������
	 �� ����;� ���)�
� ! �� � ���� ��	� �� �)&,��� �#� ����	����)�� 
�	�� �
� ����
������ (�
�������	�
�!�	 ���&���#� 	 ��"������:��&���� #�&�)����	��	�����
� ��	����*� �� �,�	��	��(�

Item 13 Appendix 2

74



�

��
� �	� 5������	:�� 0 )�� �� � ��� 	 �� ���	 +� � �� A��&�� ����� ���	����� �)&���)��
,)��
����� ����	���� 	�� 	 �� "������:��  ��	�������*� �����)�	)���� �����&*�� � � ���� ����)
��
�����+�����	����)��#��&�	��
���������
�����"��	�
�#��&�,)��
������
�
��	 �)� � ��� � ����� ��	����� �� 
�##����	� � ����	��� 	 ��)� � �	��  ��	����� 
�"����&��	+�
,)��	�#��&+�&��� ����*���
�)��+�	 ��,�)�
������,�	!����	 ��������������	�������)	;�
!�	 � �����(�"��� ,�	!���� 	 ���� � ����	���� � � �� #�)�� � ����	���� 	���	 ��� ��&������
	 ���)�"�"���� ��	�����"��������#�$�		���
�����
�
��	
	���

�
�	
��

���
����
��
���
/.��� ��1

�
� ����� ��	���	�0 ����	�������� ������	��
����	 ����&&������� ���	��#� 	 ��"���������
� ����� ��	���	� �	���#� #��&�����	��������	 (��)	 � ��������8��������)&,����#��	���	��
,���� � #��&� ���� 	�� 	 �� ���	� ��
�!��	�� � � �� ����� ��� 
�����*� ���%�
� ��
� 
�����*��
,)��
������#���"����	*��#�
�	�����
��	*���+���#���	�����	�������&��	���� ������"���	�&���
�
��
�����	���



�
	����
����		��
�
� ����� � �	���	� #��&�� 	 ��&���� ���
� ��� 	 �� "������;� ���"�
���� �� ���%� ,�	!���� 	 ��
���#���	+�5���������"����
�	 ��.����+���
�#��&����	 ��#��)���#���&&���������	�"�	*�
���	 ���������� ���	���	����������+�!�	 ��	�����"��!���������	������	 ���� ����������	*����
�&� �����
�,*�	 �������!�!�
	 ��#�	 �����
���')��
�������������*�#���	�
����	�*����	��
	 �� �	���	+�!�	 ������!�������(�8��	��	� #��	!�*�+�! �� �����	��� ���	������������#�
,�)�
��*���� ��&�����8���	����	��	 ����	�����,)��
�������������	�� ���������B'�����*��
'��%B�	��),*����� ���+�! ����	 ��,)��
�����������	�,��%�#��&�	 ���	���	�#���	+���
�
	 ���������#�������)��������
)��
�/A��)����1��
�
0�&&�������,)��
��������	 ���	���	�����������	��	�
�	�!��
���	����)	 ������
+�!�	 �
������	���������	�����#�����
��	����,)��
�����	��	 �����	 ���� �*�
�����*�� ��#���	���#�
"����
��	*�����
�?)���	*+����
�����,�
�#)�	 ���,���!����

�
����������
�
� ���#���	��!�	 ���	 ��������"�	���������	��
�	����	��������
��	�����������/�)� �����	�
�)&,��� ��� ��� � �	���	1� ��
� ��&��  �"�� �������
� ��	������+� ! �� � ���� ����	�"��
#��	)�������	 ���	���	��������� ���	�������������	�	�����"�
��������
�"��)���,����	��	 ��
,)��
���+� ���)����� �	� 
���� ��	� ������� 	�� ,�� 9#���	���:� �,�"�� 	 �� ���)�
� #�������
$������
���	����������"�
��"��)��������#�	��	 ��#���	������
�	 ���	���	�����+�,���%����

�!�� 	 �� �������#� 	 �� � ��#���	�� ���!�"��+� 	 �� � ��� #���	�� �"����������*�,����
�����	�
���	����������,)��
�������5��*��#�	 ��� ��#���	��
����	�����	��!����	��	 ��
� ����	����#�	 �� ��	�,)��
���;�!�	 ��������8��������#���������
������������	�������
� ���������	��)����*�	�)���#�	 ��#������+�! �� ��������
�&����	�*��#�)�� ����	����	���
&�
����&�	������+�!�	 ����
�	���������
����������*�����	�
���������
��������	����	��
	 ��,)��
���������
�
���)&,����#�	 ��� ������
��##�����
����	����	�����	��
��
�� ��#���	�+�,)	���	 ���
 �"����	��
�	������
�&��	���!��
�!�!�	 ���		���������	 �������������#�����B��		������
�����
�
����	�*����	 ��!������� ��� �����������*�,���#�����+���� �	���&�	��	 ���&���	����
	 �� ,)��
���+� ��� ��� �"�
��	� �	� '�����*�� '��%� ��
� ���*
�� ��'�� ���!�"��� ��� ��&��
���	������ 	 �� �����	�
� #������ ��� �#� ����� 
�����+� &�	������ ��
� �����*� ����	�
���
78�&������#�	 �������)
���)&,���������� ��	���	�/E��%� ����')��
����������	*1���
�
2�� ��� � �	���	� /�
�&� I� $�&���� ������	���� ��
� 6�	���!�
�� #������� ��� ��
��
���"�	���1��

Item 13 Appendix 2

75



�

�
� �� �	���	�&��� ����*+� ���	� ��>�� ��
� �� �)&,��� �#� �)�"�"���� ,)��
����� ��
���	�� 	 ��
&�
��"��� ��	���
��	�� �#� 	 �� "�������� ���!�"��+�&��	� �8��	���� ,)��
����� 
�	�� 	�� 	 ��
��	 +��
	 ���
�3�	 ����	)�������� �*�
�����*����������#�
���������
���� �	��	)�����	*����
,)	�����)��#��
�	 ��)� �	 ��)����#����
�&����	�*�"�����)������
�	��
�	������&�	�������
�)� ���� #���	+�,���%� ��
� ���
���� �� ��&�=���	*��#�,)��
����� �����#� 	!���	���*�+�!�	 �
��	� �
����#��<���	 �����	�������������!�	 �����,�����
�	��	 �����
����
�
�
����	�����
���
�
���%� $��
+� 6�"���� $��
� ��
� �	�*����� $��
� ������	� �	� ��� 	� ������� !�	 � 	 �� ��� �
�	���	+� ��
� ����� )�� 	 �� ��
����#� 	 �� "����*� 	�� 	 �����	� ��
�!��	�� ����	�����&�������
#��&�	 ��������� �!�	 �	�	 ����!������	������#�	 �������
�������
*��8��	�
+�,)	��	�
!��� ���*� ��� 	 �� ����*� 3�	 � ���	)�*� /�"�
��	� ��� 	 �� �
2���C��&��1� 	 �	� 	 �� ���
��
!�������
��)	�	��	 ���)����	��8	��	���� �� ��!������	���#�	 �����	���	��������	)�	�
�
!�	 ��� 	 ��������"�	�����������
���&������&����*���&&�������������	���+� 	 �������
�������	��������	�������	 ����� ��	���	���
���&������*�3�	 ����	)�*�	����������� ��
,)��
�����!�	 ���	 ��������"�	���������"��*�����	*��+�������
�?)���	*���� ���	���	�������
����"��!�
����	 �����	�8	��#�	 ���),)�,��� �)�����,�*��
���� ����#��	�������
�	����
��&�! �	�
��=���	�
���
����� ����	�� ����	������ ��)��#��&��),)�,��� �)�����������
	 �����"�	��6�"����$��
�<��)	��
��	 ��������"�	���������(����&�������	)���?)���
�
 ��
!��������
	��
"
����
��
!���������
�
��	 �)� �&��*��#�	 ��,)��
��������	 ���� ����	��������&�%��������	�"�����	��,)	����	��
	 �� �����,�	 � ��� ��
�"�
)��� ,)��
����� ��
� ��� ���	��#� �� ���)�+� ���)&,��� �#�,)��
�����
�	��
��)	�����#����	��)������	����	���
�� ����	����
�
�
��������������
�
� ��C�
� '���%������+� 	 ��C�
��0�		���� ���� $��&�+� ��&�	���0�		���� ��
�5�*�
0�		����/A��)����1�����#��&����
���
�,)��
�����!�	 ���	� �
����#���)���������������	��
	 �����
�����	 �)� �	 �*��������	�� �"��,����&)� ���	���
����	 ����	 ����	)�*���
�
,�*��
+�	 ��������+���!�#��&��)����	����������#�)�
�	�������	 ��C�
�0�		�������,�,�*�

�	��� 	�� �����
+�! ���	� 	 ��C�
�'���%������� ��� 	 ��
�	�� 9���2:� ����	�
� �,�"�� �	��

����� �� �*� #��&����	��)����*����	)���?)��,)��
�����! �� � �� ��� 	�	 �� ����� ��	��*�
�#�	 ���"��������	���	��
�
��	�
� 	�� ���3+� �)&,���� ��� ��
� ��� ��� � �	���	� ��&������ �� ����� �#� 	!�� �	���*�
��		����+� !�	 � ! �	�� ���
���
� ���"�	����� ��
� �	����*(��	� �
� 	���� ���#�� /A��)��� �1���
'�	 �����
������	�
����,)��
������#���������	����	��������������%�#����������)�"�"���	��
�)&,������! �� ���������	��)����*������#����	��)�"�"����
�
���
��	�����������������
�
���)&,����#�,)��
�����
�����*����� ����	����	�����	 ����	)�*���� �	��	)����#��	)��������
������	� ������ 	 �� ��� � �	���	+� ��	 �)� � 	 �*� ���� ��	� 
�&����	�� � � ���� ,)��
�����

�����*�"��	����� )������ ���� ���>��	������
������� �!��
�!��!�	 ���!���(
�	����
�#���	�
��
�,���%����"�	������
�

Item 13 Appendix 2

76



�

6)&,���22���� ��	���	�������	��)����*�!���(
�	����
+�!�	 �����,,�������	 ���
�%�����
�
#���	� �,�"�� /A��)��� �1�� � � �� �)�� ���)������ ���	�� ��� 	 �� &���� ���"�	���+� ���	����
� �&��*� �	��%+� 
��	��� �������� ��
� �)�"�"����  ���>��	��� ���
���� ��� � !��
�!�� ����
� ����	��#)��  ��	����� #��	)����� � ��	 �)� � 
�����*���� ��	 � ���	)�*� #��	)���+� 	 ��
������	����� ��
� ���*&&�	�*� �#� �)&,��� 22+� ��� !���� ��� �)&,��� ���� ��
� 	 ��
$�		���
���� 0�),� �)����	� 	 �	� 	 �*� &�*� ��&������ �������� ,)��
����� 	 �	� !����
�),�	��	����*���	���
����	 ����	 ����	)�*���
�,�*��
���� ��,�*�!��
�!�	���)&,�������
��� ��	���	���
����� �	��	 ��$�		���
����0�),�������	����

�	�������
�
���	���	�"��
)��	�� �	��	���+������!� #��&���
���,,��
� #���	���+�����,�*�� /�)&,������
��� ��	���	1�!���,)��	�����������
������	�
����	 ��0)�	�&����)���/A��)����1��
�
�
�	����
�
���� �
��	���������������!�
�
�������
�,)��
��������������
�&����	�,)��	�#��&�������	 ����� ��	���	���G����
�
�	���
�#� ����	�)�	���� (� #��&� 	 �� ��	�� ��	 � 	�� ����*� 3�	 � ���	)�*� <� ���� ��#���	�
� 	 �)� �
"����
� 
�	�������� � ��!�"��� 	 �*� ���� )��#��
� 	 ��)� � )��� �#� 	��
�	������ "�����)����
&�	�������/#���
�#���	+�#���	���,,��+���#	�4���
���,���%���
���&�����
��1+���	� �
����#��
��
� 	!���	���*� ��� 	�� �5��*���!����	���� ��	��� � ��� #���	�+�! �� �"��*� ��� ?)���	*�
��
�� ����	����
�
6)&,�����2�	���
���� ��	���	�#��&���!���(
�	����
�����*��
	 ����	)�*�	������+�!�	 �
��,,��
(���"�	�������
���
�,���%�
���������/A��)���
1���6)&,����3��	��2����� ��	���	�
#��&����#)�	 ���� ��	�	�������
�	����	��	 ���
	 ����	)�*�����	)�	�
��	�	 ����	������	��
	 ����� � �	���	+� 	 �*� #���	� 
����	�*� ��� 	�� 	 �� ���
�� �� ��,)��
����� ���� �#� )��#��&�

������!�	 � �� �������!��
�!� 	����� � #�������
� 	 ��&�=���	*� �"�� ��
��&��� 	�� 	 ��
#���	� ���#�������� � ��&���#� 	 ��������	���� �"�+� �!�"��+�,���� �),=��	� 	��&�
����
��	���	���+�! �� � ��� ��&�
�	 ��)��#��&�	*��#�	 �����)�����
�
��	 �)� � �)	��
�� 	 �� ������"�	���� ����+� �)&,���� ��+� 3�� ��
� 33� 6�"���� $��
�
���	��,)	��	��	 ��� ����	����#�	 �������/A��)�����1���')��	����	 ����
��+�	 �*���&������
��� ��	�	��������	�������)��	 �� ������� �*�����,)��	����#���	�!�	 �,���%�
�����������
���
&�	� �������� �	����� ���	�������
�
��	)�	�
� 	�!��
�� 	 �� ���	 ���� �8	��	� �#� 	 �� ��� � �	���	+� 5����:��5�!�� ��
�5����
0�		����� ,�	 � 
�	�� 	�� 	 �� ��	�� ��	 � ��� ����*� �
	 � ���	)�*�� � A��&���*� %��!�� ���
')�%��:�� '���+� 5����:�� 5�!�� !��� #���	� ���"��	�
� 	�� ��		����� #��� 	 �� ����;� �	�
,���&�� �� 	��� ���&� ��� �
3�� ,�#���� ,����� ���"��	�
� ,��%� 	��  �)���� ��� �
��(����
6)&,�����
���
������� ��	���	+��	 ��!����%��!�����5����0�		����+���&������ #���	�
��
�! �	�!�� �
�
�),����������		�����!�	 ������	��)����*��)����"�����)����� ����	���
/A��)�����1��
�
����	�
�	��	 ����)	 ��#�	 ������+��	��),*���
�	���	��	 ������*��
	 ����	)�*�/A��)���
�31���C��������*�,)��	������
�	�� �
� �)��+�,)	����"��	�
�	������ ���������23+��	������	�
,��%�#��&�	 �����
���� ��	����#���	�,�)�
��*�!���� �����&���	����	 ��,)��
���������������
	 ����� ��	���	���'�	 ��	����>����
���	�,��%�����	�������	���	�!�	 �	 ��&����	*������
������ ��
�&��� ����*��#� 	 ����� � �	���	+� �)� � 	 �	� �	� #��&�� �� ���&����	� ,)��
������
����	�
�������	�����%�$��
+��	�����������#��)���#�"��!��������	 ������
��
�
"#�
��	����������������

�����������	����	 ���
��
	 �
���	)�*�	

Item 13 Appendix 2

77



�

�
5��%(	�&,��� #��&���� ����"�
��	���� ��"������#� 	 ������*�3�	 � ���	)�*�,)��
����+� �����
&��	��8	����"��*��	��)&,�������! �� ����)����������&����	������������	����/A��)���
�21���� ������*�3�	 ����	)�*�	�����������	�*�����$��
�����#���� �	��	)����?)���	*+�!�	 �
&��%� 	�&,��� #��&���� 	�� 	 �� ��,��	�+� �?)����,�*�!��
�!����
� #�����)�	�
����
����
!�	 �,���%�,�)�
��*�!������ ���&�����
�	����������"�
��	��	��)&,��������	��������� �
�	���	��
�
'�����*:��'��%�<���������
�	�� �
�,)��
�������� 	�*���	�,��%�#��&�	 ���	���	�#���	���
�
	 )��#���&��	��	 ��,)��
���������<���&,�����&��%�	�&,���#��&����!�	 �#���	����"�	�����
��
� ����	�
� ��� � ��������� /A��)��� ��1+� ! ���	� �� 	*������ ��&,���	���� �#� �)���8�
"�����)����&�	������������"�
��	����	 ��0�(��;�#���	+�!�	 ���
�,���%�
�����������
�	����
 ��������


����������

�
� ����� � �	���	� #��&�� 	 �� ��&&������� #��)���#� 	 ������+� ��
�������	�� 	 ��.�����
��
�	 ��������-	����� ����	�����
�,*��
�

• ')��
�����
�	����#��&���	 �	��3�	 ����	)�*+�!�	 �"����	���������� �	��	)�����	*���
��
�
�	��������&� ��������	 ������:������� ��	��*���
������&����
�"����&��	�

• ������)�,���#��&�!�	 ��	�����,)��
���������

• �&����"�����)������		������#�	!���	���*���

• ���&����	+�&��	�*����������*�	���+���	� �
����#��

• 7��"�	��������
�&����	�*��#�#���
�#���	����#���	���,,��+�!�	 �,���%�
���������

• -����)����!�
	 ���"�&��	���
�
��!�"��� �� �)&,��� �#� ����	�"�� #��	)���� ���� ������	� ��� 	 �� ����+�! �� � ���
�� 	 ��
 ��	������ ����	����#�	 ��������
�

• � �����
�����),=��	�	�� ��"*���"�����#�	��##�������	�"��	��	 ��	*����#����
���� ���
���
��	��?)�)����	��##�����
��,�	�)�	�������
����	���	���	��%�*�!�	 ��	�� ��	�����
� ����	����

• ��&��,)��
����� �"��,�����),=��	�	���������	�"����	���	�������� ��������)
��	 ��
,�8�
� ��"��� 	�� 	 �� ������� �	� �)&,��� �
� ��� � �	���	+� �������&��	� )�G0�
!��
�!������	�*�����$��
���
� 	 �� H)���	�'�����*� 	���)&,�����3(������� �
�	���	�! �� �������)�� ����	����	���#��	)�����

• ���)&,����#�� ���#���	������)��*&��	 �	���	��	 �� ��	������ ����	����#�	 ����
 ��	�,)��
�����

• 6)&,��� ��(��� ��� � �	���	� ��� �� &)� � ��	���
� ,)��
���� �#� ��		��� �	���	������
"��)���

• � �� �	���	������� ������ ���	(!��	� �	���	�� ���� 
��=���	�
� ��
� ���� ����	�� � ��
�)&,����#�&�
����
�"����&��	�����
��	 ���� ��	������ ����	����

�
��	
	���

�
�	
#�

$��	
	��
%	��
&"
	����'

�
� ��G�������������0 ����	����������&�������	 �������,�	!����	 ����� ��	���	+�� ��
.����� ��
� 4 �	�!�*� ������ � � �� ����� ��&������� &��	�*� ����
��	���� ,)��
����+�

�����*����������	�"��*�������)��� ����	�����
���"����
�����	���� ���	��	 ���	���	�#���	���

���������	�

Item 13 Appendix 2

78



�

��	��	�	 ����!�����
��#�	 �������+�	 ��� ����	����#�	 ����������	 �	��#��� ��	������)����
"��������)���)���
�
.�����"������ ��
�"��
��	� #���	� ���
���+� �������
�� 	 �� ���"��� �)�#���� 	��4 �������
���	�����+��&� ������	 ���)����?)���	*��#�	 �������������"������#�	 ��,)��
����� ���	 ��
�����������	�,��%�#��&��	���	�#���	����������������
�)��
��	�
����
�+��)� �	 �	�	 �*�
������	��&&�
��	��*��������	����	 ���	���	���������
�
 ��
!��������
	��
"
����
��
!��������

�
�
����������������	�
�
��	�	��	 ��������#�	 ����� ��	���	�������4 ����������	������/A��)�����1+�4 �������
���	���)�����&�������������+���!����
���
�,)��
����
�	�
�	��	 ����	 ����	)�*���-	� ���
,����&)� ���	���
��"���	�&�+���������#���	�
�,*��	�� �� �*������)���������#��&���-	������	�
,��%�,� ��
���������
�#���	����
�����
������	�	�
��!�*�#��&�	 �����
����
�
� �� ,)��
����  ��� �� ����)�#)�� ���	�� � -	� !��� ����� 	 ��  �&�� �#� #�&�)�� $�		���
����
�&)������0��	�����)�%�� � -	�!��� ������������,)	� ��:�� � ���� �� ����&�� ���
���"�
�
#��&� 	 �� "������:�� ! ������� ���	� ��
� �	��%�+� ! �� � )��
� 	�� ,�� ����	�
� ! ���� 	 ��
� ��	�)	� 	���� ��!� �	��
�� ��� 	 �� #���	� ���
��+�! ���	� 	 �� "������� 
)�%���� � ����!���
��	)�	�
�	��	 ��������#�	 �� �)��;����	 ��"����������
��
�
��$��
�
�	��
�	%����&�
�'��
���(�
�)����
�*���
�	�
�
��G������������+��	� H� �:����
�'���%�&�	 �0�		���� #��&��� � ��	� ��!��#�������	����
��	� �	� ��� ������ 	�� G�������� ������ � 6)&,��� �� ��
� �	� H� �:�� 
�	�� 	�� 	 �� ����*� �
	 �
���	)�*�!�	 ����	��)����*����	)���?)����,,������"�	�����!�	 �����	�
�,���%�?)�������
�
��� ����!���	� �
�	�������#�/A��)�����1����
�
��	��),�	��	����*� #)�	 ���,��%� 	 ����)&,�������
��	� H� �:�+�'���%�&�	 �0�		���� ���
	 ��
�	�����������	�
�����	+���	�������	��
�	���������
������� ���
�����&��	�!��
�!��
/A��)��� ��1�� � � �� ���#������ ��� ���	��)����*� � ����	��#)�+� !�	 � 	 �� ��
�������� �#� 	!��
#)�	 ���!����+�����	�
��	���� 	����������
�	��	 ��������#�	 ��#���	������+�"���,����,�"��
	 ��#���	��������
�
(������������$��
�
�	��	��
�	�
�
G�������� �������� ��� �� ���"�	�� ���
� �������
� #��&� 4 �	�!�*� ����+� ��
� ��	�
�&&�
��	��*� �������	�!�	 ��� 	 �� ������ � 7�	������ 	�� 	 �� ���
� ��� #���%�
� ,*� �� � ��	�
	��������#�	 ����,)��
�����	��	 ��!��	�/A��)�����1+���
���!�
��������"�����	��	 �����	���
� �� 	������
� �)����
�	�� 	�� 	 ���
	 � ���	)�*�� � ��	��� � )		���� �"��,�����

�
� 	��
	 ��!��
�!���������+���
�������	��� ��	�����#��	)������	 ���������
�
'�*��
+��)&,�����G���������������������
�	�� �
� �)���	 �	���%��*�
�	���	��	 ����	 �
�����	 ����	)�*���� ����	 ����	)�*��)&,��������
���G����������������������	�,� ��
�
	 ��+���
����� �

���#��&�"��!��������4 �	�!�*��������� �����
���
��	����		���������
���	��)����*�����)
�
���
����	)���?)���
�
�

����������

Item 13 Appendix 2

79



�

�
	������
�+��%�*
������%�,���	�����	�
�
� �����)� � -��+�0 *��	��� ��
� A�������)��� /A��)����
1� ���� ��	��� �����	����� ��� 	 ��
����+� 
�	���� 	�� 	 �� 3�	 � ���	)�*�� � � �� �)����	� ���)� � -��� ��&������� 	 �� �8	����"��
��,)��
���� �#� �	�� ���
�������� ��� �
2��� � -	� ���)����� �� ���&����	� ����	���� ,���
�� <�
��	 �)� ���	� �����	�	�
� 	�!��
��<� 	 �� "����������
�� �0 *��	��� ��� ����	�
���� 9� ��
�!�		��:+� ������	�� 	 ��$�&���0�	 �����0 )�� �� � -	�������	�	���� 	�!��
�� �� 	!�		���
��	 ���	 ���	����#��&������
����������&�	���	 ���)����� ����	����#�	 ��������
�
A�������)���!���,)��	����	 ������*��
�������	 ����	���#�	 ����
�#�������-	����)�������
���&����	�����	�����	���,��
����G������������+���
������	�,��%�#��&�	 �����
�,� ��
�
�� #���	�!����� � -	� ���,����,)��	� ���	��
�	������"�����)����&�	�������!�	 ��������#�,���%+�
#���	���
� )���	���+�,)	���+� �!�"��+��#���&�	�
���� �	��	)����&���	��
�
(���
��	��

�
� ���� ������� #��&��� �),��������� �������!�	 ��� 	 ��G�������������0 ����	����������
� ���� ��+� �!�"��+��� �������&�)�	��#���������������
�"���	�	�������"�
�
�	 ��)� �
!�
��������"��������
� #���	����
���+� ����)
���� 	 ���� 	��4 ����������	���)�����
�
'���%�&�	 � 0�		����� � � ��� ������ ?)���	*� ��� ���	��)����*� �&���	��	� 	�� 	 �� �)����
� ����	����#�	 ��������
�
����������

�
G���������������	��!����,���
��	 ��� ����	����#�	 ����� ��	���	���
�	 ��.����+�,)	����
�����
��	���	�����	���!����� 	���-	����� ����	�����
�,*��
�

• �����#��&��+������)��������	���� ���,�	!����,)��
�������
�	 ���	���	#���	+�!�	 �
&��*�,)��
�����#���	�������	��������������������#��&������
��

• �&����"�����)����,)��
�����
�	����#��&�	 ����	 �	��3�	 ����	)����+��&� ��������
	 �� ����� 
�"����&��	� �#� 	 �� ����� !�	 � ��!� %�*� �����&��	��� � ����� �"���
&��*����	)�����

• ���
�&����	� )��� �#� ������ "�����)���� &�	������;� &����*� #���	� ���"�	����� !�	 �
,���%�
�����������
����*�	�������#����3�	 ����	)�*�,)��
�������������������	��	����
 �������

• ���
�	������ �)�#����� ��
� ��#	� ���
�������� ����)
���� ������ "������ ��
� #���	�
���
�������&�	�������)����� ����	���

�
���"*���"�����#�	��##��+� �!�"��+� �"��������	�"���&���	����	 ��� ����	����#�	 ��������


��	
	���

�
�	
)�

���
"
���
&"
	����'

�
� ��.�����0 ����	�������� #��&�� 	 �� ���	��#� 	 ��"�������� � -	���&������� ������ �� �
�	�	)�� ����
�����+� !����
� ���
���� ��
� 	 �� ����� � � )�� � ����	�
� ���)�
� ��  ��	�����
"������� ������ ��
� ���
�� �� �� ���������������*� �8	��
�
����	 !��
�� 	�� ���������	��
	 ��������#�D�������.��
������
�� ��7�&����� ������������#��&���	����� ��	�������*�#���
�	�� �������	���� !�	 � $�		���
���:�� #�&�)�� ��	��	��� ��
� ��	����*� �� �,�	��	�+� ��
�
��� �	��	)����*�
)��	��	 ��?)���	*��#�	 �� �� ��	�	)��,)��
�����	 �*�
!��	�������
�

Item 13 Appendix 2

80



�

�����#���	�!�����	��D�������.��
������
�	 �����"�	�����
�����#��)���)�
��������
������
����	�� �� ������ ������ �#� ������)��� ��
� ����)������ � � �� ����
������ 	 �&���"��� ����
��������*�"���,����,�"�����,���
��	 ����!����+���
�	 ������� �	��	)����?)���	*+���������
�

��������#���	�	 ���� �� ��	�	)�����
�
C"�����+�	 ����&,���	�����#�����������+�,)��
������#������������ �	��	)����?)���	*���
�
	 ���������#����"��*����&�	�������	����� ����	���	��	 ��������
�
(���
��	��

�
�
	�-�		��
��������
�
� ��"���������������
����
�#��&�	 �����&��*���������������	 ��������"�	������������
��! ������-	���	������������������	�	 �	�!��%��	��)��	��	 ���)���)�
���� �)������
�
#��&������	���� #��)��	��	 ��"���������� ���#��)�� ����&� �����
�,*�	 �� ����	�����#�	 ��
!������
�!���&�&������ ���+���
�,*�	 ������	�����#�	 ��0 )�� ��
=����	���-�
�"�
)���
	����� ��	� ��� 	 �� ������ �&� ������ 	 �� �*�"��� ?)���	*� �#� 	 �� ������ �0����� "��!�� ����
�������	�#��&�	 ��������	��$�		���
����4��
&���+�'�������������
�	 �����
����������
��
�����	&��	������	��#���%��
�
.�������-
��	���
�
A��&���*����	��#�	 ���������	���#+�D�������.��
���������	�	���	���&&�
��	�����	 ���� ��
��2
�	�	 ��&���� �!�����)&,����#�,)��
��������	 �����	 !��	����	�����#�	 �����
���;�
�"�
�����#���	 �����)�"�"���!�	 ���	 ��!�������� ���������	���,���&��	 ��������	*��#�
	 ��7�&����-	�!�����"�
�#��&��������
���
�"����&��	����	 ���
������
����	���
���
�
�� ����
� ,*� 	 �� $�		���
���� ������"�	���� �����	*� ��� �� 	*������ G��	������ 7����� �
.��
������
�
��	 �)� �D�������.��
���� �����!���	)���
�	���),����)��+�	 ���)���)�
����#���	�!�����
���"�
�� ��� �������
+� ���"�	�� � ����	��� 	 �	� ��� ?)�	�� 
��	���	� #��&� 	 �	� �#� 	 ��
��&�������������������#�	 ��.�������
����
�/A��)���3�1��
�
A)�	 ��� #���	� !����� 
�"�
�� 	 �� ������ ��	�� �� �)&,��� �#� ������	�� ������)���+�  �

���
#��&���� ��	 �����
���"����
����*����������������	 ��)� �	 �������� �4��
������
�
,���%� ��	 �� ��
� ��)�
� ��� �
�������������"�
�� ������� 	 ��)� � 	 ��
�##����	����	����
7�� � ������)���  ��� �	�� �!�� 
��	���	�"�� � ����	��+� ����)
���� �� !��
���
� ����+� �����
���
��+�� ��%���
����
�����
� ��,����
����������?)�	���!�������	�	��	 �����	 ����	��
�
���/
��
�	�'��*
���
�
���
�
��	� 	�� 	 �� ���	� �#� 	 �� �����+� ,���
�� ��!�
�� ������ "����+� �	�5������	:�� � )�� *��
�
#��&���������#)�� ��
� ����)
�
������� ������ ��� 	 �������� �G��!��,�	!���� �	���
� 	 ��
�������������	�*��,��)��
�,*�#������+�! ���	����*� ��	����
�!����&��%��	���8	��	+��)� �
	 �	�	 ��,�)�
��*�,�	!����	 ��9��&&������
:��#�	 ����������
�	 ��9�����
������:��#�
	 ��� )�� *��
� ��� ������*�
�#���
���
� #��&�?)�	��
��	���	��������� ���&����� 	��D�������
.��
���+�	 ��� )�� *��
����
�"�
�
���	������?)������#�����)
�
���������5��*��#�	 ��
	�&,����
����"��	����������#� ��	�������	����	+���
���&���#�	 �&��������	�
����
�
����������
�
�%���
�)��
����0���	����

����������
��	0
���
�	�
���
������
�

Item 13 Appendix 2

81



�

�
�� �)&,��� �#�  ��	����� ��	 �� ��
��	�� #��&� 	 �� "������� 	�� �)���)�
���� 
�!����
+�
����)
�������� ���	+�4 �	�!�*� ����+� '�>� ���� $��
� ��
� 	 �� #��	��	 � 	��C"���
������
�������	���
�4 �	�!�*������������	� 	�� 	 �����	 !��	���
���)	 ���	��#� 	 ��������
������	�"��*+���
�
������	���	������������8	��	����������	�������)��)�#���
�	���%�! �� �
���"�
����������"�������	&��	����
����	��'�����������������		���,�8���	����	 ��!�����	�
�	����	�������������	�,���#��	)������
�
4 �	�!�*������ ��� ��
��)�#���
�	�� �	��!��	�����8	��	�<�! �������)&,����#�&����
&�
����
�"����&��	����
�	 ��$�&���0�	 �����0 )�� ������������
�#��&��	������	 ��
���	+��	�#��&���������!���	���%�!�	 ��"�� �������	�������
����	����,��%�	��	 ����)	 �
#��&������ ����!�!�*�/A��)���3�1���������	 ������	�����	����#���%�
�,*�����������#������
�������������	 �	��� �����	 ���)���+�������)����		�����#�	 ���������-	����"�
����������
	��	 ��
�!���(�#��&������� ��	�������)	��	��7��	�����+�'���
����A��&���
����	����!���
(� ��
� ���!���(%��!�� ��� �����
� �&)������� ��)	��� � '�	 �4 �	�!�*������ ��
�'�>� ����
$��
������"�
��	����	���%�����	 �����
(��������#	�C��5������ ��!��	�����8	��	��#�
'�>� ����$��
���!�#��&�����)�#���
����
�#���%�
�,*��),)�,��� �)����+�,)	���&�����
�����	���%�	��	 �����	��
�
� �� ��	 �� ���"�
�� ��� �&���	��	� � *������ ���%� ,�	!���� 	 �� "������� ��
� �	�� �����

�!����
���		�����
�
 ��
!��������
	��
"
����
��
!��������

�
*
���
�������/
��
�	��
�
����	�
����	 �����	���
���#�	 ��.����+�	 ��0 )�� ��#��	�5������	�/A��)���331������	�
!�	 ����	��� )�� *��
���
�,�)�
�
�,*���#���	�!������
��*� ��	��������)� +�	 ���*� ��	��
��
�#�������	��	 ��� )�� *��
����#��	� �"����&����"���,���������������	 ���	���	�����+�
	 ���	 ��� )�� ��	���#���6�"��	 �������	� ��������
&��%�,)��
����! �� ����������*�"���,���
��
��
��	�#��,���#��&��)���)�
����
�!����
��
�
��	����	��	 ���3	 ����	)�*���
���	��+�	 ��� )�� ���������#�	 ��&��	������#����	� ��	�����
�	�)�	)�������	 ���������-	����������*����
���
�!�	 ���� ��	+��?)�	�	�!������	����
�������
!��
�!��!�	 ���	 ��� )�� �!����
������
�,*�7
!��
�')���(H�������
��8��)	�
�,*�
4�����&�5���������
�
*
���
����1����
�����������	��
�
����	�
�,�	!����4 �	�!�*��������
��	�*�����$��
+�	 ��$�&���0�	 �����0 )�� ��#�
C)�� ��
*� �#� ��)�
��� !��� ,)��	� ��� 	 �� &�
� 3�	 � ���	)�*� /A��)��� 321�� � C#� #���	�
����	�)�	����!�	 ���� ��	�	�!��+� �	� ��� ����	�
� ������&����� )�� *��
�!�	 �#���	�!�������
�)��	�� �	�� ����	�����!�*� #��&�	 �����	�����	���	����
�	 �������+�	 ��� )�� � �����	�
�&&�
��	��*��������	� ��� 	 �������� �� ��%�*�"��!��#� 	 ��,)��
���� ���������4 �	�!�*�
����� #��&� 	 �� =)��	���� �#� � �� .����� ��
� G�������� ����+� ! ���� �	� ��� "��!�
� ���
����	���� 	�� �� �����
� ������ "����� ��
� �)���)�
���� "���	�	����� � -	�� ���"�	�
� ����	����
�&� ��������	���	�	)����
��� �������	��"���,���	*�#��&��)���)�
����
�!����
���
�
�
	������
�

������������


���������� ������	 �

���������+�

Item 13 Appendix 2

82



�

��	 �)� � $)
*��
� D������� ���*� ����
�
�  ���� #��� ��  ��
#)�� �#� *����+� � �� 7�&�� ���
���	��)����*���	�
� #��� �	���������	����!�	 �	 ���!��	���� � ����	�
����� ��.����+� �	� ���
��	� �	� ��� 	� ������� 	�� 	 �� ���
;� #���	���� ���	��
� ��	�� 	 �� ������ ��
� ���
� ,�*��
�
/A��)��� 3�1�� � � ��� �����	�	���� ����!�� #��� ���	)���?)�� "��!�� ������� 	 �� ���
�� � � ��
 �)��� ��� ��	� ,� ��
� �� ���"��� 
��"�� ��
�  �� � #���	�!����� � � �� ���������� #�J�
�� ��� �#� ��
#��&��+��*&&�	������
�����+�! ������	 ������� ���,�����),=��	�	����"�������	���	�����
��
� �8	�������+� �)� � 	 �	� 	 �� ,)��
���� ��!� ��	����� �� ��&���8� ����� #��&� ��
�
���#�������
�
2���
���������	%������	���*���
�	%�3���	��*���
�	�
�
�	� ���� ����	� 	 ���� 	 ���� ,)��
����� !���� �&����&�	�
� 	�� &�%�� ���� 
!������+� ,)	�
 �"�� ������ ,���� ��(
�"�
�
� 	�� 	 ���� ��������� 	 ���� ������	����� � ��	� ������ 	�� 	 ��
��"�&��	� ,� ��
� &�
���� �������&��	� ��������+� 	 �*� ����  �� �*� "���,��� ��� 	 ��
�	���	������ ��
� #��&� ������� 	 �� .����� /A��)��� 3�1�� � � �*� 
�����*� �� "����	*� �#�
&�	������+���� �	��	)�����	*������
�
�	���������A��	)��������)
����	 ������+������!�������
!��
�!+� �� ���"�����#�#����	��	������
�,��)�	��
��	���),��*�0�		���+���
�	 ��,���%�
	�!���	��6��	 �7�
���)��+�! �� ��

����	��)������"��	*���
���	����	�	��	 �����)����
-	� ��� ,����"�
� 	 �	� 	 �� ���	� ,���
�� 	 �� �����������!��
�!�!��� �����	�
� ,*� ��	��	� ����
7
!��
�')���(H����������
���	������� ������"�����������
��)	��#�	 ��,)��
�����
�
�
	�-�
��	�
�������������
������
	�	
������	�����
	�-�		��
�
� �����	���
���#�	 ��.������������
�,*�
�	�� �
�������	�����#�"����
�������
�?)���	*���
�����	��"����,���	*����	 ����� �	��	)��+�	 ��,)��
���������)��#��
�	 ��)� �	 �����������
�#� 	���� #���	�!����� 	�� 	 �� �	���	� #���	+�!�	 � 	 ��,)��
����� 	 �&���"��� ��	� ,��%�!�	 ���
��
�"�
)���,)��
�������	����� ��,)��
���������"���,������"��!���������	 ����������
�
6��	�����)��� /A��)��� 3�1� ��� ���	��)����*� "���,��� 
)�� 	�� �	��  ��� 	� ��
�&�������� � -	�

�	���	��	 ������*��
	 ����	)�*�,)	� ���,����&)� ���	���
������&�������#�	������� ���
,�����

�
�	��	 ����)	 +�! �� ���������	��)����*���	�)��"��#��	)������	 ���%*������
�
G���	�	������
�	 ��#���	�!�����������"��!���#�	 ��.������/A��)���3�1�#��&�	 ���	���	+�
�)� � 	 �	� 	 ��!���� ��
� ��	������ ����&���� ���&����	� ��� 	 �� �	���	������ 	 ��� 	 ��
,)��
���� �	���#�� � ')��	� ��� ������+� 	 �� .������ !��� ��	��� �8	��
�
� ��� ������� ,*� ���
���%�����
� #)�	 ��� ��	���
� ��
��8	��
�
�,*����� 7
!��
��)	*���� ��� ���
3�� #�������
.������ ��!���� � � �� ,)��
����!��� �� G�������� )�	��� ���
��+� �#	��� ! �� � �	� ,���&�� ��
���"�	��
!���������-���
�2��	�!����)�� ���
�,*�'��� 	���0������	������
���!� �)����
	 ��&)��)&+���,���*���
���	���� ������ ��,)��
�������������
��#�&���	��������
�
�
	�4	�	��
�
� ���������������&����	�,)��
�������	 ��.�����/A��)���3�1���-	�
�	���	��	 ������*��
	 �
���	)�*� ��
� !��� )��
� ��� �� ������� �	�,��� ,*� ���
� �	� G�����	�� � -	� !��� ��,)��	� ��
�
�������
� ��� ����� ,*� 7�H� $�
�
���;� #�	 ��(��(��!� 	�� #��&��� ���&�� &����	��� �	����*�
'��
!������ ��,)��
�������&)� ���	���
���� ����)	 ���������	�#���	�����	������!��
�
���
��+�,�)�
�
�,*���#���	�!����	��	 ����"�&��	���
�!�	 �	 ��#��&����	�,���,���%���	�
	��	 �����	���� ��&������	�������������	�
�	��	 �����	 ���
�#���	��
����	�*����	��	 ��
.������ � �)�� 	�� �����&��	��� ��	���	���� ��
� 9���	�	)	��������	���:+� 	 �� ��� �	��	)����

Item 13 Appendix 2

83



�

?)���	*��#�	 ��,)��
���� ���,������
)��
���� ��,)��
���������"��	 �������#��&���	�����
 ��	�������*���
�
)��	���	�����&����	�����	�������� ��.������
�
(���������
������
	�0	������	�����
	�-�		��
�
�����0�		����
�	���	��	 ������*��
	 ����	)�*�/A��)���3
1���-	������	�,��%�#��&�	 �����
�
,� ��
���������
�#���	����
�����
���,,��
�!���+��)� �	 �	��	� �������&�	�
�������������
	 ���	���	�����������	 ����)	 +����&����#���	���
�,���%��	�,���,���%�����		�� �
�	��	 ��
,)��
���+���	 �)� ��	������	)�	�
�!�	 ���	 �����)�
���#��	�5��	 �:��0��"��	��
�
��	�������	��� ������+��	�5��	 �:��0��"��	������
� ����
3��/A��)���2�1�� � -	� �����	�
�),�	��	����*�,��%�#��&�	 ���	���	�#���	+�!�	 ������	����
��"�!�*�#���%�
�,*���!�����
�
����&��	���	�����,� ��
��� #���	�!����!�	 ���
�,���%�
���������� �� ��$�&���0�	 �����
�� ���������	�	��	 ���&&�
��	����)	 ��#�	 �����"��	���-	������	�,� ��
���	������,,�����
�
��
�,���%�!���+��)� �	 �	��	�
������	�#��&����	��#�	 ���	���	��������� ��,)��
���������
�#������� �	��	)������� ��	�����&���	��
�
��	����	��	 ����	 ����	)�*�,)	���#���	�
����	 ���
	 ����	)�*+�0�"��
�� ���
���8�#��&�
����		�� �
�������#�	!���	���*����
���
�,)��
�����/A��)���2�1���0�"��
�� ������	�!�	 �
�	����,�����
�	��	 �����
+�! ���	���8�������������	��	 �����
���� ������������#��&�
���
�������
!�������� �� �*����� ��	�,� ��
��� #�����)�	�
����
���!�	 ���,,���!���� 	�� 	 ��
,�)�
��*���
�
����������

�
� ��.�����<��	�	 �����	 ����	��&��)���#�	 ����� ��	���	�<�#��&��	 �� ���	��#�	 ��
"���������-	����� ����	�����
�,*��
�

• � ����������
����
�#��&������)��#*���������������	��	 ��������

• ��� � �	�	)�� ��	 � ��
� �
	 � ���	)�*� ����
������ ��
� �	� 5������	:�� 0 )�� �
#���	�������	��	 ��������

• 5�8	)����#�&�	������+�!�	 ������
�&��������#� �� �?)���	*�%�����
�#���	+�,���%�
��
����
���

• ��	� �
����#�;����
�&����	�*����*�	����,)	�!�	 ���&�����	���8�&�����

• ��� � #���	� !����� ���"�
���� �� �	����� ������ �#� ������)��� ��
� ���"��*� ��� ,�	 �
D�������.��
������
����"�	�����
����

• C����������������	��	 �����	��&� �������	 ���)������		����

• ��� ���"�����#������������+�	�������
�"���	�	����
�
6�"��	 �����+� �� �)&,��� �#� ��	�)��"�� #��	)���� ���
�� 	 ��  ��	����� � ����	��� �#� 	 ��
������
�

• ���	����� ��� �	��	)���� #��	)���� ��������*� �)�"�"��!���� ��� 	 ��� ����+�!�	 � ��		���
�����&��	��� � ������ � � ���� ���+�  �!�"��+� ��&�� ��	�,��� �8���	������ � � ��
� ����	��� �#� 	 �� ���#������ �#� 6��	��� ��)���  ��� ,����  ��&�
� ,*� 	 ��
�����	�����#� �� ���#� 	������+� ��
� 	 ��!��
�!�� 	��D�������0�		���� �"��,����
�������
�!�	 �)��*&��	 �	���)�G0���	����	�"����

• ��� ���"�����#�	��##���/����	�"��	��	 ����>���#����
1���
����%�
���������
��	 ��
� ����	����#�	 ��.������

Item 13 Appendix 2

84



�

• '�����
�� ���)�
� 	 �� .����� ���� ��� )�#��	)��	�� ,)	� ��������*� &���)��� 	��
���	�������%����� �� �� #��	��	 ����	 ��!��	���
���#�	 �������� �������������
�
	 ��"����� ������?)�����&���	��������

�
��	
	���

�
�	
*�

���
�	
��
&"
	����'

�
� �� ���	 ���&��	� � ����	��� ����� ��� 	 �� ������"�	���� ����� ��� ������*� ����	�
� 	��
$�		���
���:�� �����)�	)���� ���	�� �� ��&�=���	*��#� 	 �� ,)��
����� ��� 	 �� ����� ���� #��&�
,)��
����+�#��&� �)������
�#��&�!��%������		���������!�"��+�	 ��
��������#�#��&����
��� 	 ��"������+� ���	��)����*� #��&� 	 ���
3�����!��
�+�  ��� ��
� 	���� �),�	��	���� � �#	� ���
� ����	������ ������������!����
�&����	�*�����
��	������6����*�����	 ��#��&�,)��
�����
 �"�� ,���� ���"��	�
� 	�� ����
��	���� )��+� ! �� �  ��� ,���� �� ��"�
� !�	 � "��*����

��������#��)�������� -����&��������<��)� �����)
���0�����(�	 ����#��&���#��&���
�
)��� ��� ��� ������� �������	+� *�	� 	 �� ��&���8� ��� ��!� �#�  ��	����� ��
� ��� �	��	)����
��	����	� ��� �	�� �!�� ��� 	�� ���!�"��� ��� 	 ��&�=���	*� �#� ������ 	 �� ��?)���&��	�� #���
����
��	����)���<�����)
�����

�	��������� 	+���	����	�"�����������
�	 ��
�"�������#�������
 �����
�	��������������#�� ����	�����
�
� ���������	�������&�8	)����#������� �)������
��&������,)��
�������
�
�����*����!�
��
"����	*��#� #��&����
��������&��	��
���"�
� #��&�	 �����������)������� #��&�,)��
�������
� ������� �����������)���)����?)���	*�!�	 �������	�"��*�������)�,����������
�
A��&���$��
� #��&�� 	 ��&���� ���
� ��	��$�		���
���� #��&� 	 �����	 �� � -	� ��� ����
�,*�
������ "������ ! �� � ���&�	�� �� �)���� � ����	���� � -	�� �&���	����� ��� 	 �� ���*� 
����	�
������� ��)	�� ��	�� 	 �� "������� #��&� 	 �� ���	 �&����� 	 �	� �	� ��� ����� �),=��	� 	��  �� �
��"�����#�	��##�������	�"��	���	����>�+�! �� ����
���	�� ��	������ ����	����
�
 ��
!��������
	��
"
����
��
!��������



�
,
��
���	��
�
A�)�� ������#��& �)����������	)�	�
�������	 �����	 �����8	��	��#�	 ��.�����/A��)���
231���C#�	 ���+�0 ��������� ���	 ��&��	�����	����)��� �A��&���*�	 ��&����� �)�����
�
#��& �)����#�0 ���������A��&+��	�!�������� ��	�������*�%��!�����5�����A��&���5)� �
�#� 	 �� �)����	� ,)��
���� 
�	��� 	�� 	 �� ��	�� ��	 � ���	)�*� !�	 � ��� ����*� ��	 � ���	)�*�
#�J�
�+���	 �)� �	 ������������%��*�
�	��	��	 ����	 ����	)�*���� ��#�"�(��
�
+�	!�(�	���*�
���� � ��� �� ���&����	� #��	)��� 
�	���� 	�� ������ � � ��  �)���!��� �!��
� ,*� � �&���
0 �������� ��� 	 �� ��	 � ���	)�*+� ,�#���� �)������"�� ������	����� �#� 	 �� '���
� #�&��*�
����
�
� 	 ���� #��������*� 2���*������ �� ��,)��
���� ��� ��	�,��%���
� �����	������	�	�
�
	�!��
��	 �����
;���	����	��
���� �� ������)�
���
�#������	�!��
��	 ����������-	�	 )��
!�)�
�  �"�� #��&�
� ��� �&���	��	� #��	)��� ��� "��!�� ������� 	 �� ������ ������ 	�� 	 ��
������)��� �#� �	�� ���	 ����  ��#�� � ������ ��
� "���	�	���� ��!� ������� "��!�� �#� 	 ��
,)��
���� �)� � 	 �	� �	� ��� ��	����&����	� ��� 	 �� �	���	������� �.��&���
� "��!�� 	 ��)� �
	 ��	����+����	��)����*��#�	 ����	����������� +� �� ��� 	��	�����"�	����		�����
�
�)�� 	�� 	 ���� ���8�&�	*� 	�� 	 �� ���
+�������
�� ��
�0�)�	���)���,�	 � ��	���� �� ������
��������� ��� 	 �� �	���	������� �0�)�	���)���!��� #��&���*� 	 �� #��& �)��� �#�0�)�	�
A��&���-	��#����%�����
���
��?)���
�#���	�#�J�
��
�	���	��	 ����	 ����	)�*���������
�:��
��
� ��
� ���*� ,���%� #�J�
�� ��� ����� �#� ���	��)���� ��� �	��	)���� ?)���	*�� � -	�!��� ,)��	� ���
��3����� 	 �� #��& �)��� 	��4��	���
��A��&�� �� ���)�� ���)���������?)����� �	�� #���	�

����������	�	 ���
��

Item 13 Appendix 2

85



�

���"�	�����������"���#��	)������ ������ ,�)�����,)��
���+�9��&,���:�������"��	�
�#��&�
	 ��&����,�����	�4��	���
��A��&+�! ���	����)&,����#�#)�	 ����������	�
��	�)�	)���+�
����)
���� �� 	 ��� ���� ,���+� #���	� !����� ��
� ���
��� ��>�,�� �)�"�"�� 	�� 	 �� ����� �#�
������
��� � � �� ����	���� ��� ,�	!���� 	 ���� ,)��
����� ��� ��� �&���	��	� �)�"�"��+� ��
�
��"�����&)� ��,�)	�#��&��������)�	)��������	�������	 ��"����������
�
��!����)��+� 	�� 	 �� ���	 � �#� 	 ��.����+� ��� 	 �� #��&��� #��&�  �)��� 	�� 7��	� ��
��
A��&���-	������	)�	�
�,� ��
���	������,,���!������
�����������#�&�	)���"���	�	���+��)� �
	 �	��	������������&����	����	 ���	���	����������&�����	��0�)�	���)��+��	��#�J�
������#�
���	��)����*����
�?)���	*�%�����
���
��?)���
�#���	���-	�
�	���������	�	�����
+���	 �)� �
	 ������	����� �	��	)����#�	 ��#�J�
�����.���������
�
������*���	�
���������*���
�	��
�
0�)�	�A��&+�	��	 �����	��#�	 ��"�������!������
�	��	 �����	
����7�	�	��0�&���*+�! ��

�"�����
��	���	������&���8��#� �)����������&��%�9�)
��,�	 ��:��	*�����&�
��)
���
0����� ����
3
� /A��)���221�� � ������#� 	 ��������	���� ���"�
�
�##��)�	� ��
� �	�!��� ��	���
���"��	�
�	����� �	���� � -���
2�(�� �	�!����8	��
�
�	��	 ��
��������#�$�� ��
� H����+�
,�#���� ,����� �����"��	�
� ��	��  �)���� ��
� #��	�� ��� 	 �� �
����� � � �� ��&���8�
���������	��� 	!�� #��&��� ,����� ��
� �� ��!� � �
� #��&� 0�)�	� A��&+� !�	 � #)�	 ���
,)��
����&�	���������()��
�#��&��	 ��� ��	�����,)��
��������	 ���������� �����������#��&�
,)��
���������� �!�����	 ����2
���	 ��5�����
��������	��,��	 ��,)��
�����#��&����
	 ������
����#�	 ����)�	*��
��	�	 �����	�����8	��&�	*��#�	 ����&���8����
�
� ��,)��
����������#����	��)������������ ��	����	�
)��	��	 �����8),����	���
���&��	���
�)
��,��	 ����	*������ ����&���8�����#�����&,����������#��&���
�
�����*�� �� ���"����
�#�&��%� 	�&,��� #��&���;� &)� � �#� ! �� � ��� ��"���
�!�	 � 
�����	�"�� ���"����� � � ��
���#������ ��� ��&���8+� ��
� ���	����� �)&���)�� 
�##����	� �	*���� �#� � �&��*�� � � ��
!��
�!�� ���� ���
�
� 	 ��)� �)	�� C�����	�+� �)
��� 0�		����� ����� ��&������� #��&�
,)��
��������"��	�
��������&������	*����
�
�)
���0�		�����������	����	 ���	���	�#���	��	�	 ����	������	�������0�)�	�$��
���
�
���� 	 )�� ���&����	� ��� 	 ��� �	���	������ /A��)��� 2�1�� � �)
���0����� ��+� ��� 	 �� �	 ���
 ��
+� ���� 	�*� ��	�,��%���
��	� �� ��!��� ��"��� 	 ��� �	���	� ��"��+�!�	 � ��&��"��!�������
�,��)��
� ,*� "���	�	����� ��)�� 	�� 	 ��+� ��
� 	�� 	 �� ��&���8�	*� �#� 	 �� ,)��
����� ��� ��
���)�+� ���	���� "��!��  �� ��� 	���� ���	���� #��	)���� ��
� 
�	����� 	�%�� �����
��	� �"���
��������"��!���#�	 ����&���8������! �����
�
*��5	��	��,
�������������
�
� �� �������&��	� �#� #��&�,)��
����� ��&��������0�)�	�'���+� ���	����� ��
��������
��
���������
*��"�
��	����	 ����2
���	 ��5�����5)� ���	���
+�	 �*�������	�,��%�,� ��
���
	���� #���	�!������
�!�
��������"�����!�	 �	������ �� ��,)��
������������*�,�����&���
�
	 ��)� �	 ��"���	�	���+���
�#��&����"�	�+�����)
�
����������
�
� �����2���	��
�	����C�
�������)�"�*�/C�1�&���
����	��	!���&����,)��
��������	 ��
��	���#���		���'����/���,�,�*�����	����	��	 ��	!��!������#�	 ��������	�,)��
���1+�!�	 �
	 �� �)����	� �������&��	� ���*� ��	�,��� �
� ,*� 	 �� �
2�� �	 � �
�	���� C�� &���� � � ��
,)��
���� ��� @(� ���
+� ��
� ��	� ���  �� ��� ���)�
� �	� 	 �� =)��	����!�	 � '�>� ���� $��
�

���������C�����	�+��)
���
0�		������������&�������#��&�
,)��
��������"��	�
��������&�����
�	*���

Item 13 Appendix 2

86



�

�)� � 	 �	� �	� ��� ������*� "���,��� ��� 	 ���	���	������ /A��)���2�1�� ������	�����"������� 	��
����
��	����)��+�	 ��,)��
������&�����������	�"��#��	)������	 ��������
�
0 ��������� 5�!�� /A��)��� 2�1� ��&������� �� ��&���8� �#� 
!�������� ��	� ���)�
� ��
��)�	*��
�<�! �� �!�)�
����������*� �"��#��&�
�	 ��#��&*��
�	��0 ������������ ����
,)��
����� #���	����	 �����	 ��#�	 ��*��
����������
*��"�
��	����	 ����2
�	�	 ��&��+�
! ���	� 	 �� ��&������� ,)��
����� !���� ����	�)�	�
� �"��� 	 �� ��&���
��� �#� 	 �� �
	 �
���	)�*�� �� �� �����	���� �#�!��
�!�� ��� �
�������	�"���##��	���� 	 ����&���8+�,)	�
	 �*� �	���� ��	���� 	 ���� #��&*��
� �������&��	� ��
� ���� �#�&)� � � ����	��+� ���������*�
! ���"��!�
�#��&�	 �����
�!�	 �'��������������	 ����,��%
�����
�
� ��#��&���,�����#�9��&,���:�/A��)���2�1������	�,��%�#��&�	 �����
�,� ��
�����,,��
�
!������
�#���	����
�����-	������!��������
��	����)��+�! �� � �����
�	����&�����������#�
��������� �����)�	)���� � ����	��� ��
� ��	����	+� 	 ��)� � 	 �� �����	���� �#� 
�&��	���
#��	)���� �)� ���� ������!��
�!�+����#��� 	��	�� 	 �� ����� /���"���,��� #��&�'����������1�
��
����)�� ����	����	�������	���� ��	��� �� �� 	���
� ���#� ���)���	���
� 	�� 	 �� #���	+���
�
��&������	�����&����	�#��	)����
�
,
������)	�'��*���
�	��
�
0 ��������� 0�		����� ��
� 6��	 ��	�� 0�		����� ��&������ 	������
� #��&� !��%����

!�������+�
�	����	��	 ����	 ���
��
	 ����	)�����/A��)���2�1������	�����#��	)�����)�"�"�+�
����)
���� ���>��	������
������� �!��
�!����0 ���������0�		���������������#���	��#���
	 ����  ��	����� �������	���� !�	 � 	 �� 0������ #�&��*� <� ����!��
� #��%� �������� ��
�
#��&!��%����<�! �� �"��,�����������	�
�!�	 �$�		���
���� ������ 	 ����	 � ���	)�*���
� �� &�
��	� ������ �#� 	 ���� ,)��
����� ���	���	�� !�	 � 	 �	� �#� 	 ��  �� � �	�	)��
#��& �)������� �����)�"�"����������
��	 ��#��& �)������
�#��&,)��
���������&���	��	�
	�����)�
���	��
�����#�����#���	���#�	 �������)�	)���� ��	��*��#�$�		���
�����
�
(���
��	��

�
$	��	��
������
	�-�		�%�,
��	����
��
���4	
��*�������
��
�
��!�
�� ������ "����� #���%��� ��.����� #��&� �	�� =)��	����!�	 ������0�)�	�$��
� 	��
0�)�	�'���� 	�� 	 �����	 +� ��
� ������ '�>� ����$��
�� �� �� "����� ���	����� �)&���)��
	����+� ! �� � ������� "��!�� 	�� 	 �� ,)��
����� ,�*��
� ��
� ����#������ ��� ����+� �)����
� ����	��� 	�� 	 ��� �	��	� � �#� ���
�� � � ��� ��� ��&���&��	�
� ,*� 	��
�	������ �)�#�����
����)
�������������"���
��"�!�*����
���
�,���%���"����	��	 ����"�&��	���
�
���	 ��!��	+���#)�	 ���������
�����������	����#���	��#�	 ��,�!�������������� ���#��&��
��� ����� �����+� !�	 � ������ "��!�� ������� 	�� 	 �� ,�!����� ������ ��
� 	�� '������ �����
,�*��
��
�
�����������0�)�	�$��
+��������!�������"�������&�����*��� ������	 ���)����� ����	���
�#� 	 �� "�������� � � ��� ��� #���%�
� ,*� ��  ��	����� #���	� !���;� ���������*� �������	�
� !�	 �
0 ��������� A��&� ��
� #��&���� �� #���
� ,�)�
��*� �"�
��	� ��� 	 �� ��2
� ��	 �� 5�����
C��������	�	 ������ ��%���)�"�"�����	 ��!������� ��!������!�#��&��	 ��#���	�,�)�
��*�
	����	����),)�,��� �)���+���
����	��)���	��	 �����	��)	��
��	 ��������������������
���
!����� � ��� !�	 � �	 ��� #���	� !����� ��� 	 �� ����+� �	� ���	��,)	��� ����	�*� 	�� 	 ��  ��	�����
� ����	����#�$�		���
���+���
�� �)�
�,��������"�
���
�&���	����
��

����������
��

Item 13 Appendix 2

87



�

�
�
	���������6�,���	����������	
����
�������	�
�
$�		���
������ ����!���,)��	�	��	 �����	 ��#�	 ��"������������
�+����#��&���#��&���
���
��	 �)� �	 ��&�
����
�"����&��	��#�� ��$�	*������!����)�����	 ���� ������	�+��	��
#���	�!����	��A��&���$��
��)�"�"���/A��)���2
1+�����)
�������	��#�	 �������������	������
! �� ���!����������')�����G���+����!�������	 ���� �������*����#���
�	��	 ��!��	���� ��
�� ����#���
��)�"�"���������*����� �!����� ��	�����&���;���&�������������������!�	 ���
,��	��#�	�����	���	�����	 ����,�)�
��*���� �������� ����	����#�	 ��#���
�����&���	��	�
��� ���	� �#� 	 �� ������ ,)##��� �)���)�
���� 	 �� "������+� ��
� �	�� �������	���� !�	 � 	 ��
 ��	����� 
�"����&��	� �#� 	 �� ������ � �� !��� &�&������ ��!� �	��
�� ,���
�� 	 �� 	�����
������	 �����	 ����,�)�
��*��#�	 ��#���
��
�
� �� #���	� !���� ��
� ������ "����� ������ A��&��� $��
� ��
���	�� 	 �� ��	�� �#� 	 �� #��&���
�� ������� ��"����+�!������
��������	�
�	�������
�"���	�	�������� �� �*�"���,���! ���
��	������	 ��"�������#��&�	 �����	 ;���
������&���	��	�	��	 ����	�!�*��#�	 �� ��	�����
"���������� �*����&�	�����)���+��*�"���?)���	*��
�
����������

�
� �� A��&�� � ����	��� ����+� ����	�
� 	�� 	 �� ���	 � �#� 	 �� ������"�	���� ����+� ���
��&�����
��#�,)��
���������	����	��$�		���
���:�������)�	)�������	���-	����� ����	�����
�
,*��
�

• ��&�8��#�����	����)��#��& �)���+����"��	�
�#��&�,)��
�������
�#��&�!��%��:��
��		�����<���&��������,)��
������#�"����
���������
�#��&�

• G�����)����&�	������;����
�&����	�*�#���	����"�	�������
����*�	�������#��

• �!���������	� �
�/ ����
���
���,��
1����#��#��&������&����	����	��#�&��*�
�#�	 �������)�	)����,)��
�����

• ��� �#���	�!���������	���� ��� 	���
��������#�������)�����
����"��*�

• .����� "������ ��
�  �� � ��"���� �#� 	����� ��
� "���	�	���� ����	�� �� �)����
�	&��� ����

�
���)&,����#�#��	)�������	 ������� �!�"��� �"��������	�"���&���	�����	��� ����	����
�

• 0��"������� �#� ��&�� �#� 	 �� #��&� ,)��
����� 	�� ����
��	���� )���  ��� ��
� 	�� ��

��)	�����#� � ����	���� �� �� �����	�����#� �������������#� �����������	��*� �����
�
��
� 
�	����
� !��
�!�+� ��
� 	 �� �����	���� �#� #��	)���� ��	�� 	 �� ���#������ ���
���������*� ��&#)��� �� ��� ������������*��������	�!�	 �	 �����#��� 	������?)�� �
0�		������
�	 ��
��&������
�!��
�!��	��0 ���������5�!���

• � �� �),���� ����&� ������ ���	�� �#� A��&��� $��
� ��� ��&�! �	� �������+� ��
� �	��
� ����	������
�
�,*� �� �	��##���#��!���

• $������&��	�)�G0�!��
�!��	����&��������	���� �"��������	�"�� �&���	����
	 ��  ��	����� � ����	��� �#� 	 �� ����� ��
� �	���	�����;� #��� �8�&���� �	� �?)�� �
0�)�	��

�
�������

�

Item 13 Appendix 2

88



�

$�		���
���� 0�����"�	���� ����� ��&������� 	 ��  ��	����� ����� �#� 	 �� "�������� � ��&��
������ �#� 3�	 � ���	)�*� �),)�,��� 
�"����&��	� ��
� ��	��� ��#���� 
�"����&��	�� ���� ��	�
!�	 ��� �	���)���)�
������ ����	 �� �&&�
��	����)	 +�5���������"�� H)��	���� #��&��	 ��
&������	�!�*�	��	 ������+�! ���	�	 �����#���	�,�*��
����*�
�����&���	��	����	����	 ��
"������:�� ��	�����
�"����&��	���� �����������&���	�
����	�*����	 ��������"�	��������;�
���������	�,��"��!�
�!�	 �)	�	 ���	 ����
�
/
���	�4��5	�&��������
�
��� 	 �� ��)	 � �#� 	 �� ������"�	���� ����+� 	 �� =)��	���� ,�	!���� 	 ����� � �	���	� ��
�
5���������"��<� 	 �� #��&���"���������������
�� (� #��&�� 	 ��&���� 9��	�!�*:� ��� 	�� 	 ��
"����������	������ �������!��� �!�"����),�	��	����*���	���
����	 ���
2��+�! ���,�	 �
	 �� =)��	����,�	!����5���������"����
���� ��	���	���
�	 �����#���	�,�*��
�!����
��!��%�
�� ��	� 	 ��� 	�&�+�5���������"��!���!�
���
���
� �&���"�
+�,)��
�����!����

�&���� �
� 	�� #��&�! �	� ��� ��!� 	 �� ���� ���%+� ! ���	� �������&��	� ,)��
����� !����
����	�)�	�
� ����)
���� 	 �� 4 �	�� ������ ��	��+� F)���� G��	����� �),���� ��)��+�
�)&,������(�3���� ��	���	���
��	�5������	:��A��	�����
�
� �� =)��	���� ��� �#�  ��	����� ��
� 	�!������� �&���	����� ��� 	 ��&���� ��	�!�*� 	�� 	 ��
"������� ��
� #��&��� "������� ��������
��� ���!�"��+� 	 ��,���
�!�
	 ��#�5���������"��
��
� 	 �� ���� ���%� 	�� 	 �� �&&�
��	�� ���	 � �������	�� 	 �� "������� #��&� 	 �� ���� ��
�
���
�� 	 �� �������#� ,�)�
��*���
� ����,���	*��#� 	 �� =)��	����� � -	���!� #��&�� �� ������*�
����������
�&���	�
�,*�	��##��+����%�
��������
� �� !�*������ ����������� ��4 �	��
������ ��� 	 �� ���&����	� ,)��	� #��&;� 
)�� 	�� �	�� �����+� &������� ��
� �	��	����� �������
����	��������	 �)� ��#���&�	�
���� �	��	)������� ��	�����&���	�����	���#+��	�#)��	����������
���
&��%���
�!�*#��
����	�	 ����	�!�*�	��	 ���������-	�����)���)�
�
�,*��������� ��
�
���
����������
��������%�����
�
� ��,)��
�����������4��	��	���	�/A��)�����1������#�&�8�
�?)���	*�,)	���&���&��	�	 ��
"�����)����� ����	�����
��������#�,)��
�������	 ��"������������	 ��!��	�	 �*���&��������
� ��	� 	������� �#� 	!�� �	���*� G��	������ 
!��������� � � ����  �"�� #���	� !�	 � ��
� ,���%�

������������ ���
���
����"�	����+� ��	� �
� ���#�� ��
� #��&���!��
�!�� 	�� 	 �� �	���	�
#���	�����&�� �"��,������	���
�	 ��)� �	 �������	�����#�)�G0�!��
�!�+������?)���	*�
� ���#���	�+�,�����������
������*�
�	����
�
��&����,)	���"��	 ��������&���&��	�	 ��
� ����	�����
� ��	�����
�"����&��	��#�	 ���������� ��&�
���������:��
�"����&��	�
 ��� ,���� 
������
� 	�� ,�� ��� %������� !�	 � 	 �� ����� ��� 	��&�� �#� �	�� &�	������� ��
�
&���������C	 ���	 ����)&,����3�	����4��	��	���	+�	 �����
���	��������	�����,)��
����
����� ��
� �	�� ,)��
����� ���)�*� �� "��)���*� ���&����	� ����	���� �	� 	 �� ��	������ 	�� 	 ��
"�����������&�����*+��)&,������(�3���� ��	���	���
���(���5���������"�����)�*��� �� �*�
"���,��������������	������
�����	����������,)��
�����������')��	����	 ���
2��+�	 �*������#�
��&�� ��� �	��	)���� ?)���	*+� ��
� ��	���� �� �	����� ��������� �	� 	 �� ��	������ 	�� 	 ��
"��������
�
.��
��� �?)���� ���������*� #��&�
� �� ��)�	*��
� �#� �&���+� 
�����*� ���%�
� ��		�������
��	 �)� �	 ���� �"����!�,������&�"�
+�	 ��!�� � �)�����&�������
�	 ������������#�
��	����	� 	�� 	 �� 
�"����&��	� �#� 	 �� "�������� � � �� �?)���� ���"�
��� ������� 	�� ���%�
$��
+� ,)	� ��� �)����	�*� )�
��)��
� ��
� !�)�
� ,���#�	� #��&� �&���"�&��	� 	�� �	��
����,���	*���
��),��������&�������	�����	 +�$�		���
�����),���������������%�$��
�#��&��
���	��#�	 ���
2���
�"����&��	�����	 ��"���������-	�����#���&����� �	��	)����?)���	*���
�
�����!����)��
���&&)��	*�#�����	*��

Item 13 Appendix 2

89



�

�
�	
������3�	
�
�
'�*��
�	 ��=)��	���+�	 ����� ��	���	����	��)���	��	 ����)	 �	��&��	�	 ������/A��)���
��1�� � � �� �������	���� ,�	!���� $�		���
���� ��
� 	 �� ���� ��� ��� ��	������ ���	� �#� 	 ��
"������:��
�"����&��	+����	��&���#�#�� ���+��&)���������
���	���	�)���&���-��	 ���
2��+�
	 �� ���� 
�#�����+� ��� �)	
���� �!�&&���� ����� ��
� 	�������� !���� ����	�)�	�
� <�
���"�
����&�
�������#���	�#�����	�������
�
� �� �)����	� � ����	��� ��
� ����������� �#� 	 �� ���#���	� ����� 
�	��� ���&����*� 	�� 	 ��
�
2���� � �� 	�������� ���� ��� ��	����	���� ���#���	� #��	)��� �#� 	 ��� �����
+� ,)	� ����
�)����	�*�)�
��)��
���
���&�! �	�������	�
������������������ ���)����	����
�	����
�#�	 ��	����	�,���%������
�	���	��#��&�	 ��������
�
� �����#���	�����������
�������	 ����� ��	���	;�! �����	��8	��
��	��	 ����)	 ��#�	 ��
=)��	����!�	 �	 ��5���������"��� � -	� ��� #���%�
�	�� 	 �����	�,*�,)��
������#�"����
�����
��
�  ��� 	�� � � ���� ����)
�� ���� �	���*� � ���� 	�� 	 �� ���	 � ! �� � ���� �#� ��		���
��� �	��	)����&���	+�G��	������ 	 ���� �	���*� �	�)�	)���+� ��
�3�	 � ���	)�*� #��	�� 	�� 	 ��
��)	 �� � � �� G��	������ ,)��
����� ��&������ 	 ���� ��� �	��	)���� ������� 	 �	� &�	� � ���
	 ���� �"������ 
������ /��� � ,����� 	 ���� !��
�!�� ��� !�
	 � !�	 � 	!�� ���	�
� ,�*�
!��
�!�� ������� 	 ���� #)���  ��� 	1� ,)	�  �"�� ,���� �),=��	� 	�� 
�##������ �),��?)��	�
��	���	����� � �����	�� 	 ���� ��	���	����+� 	 �*� ��&���� �#� ��� �	��	)���� ��
�  ��	�����
��	����	�� � �	� 5������	:�� A��	�� !���� ,)��	� ��� 	 �� �
2��� ,)	�  �"�� ,���� �),�	��	����*�
��#)�,�� �
�� �� �*������#���&)� ����������������
�&�������	 ���	 ���	 ���,)��
����+�
��
�����	 )��������*�"���,������	 ���	���	��������
����"��!��#��&�	 ��,��� �����#)�	 ���
��	��3�	 ����	)�*�,���%��#�#��	��������	��)����*����&����	����"��!��#��&�	 ��,��� +�,)	�
����#���		������ �	��	)����&���	���� ���),��������&�	 ��)� �)	�	 �����#���	��������������
��
�	 ��	��������������!�)�
��)��
���� ���������	��	����#����),�	��	������ ����&��	�
���	 ���������
�
������
��4	5	����	���
�
��� 	 �� �&&�
��	�� ���	 � �#� 	 �� ������"�	���� ����+� � �� $�	*���� ��
� ')����� G����
��&������&�
����
�"����&��	����� �*�!����,)��	����	 ����	���#�$�		���
������ ����
��
���	���$�		���
����5�&������0��"�������	���&�����
�
� �� $�	*���� #����!�� �� �),)�,��� �������&��	+� !�	 � 
�	�� �
� ,)��
����� ��	� ���
��
�"�
)��� ���	��� � -	� ��� ��	� ��� %������� !�	 � 	 �� &��� ����*� ��� � ����	��� �#� 	 ��
������"�	���� ������ � ')��	� ��� 3���+� ')����� G����  ��� ,���� �8��)	�
� ��� �� ������� �#�
��� �	��	)���� ������+� ��� "�����)���� &�	������� /���
�&����	�*� #���	1� �)� � 	 �	� �	��
� ����	�������*&��	 �	���	��	 �	��#�	 ��������"�	������������
�
��		����),)�,���
�"����&��	� ������)���
�	��	 ��!��	;�!�	 ��8����������&�	�
�	��	 ��
����� �#� 6�"���� $��
+� ���%� $��
� ��
� 5������ ���"��� � 9� �� 0���:� ��� �� &�
����

�"����&��	����5���������"��! ���������+�&���������
��	*�������)��*&��	 �	���	��
	 �� � ����	��� �#� 	 �� ������ � -	� ��� ���&����	� ��� 	 �� �%*����� ! ��� "��!�
� #��&� 	 ��
������"�	�����������
�	 )�� ���������	�"���&���	����	 ��������
�
��� 	 �� ���	+� �),)�,��� 
�"����&��	� ���	��)��� ��� 	 �	� 	 �� ,�)�
��*� ,�	!����
$�		���
���� ��
� ���� ,�)����� ���	
���� ��� &����
�� � � �� ��&������� ����� �#� �����

���������+

����������������	�"��*

Item 13 Appendix 2

90



�


�!����
����"���,������	 ���%*�������
�����!��$�		���
����	���	����,��"��!�
�������)����
��		����� � � �� ���*���� #���
� ��� �	�*����� $��
B6�!���
�� $��
� ����� ���"�
��� �� ������

��	���	����,�	!����	 �� ��	�����"���������
�	 ���)���)�
����
�"����&��	+����	��)����*�
���"��!��#��&�'������������
�
����	
�
��
�����	�
����
���

�
$�		���
���� ��� ���  ��	����� 
�!����
� ��		��&��	+� ! ���� 
�"����&��	� ��� ���
�����)�	)���� "�������  ��� ,���� ��#�)����
� ,*� �	�� ����	��� ����	���+� �)&���)�� #�&�)��
����
��	�� ��
� �	�� ��	��� ���)����	*� ��� �� 	�)���	� 
��	���	����� � � �� "������� ������ ��
�
�
=����	� �� ��	�	)������
��������
�&�
��"���� )�� �#��&�	 �� ���	��#�	 ������+���
�
���  ��	�������*� �������	�
� !�	 � &��*� #��&��� ��	��	��� ��
� ��	����*� �� �,�	��	��� � � ��
��������	���	��#�	 ����� ��	���	�#��&��	 ������:����&&�������#��)�+�! �� ����"�������
"�,���	� ��&&)��	*�� � ')��
����� ���� �#� "����
� #��&� ��
� 
�	�+� ,)	� 	 �� ����� ��� )��#��
�
	 ��)� � 	 �� )��� �#� 	��
�	������ &�	�������� � A���	� ���"�	����� ��
� ���*� 	���� ���#��
���
�&���	�+�! ���	�	 ����"�&��	������&����*��#���
����*���"�������	������	� �
����*�
	���� ���#�� ��
�� �&��*� �	��%������	�� ��	����	����	 �� �%*����;� 	 �� �!����������#���#�
#��&���#��&�,)��
������������	��)����*����&����	�!�	 ���	 ������
�
6����!����
����
�,)��
�����#���	����
����	�*���	��	 ���	���	�/��&�	�&���!�	 �)	���*�
��"�&��	1����&�	�����������������#�������)��������	 �����	 +�������"����������	����
�)����� ����	��+�,)	����������#�������)��������"��	 ��������	����
�	 ��)� � �� �!�����
��
�
�����"���	�	������A���	�!�����	 ��)� �)	�	 ��������������	��)����*� �&���	��	�	��
�	������������	����	����
�
� ��������"�	������������	�����&)� ������� �����;��#�! �� � 	 �������� ��� 	 ��&��	�
�&���	��	�� � '�)�
�
� ��
� 
�"�
�
� ,*�  �� � #���	� !����+� D������� .��
���� ��� �#� ��
���	���	����� ����	�����
� ���&)� ����%�������!�	 �	 ��&��*����"�	��!����
����
����
���	 ���������A)�	 ���������������	��	 �����	���
�!��	��#�	 ��������"�	�������������
�&���	��	� 	�� �	�� �)���� ��		���+� ��
� ����	�� �� 9������ ,)##��:� ���)�
� 	 �� "������� 	 �	�

��	���)�� ����	�#��&��)���)�
�����),)�,���
�"����&��	��
�
��&�����*+�	 ��!�
������
��������		�����#�	 ��"������������������	��)����*��&���	��	���� ��
"�������  ��� ������  ��	����� �������	����� !�	 � 	 �� ���;� ��	 �)� � 	 �� �8��	���� ���#���	�

�	���&��	�*� 	�� 	 ���
2���� �0�����"��!������ �������	� ,�	!���� 	 ��"������+� 	 �� ����
��
� �)���)�
���� 
�!����
;� ���������*� 	�!��
�� '����������� ��
� 	 ��!��
&����� � � ��
"������� ���� ����� ,�� "��!�
� ��� �	�� �)���� ��
� ����	��� ���	�8	� #��&� �)���)�
����

�!����
���� ����"��)������%��������&��)�
�
�,*�	 ���)�"�"����#����)&,����#� ��	�����
������<�����)
�����������	���
�4 �	�!�*������<�! �� ����"�
����
����	�� *���������%�
	��	 ��
�!������
�
-�� �)&&��*+� $�		���
���� #��&�� ��� �&���	��	� 
�!����
� ��		��&��	� �#� �),�	��	����
 ��	������ ����	����
�
�
!����	
�
������

�
� ��������"�	���������,�)�
��*��)����	�*�������*�
�#�����	 ���8	��	��#�	 ���)�"�"����
 ��	����� "�������� � -	� ��� ��������*� ����,��� ��
� �� ����	�� � � �� #����!���� ,�)�
��*�
�&��
&��	������ �!�"����������
��

Item 13 Appendix 2

91



�

�
��� �� ����������	 �� #���%���#�'�������������&����������
������
�����	&��	��	��	 ��
������#�������	�������	 ��.�������� �*���	�������)&,����#� ��	������)	,)��
�������
�
#���	�!������ �� ����2
�	�	 ��&��� ��
���	��� 	 �	�	 �������������
*� #��&�
�������������
��
� #���	� !����
� ���
���� 	�� 	 �� .����� ������	���� ,*� 	 ��� 	�&��� � � �� ����� ��� �����
���&����	����"��!��	��'�������������
�	 ��!��
&���� #��&�!�	 ���	 ��"���������-	�	 )��
&���	������)��������	 ��������"�	����������
�
'�� �� ��,�)�
��*� 	�� 	 �� ������#� 	 ��$0�0 )�� ��#�C)����
*��#���)�
��� ��?)�����
��"�����+� ��� �	� �)����	�*� �)��� 	 ��)� � 	 �� &�

��� �#� �� ,)��
���� ��
� ��� 	 ���#����
���� ����	����	 �����)�
���� ��"���������	�7��	#���
+��	�*�����$��
+������	��)����	�*�
����)
�
�!�	 ���	 ��������"�	�����������-	�
�	���	��	 ������*�3�	 ����	)�*���
�#��&����
���)��!�	 � ��&�����*� 
�	����
�
!�������� 	�� 	 �� ���	�� � � ����,)��
����� ���� �������	�
�
!�	 � 	 �� 3�	 � ���	)�*� �),)�,��� ���!	 ���� 	 ���)	�%��	���#� 	 �� "������+� ��	 ��� 	 ���
!�	 � 	 �� � ����	��� �#� 	 ��  ��	����� "������+� ��
� 	 ���#���� 
�� ��	�&���	� ����)����� ���
	 �����!����� 	�� ���!�"��+�7��	#���
� ��� �������	�
�!�	 � 	 ��0 )�� ��#�C)����
*��#�
��)�
��� /��� �&���	��	� ,)��
���� ��� 	 �� ������"�	���� ����1� ��
� ����	�
� !�	 ��� �	��
�)�	�����+�!�	 ��� #���	�!�����#������
���,���� ����	���	�� �	�� #���	�,�)�
��*�� �� ��#)���
�8	��	��#� 	 ��� )�� ��)�	������ � �)�
�,�� ����)
�
�	�����"�
���� ��������,�)�
��*� 	��
	 ��������"�	������������
�
0�� � � �� �	���� �#� ���
� ��&�������� ���	� �#� 	 �� ����� ���
���� �#� ������	���� ������ � ��
$�	*���� ��� �)����	�*� ����)
���� ��� 	 �� ������"�	���� ������ � � ��� ����� (� ��	 �)� �
���"��)��*����	��#�	 �����*����#���
�(���!�
�����*�����),)�,������
���� ����	����#����
 ��	�����&���	���-	����	 ���#��������&&��
�
�#�����&�"���#��&�	 ��������
�
��� � � �� �)����	� ,�)�
��*� ���)�
� 6�"���� $��
� ��� ���� ����	� ��� 	 �� ���)�
� ��
�
	 ���#���� ��?)����� �
=)�	&��	�� � ��� ����� �#� �����*� &���	����
�  ��
� �)�#������ <�
#��&����	 ����		����	����	��3�	 ����	)�*�
�"����&��	��(� ����)����	�*� ����)
�
+�! �� �
����	��� �� ���	��)����*� 
��=���	�
� �	���	������� � � �� 0 ������ ���	�)���	� ��� �� &)� (
��	���
� ����*� 3�	 � ���	)�*� ,)��
���� !�	 � �� �)�"�
� #���	����� � � �� ���&����� �#� 	 ��
$�		���
����7���	����	*�0�&���*��	
+�! �� �!�����	�,��� �
� ��� ��
�+�!���� ����	�
�
��� 	 ��� ��	�+� ,)	� ��� ������� �8��	�� � A)�	 ��� &�
���� 
�"����&��	� ��� 	��
�	������
"�����)����&�	������� ��� ��	� 	�� 	 �� ������ �� ��� ����� ����#� ��� �������� ��� �	��	)���� ���
 ��	����� ��	����	���
� ����������
� #��� ��&�"��� #��&�	 ��������"�	���������� �'�*��
�
	 ��+� �)&,���� ��+� 3�� ��
� 33� 6�"���� $��
� ��&������ �� ��	�� �
	 � ���	)�*� 	������� �#�
�����
���,��� ��	������ ����	��+���
�&���	�
������	���������������*����	�
�,)��
�����
�
7�� � .��
��� �?)���� #��&�� ���	� �#� 	 ��  ��	����� "������� �#� $�		���
����� � A��&���*� ��
��)�	*��
� �#� �&���� ���()�(���(
�!�� ��		����+� 	 �� ��		�����  �"�� ������ ,����

�&���� �
���� ���������	�
�!�� ( �)����)�"�"��+���
�	 ���������������&���	��	����	�
�#� 	 �� 
�"����&��	� �#� 	 �� "�������� � � �� �?)���� ����� #��&�� �� )��#)�� 	 ��)� (��)	��
#��&�4��	� �	���	� 	�� ���%� $��
�� � .��
��� �?)���� ��� 	 ���#���� ����&&��
�
� #���
����)�������4��	��	���	+����%�����������
�$�		���
�����),�����������&�����*�#��&����	�
�#� 	 ��  ��	����� "������+� ��
� ���	� �#� 	 �� ��	�!�*� 	�� 	 �� ������ � � �*�  �"�+�  �!�"��+�
,���� �),=��	� 	�� �),�	��	���� ��	���	���� �)� � 	 �	� 	 �*� ���� ��� ������� �#� �)##�����	�
��	����	�	��&���	����	��	����	 ��)� �����)��������	 ���������
A�� � �� #���	�!���� ��������0�)�	�$��
� <� #��&���*� �������	�
�!�	 �0 ��������� #��&�
��
� �"�
��	� ��� 	 �� ��2
� ��	 �� 5��� <� ��� �#� �����
���,���  ��	����� � ����	���� � � ��

�	
������������
�		��
���
���
�����

�	
������������
�		��
���
���
�����

����������� ����	��#)�

���������<

����������

������������	 ��

��������������	 ��)� �����)�����
���	 ��������"�	��������

���������7����

���������� ��,)��
�������
������
�#�4��	��	���	+�

���������+����%�����������
�
$�		���
�����),��������

���������� ������� ��+� �!�"��+�
,�����),=��	�	����	�����	���	����
��
���#����
�"����&��	+�! �� � ���

��)	�
��	�� ��	������ ����	�����
')��
�����!�	 ���	 �������
��"��	 ��������	������&�� ��	�����
� ����	��+���
�&���	�#)�	 ���
���	��	����	 ��)� �����)��������
	 ��������"�	���������������������*�
���	�
�,)��
�����K

���������A

Item 13 Appendix 2

92



�

,�)�
��*��)����	�*��,)	��	 ��!��	�����8	��	��#�	 ��!����� �� ��,�)�
��*�� �)�
�,��
�����#��
�	�����)���	 �	�	 ���!�����������)
�
��
�
C	 ���������� � �� ���*���� #���
� �	� �	�*����� $��
B6�!���
�� $��
+� 5������ ���"��
=)��	���� ��
� 	 �� ���#���	� ����� ���� �#� ���	��)���� �&���	����� 	�� 	 �� ��		���� �#� 	 ��
������"�	���� ������ � � �� ���*���� #���
� 
�#����� �� �	����� �
��� 	�� 	 ��  ��	����� "�������
! ���	� 5������ ���"�� ��
� 	 �� ���#���	� ����� ���� �&���	��	� 	�� 	 �� "������:��  ��	�����

�"����&��	���
��������	�!�*�	��	 ���������� �����)����	�� ����	�����
�����������+�
 �!�"��+� ��� ��	� �#�  ��	����� ��� ��� �	��	)���� ��	����	�� � � �� ���*���� #���
� 
�����*�� ��
&�
����)�,���������	������� ����	��+�! ���	�	 �	��#�5���������"����
�	 �����#���	����
������*�3�	 ����	)�*����� ����	��+�!�	 ���������),��������&���
�
�&���	�
�,*�����������
�)� +�	 ����������
����	�&��	�	 ���)����	����	�����#���
������	���������������"�	����
����+���
�����	 ���#������	�����&&��
�
�#�������)������
�
�
�����
*&�'
+�
������

�
� ���� ����� �� � ��"����#��)�"�"����#� ��	����� #��	)���� ���	 ��������"�	���������� �5��	�
������	���� #����8�&���� ��	���� 	 �������������!��
�!�+� ���#� ��"������� ��
�,�)�
��*�
!����+�! �� �&�%���������#����	����	��,)	����	��	 ��� ����	�����
�������������#�	 ��
������ � � ���� ����  �!�"��� �� #�!� �8�&����� ! ���� �����&��	��� � �����  ���  �
� ��
 ��&#)���&���	����	 ��������"�	����������
�
@�G0�!��
�!�� �"��,�������	����
������#�!�������	���+�����)
����D�������0�		������
�
�?)�� � 0�)�	� ��� � �� .����� ��
� '���%��
�� ��
� �	� -"��� ��� �	�*����� $��
�� � � ���
���
���	 �� ��	�������	����	*���
�������������#�	 ��,)��
�������
�	 ��������
�
0��*� 	���� ���#�� ��
� � �&��*�� ����	�� �� � ����	��#)�� �%*������ �� �� �!������� ���#���#�
��&���#� 	 �� �����)�	)���� ,)��
����� �������	��)����*� � ����	����	����#� 	 �� ������ �������
#��	)���� �����	�
� ��	�� �)� � ���#������+� �)� � ��� ���#��� 	�+� ������ ������+� "��	�� ��
�
#�)��+� �"������8	��&��*� ��&#)�� �&���	����	 ����� ����	�����
��������������� ��� ���
�"�
��	� ��� 	 �� ���#��� 	�� �����	�
� ��	���?)�� �0�		���+�� ��.����+� 	 ��,�����*����
6��	���0�		���+�� ��.�������
�	 �������*�
�	����
�
��&���!��
�!�����0 ���������
5�!��� � -	� ��� �&���	��	� 	�� ������"�� ��
� �� ����� �8��	���� ������ ���#��! �� � #��&� ��
� ����	����	������	��#�	 ���%*��������
�
A���	�!������#�"����
� ��� 	������������	�	 ��)� �)	�	 ��������"�	��������+�����	������
�������������#�������)���	 �	�����&���	��	�	��	 ������:��� ����	������ ��
�&���	�����#�
,�)�
��*�!������,�"�������	���� ��� 	� ������	�����
� ��� 	 ������;� �!�"��� ��!�!�����
�����)����	�*�,��
�&���� �
�!�	 �)	�������	���� ��������#�	 ����!�����!�)�
����
��
	 ��,)��
�����������
�	 ���#���� �"���� ��&#)���&���	����	 ��� ����	����#�	 ��������
�
��	 �)� ��	��������	�"��*�#�!�����)&,��+�	 ���������&��	���� ������� �!�	 �	�	 �������
��	 ���	�	��	 �������#��&���	���	�����	 �	��������&�		�
�!�	 �)	�������������&�����������
����)� +������	������/�1������	����)�
��� 	 ����!����
�0�)�	�*���������� /.�������
���&�		�
� ��"����&��	1� C�
��� �

�� ��� ����&&��
�
�� � � ��� !�)�
� ��&�"��
���&�		�
�
�"����&��	���� 	��#���	 ������+������
���	����	�������	�����"��� �!���
�
! ���� �)� � ��	���	����� ���)�� ��
� 	�� &���&���� 	 �� �&���	� 	 ��� !����  �"�� ��� 	 ��
� ����	��� ��
� ����������� �#� 	 �� ������ � � ��� !����  ���� 	�� ���"��	� 	 �� ���
)���

����
�	�����#�	 ������������	����	��#�	 ������������! �������



����������

Item 13 Appendix 2

93



�

,�����
	��
,
����	��

�
���	����� #��	)���� ���� �&���	��	� 	�� 	 �� � ����	��� �#� 	 �� ������ �4 ���� 	 ����  �"��
,�������	+�	 ���������	�	�&��	�� �)�
�,������)����
��
�
A���	�!�����&�%�� ��&�=��� ���	��,)	���� 	�� 	 �� �������� � ����	����#� 	 �� ������"�	����
����� ��
� &���	� �� ������&&�� �#� &���	������+� ������� ��
� �����	�	�&��	+� ���
�����
����� !�	 � ,��	� 9	��
�	�����:� ����	����� � � ���� !����� 	 �	� ���	��,)	�� 	�� 	 ��
�	���	������� �)�
�,�������
���
�#������������	�����
�
78��	����	������"������	��,)	�������	�"��*�	��	 ��� ����	����#�	 ���������� ���� �)�
�
,��&���	����
���
�! ���������	)��	���������+����������	��*��� ����
�� �G��!�� #��&�
	 �������<����������*�	 ��������<�	�������
�!����
+�'�������������
�	 ��!��
&����<�
� �)�
� �!�"�����	�,���,��)��
��
�
� �����������������)�
�	 ��"�������	 �	�#��&����	��#�	 ��9������,)##��:������&���	��	�
��� 
��	���)�� ���� 	 �� "������� #��&� 	 �� �)���)�
���� �),)�,��� 
�"����&��	� ��
�
 �� ��� 	���� �	�� ���������*� �)���� ��		����� � � ���� ������ � �)�
� ��&���� ���
�&����	�*�
�������
����������
�
���������"�	�����
����!�	 �#���	�!�������
�&�	)���"���	�	��������� ����	����	����#�� ��
.����� ��
� � �� A��&�� �����+� ��
� ���&�	�� �� ������)�+� ����)
�
� ��
� ���	����
� ����	���� � .��
���� � �)�
� ��&���� ���
�&����	�*� ������� � ����)&�	���� � �)�
� ,��
������	�	 ���),
�"�������#����	���
�
G��!��	��	 �������
�!����
��)���)�
����$�		���
����"��������������	��)����*�
�&���	��	����&���	��������	���)������		������G��!���#�'�������������
�$�		���
����
4��
&��������������8	��&��*��&���	��	�	��	 ��"������:���
��	�	*�����"����&��	�� �)�
�
��	��,��)���	 ����"��!������"����&��	����	 ��#�������#�	 ��������"�	���������!����
�&���	����	 ����		�����#�	 ��������"�	��������;�����
�"����&��	�!�	 ���	 ��"����*������
! ����� �)�
�,�������
���
������� 	��#��	���&���	����	 ��������"�	�����������-	�������+�

��������
�&�	�������� �)�
�,�����%�������!�	 �	 ��� ����	����#��	���)���)�
�������
�
� �)�
���	� ��&#)��*�
���)�	�	 ���%*�������� �������:��
�"����&��	����4��	��	���	�
��
�')�����G�������A��&���$��
���&���������
��8�&������#���!�
�"����&��	����
	 ��#�������#�	 ��������"�	��������;�,�	 �,������#��������	�"�������+�)�����	��
�	������
&�	���������
�,�����!���(
�	����
��
�
$�
�,���%���"������������"�&��	����
�%��,��	 ��)� �)	�	 ��������������%�������!�	 �
�	�� ��	������ ����	�����
� ����
��	���)�� �	 �������#��&��	���)���)�
�������� ��������
���"����)�#�������4 ����������	��������������"���	���� �����	 ���)����� ����	����#�
	 ���������� �����)�#������ �)�
�,��&���	����
+�!�	 �������������#)��*�&�	� �
�	��	 ��
���������� ����
�	�������)�#�����<��)� �������"�����
���
�,���%���"����(�� �)�
�,�����
�
! ��������	)��	����������� � � -#� ��&���	��
��
����?)�����������&��	+�	 ����� �)�
�,��
�������
�!�	 ��
	 ����	)�*�
�����������������	��	�������� �	��	 ���),��������&�� �)�
�
,����)� 	�	 ��)� �)	�	 ��������
�
�� ����	�!�*������<�����)
����4��	��	���	���
�	 ��5���������"��H)��	����<�#��&���
���	��)����*��&���	��	����	��#�	 ����		�����#�	 ��������"�	�����������
���	�!�*�	��	 ��
"���������A)	)����&���"�&��	��	��	 ��������� �)�
�,�����	��)����*������	�"��*�
������
�
��
��&���&��	�
����

���������C����	)��	����� �)�
�
,����)� 	�	���&���"��	 ��
������������#�	 �����#���	������
��
�5���������"��H)��	������� ��
���&��*��,=��	�"����#���*�
�&���"�&��	��� �)�
�,��	��
�� �����	 ��������������#�	 ��
����+��&���"��������	�"�	*�
,�	!����	 ��"���������
�	 �����+�
�	����	 ���
������	����,�	!����
	 �����
���
�"���������
���
)���
	 ���)����	�"��)���
�&��������#�
 �� !�*������ ����������
����%�
�
�������A)	)���
�"����&��	�� �)�
�
,�������
���
�������	��#�	 ��
��		�����#�	 ��������"�	��������+�
��
�� �)�
����%�	��������"����
�
�� �����	 ��� ����	����#�	 �������

Item 13 Appendix 2

94



�

�
���"*� 	��##��� ��"����  �"�� ��  ��&#)�� �&���	� ��� 	 ��  ��	����� � ����	��� �#� 	 �� "���������
A)	)���	��##���&�����&��	�� �)�
�,�������	�"��*� ��
��
+���
����������	��*�
������
��
�
6)&,���� ��+� 3�� ��
� 33� 6�"���� $��
� ��&������ �� � ��	� 	������� �#� #���	� ��		�����
����	�)�	�
������
�����-	���������	��)����*����	)���?)�����)��
�����*������ �� ���"����#�
)��#��&�	*�� � �)
��� 0�		����� ��� ����� 0�)�	� $��
� ��&������ #��&� ,)��
�����
���"��	�
����	 ���
2���������)
��,��	 ����	*��+���&�����	���)
���0���������	����	 ��
�	���	� #���	� �	� 	 �� ��	������ 	�� ����� 0�)�	� $��
+� 	 �*� ���� ���&����	� ��� 	 ��
�	���	������� �� ��G��	���������	� ,�8� ��� 	 ��!���� ,���
������ ���	� ��� ����� �� ��	�,���
#��	)������ ����,)��
�������
��	�)�	)����&���	�����)��������	 ����)����:�� ������ ���	��#�
,)��
������#������������ �	��	)������
B��� ��	�������	����	���6)&,����
(��+������
����
4��	� �	���	+� ���%� �������� ��
� $�		���
���� �),���� ����� #��&� ���	� �#� 	 ��  ��	�����
"������� ��
� ��	�!�*� 	�� 	 �� "�������� � ���� ,)��
����� � �)�
� ����� ,�� �����
���
� #���
����)��������	 ����)����:�����������	��
�

���������K
K

���������'�	 ��)
���0�		�����
��
��)&,������+�3����
�33

����������#��&�����&���	��	�
���)���#��	���	������"��)��!�	 ���
�	�����,)��
������������ ������)�

Item 13 Appendix 2

95



�

��
���

��	����

�
'�*	 +����/�
1������������$������"�#
�����������%���������������7��'�*	 ��	
�
�
0�����+�$���/3���1��#
��&���'�
�
��	�������������
������'��� 	�����
���"����,�������
�
7����		+����.��/�
��1�!��'������������������
��$���������������������������
���������������
��.�7����		�
�

:�����)�	+����/3���1��%����������"�#
��$���������������),��� ����
�
���	��+����/�

21�#
��%���������������������%��������������*%���),����	�����
�
H)�*��+����7�� /�
��1� �%����������������
��'���������(� ���������$��������� �2�
��
�	������
� ����!���������
�
$ �
��+� 5�� /3���1� � %����������)� !� �
���� ������ ��� ������ *���������� �
��

� ���� #
��
$���������C�������	�!!!��	&������	�����)%B��
�8�� �L���%M�2���������
�3�	 �C�	�,���
3����
�
���		+� 7�� ��
� ��*��+� ��� /�
��1� %����������� ��� ���� 	�
����� 	���
����"� � N��	,�&&����
7)���������,���*�
�

�
�����	����������

Item 13 Appendix 2

96



���������	�

����������	
���
�����	����������	��������������
��
����������������
�����
���
�
��������������� ���� ��!"#���$%���&�$��������% �"'��
�

�� 
�������������������������������������������������������������������
������

������������������������ ��������!�����"�

#� ��$�������������������������������������������������
���������������������

��������� ��������!�����"�

�� 
�������������������������������������������������$��������������������

��������������
������%����������������������� ��������!������

�� %������������������������&�


�� ����������������������������������������������������������������
��������������$�����������������������������'�$������������
���������������������"����


��� ������������������������������������������������������

������(����������������������� ��������!�����"�


�� 
������������������������������������������������������$������������������������
������������������������
������)����������������������� ��������!������

�
�
����#����#$����'�
�

�� 
�����������������������������������������������������������������������

����������������������������������������������
���������������� ������������� �
�������!�����"�


#� 
���������������������������������$�#��������������*�
���������������� ����
��������� ��������!�����"�

�
�
������������&�("�����%'�
�

�� ��$�#�����������������������������������������������������������������$������

�����$�����������������������������������������������
������+���������	�����
��������� ��������!�����"�

�
�
��'�$��$������&�����'��!���!#�%���#$������)"�������
�

�� 
�����������������������������������������������������,������������������

�-����������&�

�� ���������������"����

��� ��#���������������������������������������������������������
��������
����������������./������������� ��������!�����"�

�

97



98



C

A

D

E

B

Rottingdean

St Aubyns

Rock

Primary School

Playing Field

School

Allotment Gardens

St Margaret's

Dismantled Railway

GORHAM
 CLOSE

Shingle

Miniature Golf Course

Recreation Ground

Hall

Dean Close

1a

Tudor Close

Plough

Kipling Gardens

of Lourdes

Hotel

Pond

Highbury House

Kipling Court

Highcliff Court

The Cape

Grange

Court

Ocean Reach

C
lif

f 
C

o
u
rt

The Grange

C
o
w

n
w

y
 C

o
u
rt

M
a

rin
e

P
A

R
K

 C
R

E
S

C
E

N
T

C
H

A
LL

O
N

E
R

S

Bazehill Manor

Whiteway Centre
Convent

C
H

A
L
L
O

N
E

R
S

 C
L
O

S
E

S
t M

a
rg

a
re

ts

NORTHFIELD RISE

T
H

E
 G

R
E

E
N

B
U

R
N

E
S

 V
A

L
E

N
O

R
T
H

G
A
T
E
 C

L
O

S
E

Grave Yard

ROYLES CLOSE

DEAN COURT ROAD

H
IG

H
 S

T
R

E
E

T

N
E

W
L

A
N

D
S

 R
O

A
D

C of E

PARK ROAD

NEVILL ROAD

C
H

A
IL

E
Y

 A
V

E
N

U
E

WEST STREET

B
AZE

H
IL

L 
R
O
A
D

T
H

E
 R

O
T
Y

N
G

S

G
O

R
H
A
M

 A
V
E
N
U
E

F
A

L
M

E
R

 R
O

A
D

STEYNING ROAD

MARINE DRIVE

ST AUBYN'S MEAD

Allotment Gardens

STEYNING ROAD

T
H

E
 R

O
T

Y
N

G
S

Rock

Allotment Gardens

Playing Field

Playing Field

Grave Yard

Allotment Gardens
P
A

R
K

 C
R

E
S

C
E

N
T

Shingle

T
H

E
 G

R
E

E
N

Playing Field

H
IG

H
 S

T
R

E
E

T

(c) Crown Copyright. All rights reserved. Licence: 100020999, Brighton & Hove City Council. 2011. Cities Revealed(R) copyright by The GeoInformation(R) Group, 2011 and Crown Copyright (c) All rights reserved.

Conservation Area Boundary

Remove 

Extend

Proposed Boundary Revisions

1:4,000Scale: 

�

Appendix 4

99



100



ENVIRONMENT CABINET 
MEMBER MEETING 

Agenda Item 14 
 

Brighton & Hove City Council 
 

 

Subject: Local Development Framework Core Strategy – 
Updated Background Studies 

Date of Meeting: 26 May 2011 

Report of: Strategic Director Place 

Contact Officer: Name:  Liz Hobden  Tel: 29-2504   

 E-mail: liz.hobden@brighton-hove.gov.uk 

Key Decision: No  

Wards Affected: All  

 
FOR GENERAL RELEASE  

 
1. SUMMARY AND POLICY CONTEXT: 

  
1.1 This report seeks approval of two background studies that provide background 

and supporting evidence for the Core Strategy and future Local Development 
Framework documents.   

 
2. RECOMMENDATIONS:  

  
2.1 That the Cabinet Member approves the final reports of the two background 

studies as supporting evidence for the Core Strategy and other Local 
Development Framework documents.    

 
3. RELEVANT BACKGROUND INFORMATION: 
 
3.1 The Core Strategy is the main planning policy document within the Local 

Development Framework that was introduced by the Town and Country Planning 
and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004. Its role is to provide an overall strategic 
vision and policy framework for the city for fifteen years. The Core Strategy is 
required to conform to national policy and be supported by a sound evidence 
base.  The two studies that are the subject of this report form part of this 
evidence base.  Although background studies inform the policy approach they do 
not determine policy.  

 
3.2 There are a number of changes proposed to planning legislation in the 

Decentralisation and Localism Bill published in December 2010.  However the 
need to have a strategic element to a development plan and the requirement for 
a sound evidence base remain unchanged.    

 
3.4 The two studies subject to this report are technical documents produced in order 

to comply with national planning guidance and to help ensure therefore that the 
Core Strategy is considered to be sound.  The Background Studies under 
consideration here are: 

101



§ Update to the Strategic Housing Land Availability Assessment (SHLAA) 
– the purpose of the study is undertake a comprehensive update of the 
assessment of the potential housing capacity of development sites in the city.  
The results can be used help to inform the likely amount of the development 
over the plan period; 

§ Open Spaces Study Update – the purpose of this Study is to provide a 
comprehensive and robust scoring system for assessing the quality of 
Brighton & Hove’s open spaces and the ranking of non local authority open 
spaces.   

 
3.5  See appendix 1 for a more comprehensive outline of the purpose of the studies 

and a summary of the key findings. 
  
4. CONSULTATION: 

  
4.1 A ‘call for sites’ was undertaken as part of the SHLAA consultation.  This involved 

an invitation to landowners, agents and developers in the city to submit potential 
development sites to ensure that all possible housing sites were included in the 
study.  It is required as part of preparation of the SHLAA and lasted for 4-6 
weeks. 

   
4.2  Consultation has not been undertaken as part of the Open Space Study update.  

 
5. FINANCIAL & OTHER IMPLICATIONS: 
 
 Financial Implications: 
 
5.1 Preparation costs comprise Officers’ time, consultants’ fees and were met from 

existing revenue budgets. There are no capital implications.     
 

 Finance Officer Consulted: Derek Mansfield  Date: 03/05/11 
 
 Legal Implications: 
  
5.2 The Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 introduced a new 

development plan system. The new system is generally known as the Local 
Development Framework and this Framework will include documents which have 
the status of Development Plan Documents (DPDs). The Secretary of State for 
examination will consider whether the Core Strategy is “sound”. As pointed out in 
paragraph 3.1 of this Report the Core Strategy must be supported by a sound 
evidence base and this will require studies, such as those that are the subject of 
this Report, to inform the Core Strategy’s policies and to ensure the Core 
Strategy will meet the tests to be applied by the Secretary of State at the 
examination stage. 

 
 Lawyer Consulted: Hilary Woodward  Date: 03/05/11 
 
 Equalities Implications: 
 
5.3 These are technical studies not policy documents therefore an EQIA is not 

considered to be necessary given that an Equalities Impact Assessment will be 
carried out on the Core Strategy which will propose policies based upon the 
evidence within these studies.  The Council has already adopted a Statement of 

102



Community Involvement, which encourages effective social inclusion for all 
groups to influence the policy making agenda.     

 
 Sustainability Implications: 
 
5.4 Sustainability considerations are central to the new planning system.  The Core 

Strategy to be informed by these background studies has been subject to a 
sustainability appraisal and any amendments to it will be re-evaluated.  This, in 
itself, also contributes to the development of policies within the Core Strategy. 

 
 Crime & Disorder Implications:  
 
5.5 In the Open Space Study Update the safety of open spaces was one a number of 

the criteria upon which the assessment of the quality of non local authority open 
spaces was assessed.  

 
 Risk and Opportunity Management Implications:  
 
5.6 The primary risks are that the Core Strategy be found unsound and these studies 

minimise those risks.  Opportunities for development, especially those for 
housing, address corporate priorities and city opportunities (risks are evaluated  
in paragraph 6.1). 

 
 Corporate / Citywide Implications: 
 
5.7 The background studies will assist delivery of a number of council and city-wide 

strategies.  They will also form a material consideration in current and future 
planning proposals. 

 
6. EVALUATION OF ANY ALTERNATIVE OPTION(S):  

  
6.1 None required as the studies are concerned with the identification of matters of 

fact. The Studies are required by Government planning guidance requiring plans 
to be supported by a sound evidence base. Indeed if the final background studies 
are not approved the interim versions will remain in the public domain.  The latest 
information may not therefore be taken into consideration in planning matters.  
Without formal approval of the background studies the evidence base to the Core 
Strategy may be considered unsound.  

 
7. REASONS FOR REPORT RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
7.1 To gain formal approval of the two background studies that form part of the 

evidence base for the Core Strategy and other Development Plan Documents 
and council strategies.  It also allows the final documents to go into the public 
domain to inform planning decisions.    

 

103



SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION 
 
Appendices 
 
1.  Summary of Background Studies 
 
Documents In Members’ Rooms 
 
1. Strategic Housing Land Availability Assessment, March 2011 
 
2. Open Space Study Update, March 2011 
 
Background Documents 
 
1.  Proposed Submission Version of the Core Strategy (approved at Council in 

December 2009) 

104



Item 14 Appendix 1 

 

Summary of Background Studies 
 
1. Update to the Strategic Housing Land Availability Assessment  
 
Consultants GVA Grimley were instructed by the Council in September 2010 to 
undertake an update of the Strategic Housing Land Availability Assessment 
(SHLAA). The purpose of the SHLAA is to identify and assess potential sites for 
housing development. This process helps to inform the aggregate housing capacity 
of the City and to indicate when an appropriate supply of housing land/sites are 
likely to be developed over a 5, 10 and 15 year timeframe. The information will 
inform the process of determining local housing targets for the provision of new 
housing in the city.  
 
A total of 275 sites were fully assessed for their suitability, availability and 
achievability. Sites were assessed against the following criteria:  
 

• Policy Alignment; 

• Physical Constraints; 

• Market Attractiveness; 

• Ownership; 

• Current Use; 

• Accessibility and  

• Sustainability.  
 
The study identifies a total potential capacity for up to 7,425 dwellings over a fifteen 
period 2010 – 2025. This equates to an annual average of 495 dwellings per 
annum although the study indicates that delivery is likely to be far lower in the first 
five year period reflecting the ongoing impacts of economic recession. The study 
also anticipates that overall supply will be further boosted by development on small 
‘windfall’ sites.  
 
In terms of the outstanding South East Plan targets for housing in the city (which 
stands at 8,935 dwellings for the remaining plan period)  the identified SHLAA 
capacity falls approximately 1500 dwellings short despite a comprehensive review 
of sites and further ‘call for sites’ exercise with local developers and landowners. 
 
The final report notes that the housing potential identified in the study is a 
‘snapshot’ position based on current assumptions regarding deliverability and the 
methodology set out in the report. The assessment should be viewed as a starting 
point only in identifying a rolling five year supply of suitable housing sites and part 
of the process to help derive a locally driven housing target should the council wish 
to do so. 
 
 
2.  Open Space Study Update 
 
Consultants JPC Strategic Planning & Leisure Ltd were instructed by the Council in 
September 2010 to undertake an open space study to progress the findings of the 
2008 Open Space, Sport and Recreation Study.   The need for this update study 
has been prompted by : 
 

105



• recent appeal decisions that related to open space where a citywide blanket 
approach to resisting the loss of open space, in accordance with the adopted 
Local Plan policy QD20, was not well received by the Planning Inspectorate; 
and,  

• advice from the Planning Inspector at the exploratory meeting into the Core 
Strategy on 20 May who indicated further evidence was required to support 
the council’s approach to land supply for new housing.    

 
The purpose of this study is to provide further analysis of the Open Space, Sport 
and Recreation Study in the light of emerging practice and to develop a scoring 
system to assess the offer of all the city’s open space and then to apply the scoring 
system to non Brighton & Hove City Council open spaces. 
 
The study endorses the local open space standards as recommended in the 2008 
Open Space, Sport and Recreation Study after considering their practicality and 
appropriateness, in terms of quantity, quality and accessibility/distance thresholds.   
It provides open space data at ward and sub area levels.   The findings of the 
scoring system applied to non Brighton & Hove City Council open space were fed 
into the update of the Strategic Housing Land Availability Assessment.  This was to 
ensure that should the loss of open space be required that this happens within a 
planned strategic approach which reflects the city’s open offer rather than on an ad 
hoc basis. 
 
 

106



ENVIRONMENT CABINET 
MEMBER MEETING 

Agenda Item 15 
 

Brighton & Hove City Council 

 

Subject: Cedars Gardens Highway Improvement Scheme 

Date of Meeting: 26 May 2011 

Report of: Strategic Director, Place  

Contact Officer: Name:  Robin Reed Tel: 29-3856      

 E-mail: robin.reed@brighton-hove.gov.uk 

Key Decision: No  

Wards Affected:  Withdean 

 
FOR GENERAL RELEASE 
 
1. SUMMARY AND POLICY CONTEXT: 

 
1.1  Cedars Lodge was declared surplus by the Cabinet Member for Central Services 

in January 2010 and subsequently sold on the open market. The Cabinet 
Member agreed to retain some of the garden land and ring fence an amount from 
the sale receipt to pay for the cost of highways improvements to Cedars 
Gardens. 

 
1.2  A scheme was developed to provide additional footpaths, improve visibility for 

drivers, provide signage and introduce a one way system for entering and exiting 
Cedars Gardens.  A plan of the proposal is attached as Appendix 1 to this report.   

 
1.3  A Traffic Regulation Order (TRO) was prepared and subsequently advertised on 

Friday 10th December 2010 with a closing date for objections of the 7th January 
2011.  One objection was raised and is discussed in the main body of the report.   

 
2. RECOMMENDATIONS:  

   
2.1  That the Cabinet Member (having taken into account of all the duly made 

representations and objections): 
 

(a) Approves the BRIGHTON & HOVE (CEDARS GARDENS) (ONE WAY 
TRAFFIC) ORDER 20** and the BRIGHTON & HOVE (WAITING & 
LOADING/UNLOADING RESTRICTIONS AND PARKING PLACES) 
CONSOLIDATION ORDER 2008 AMENDMENT ORDER No. * 20** 
(CEDARS GARDENS) 

 
(b) Grants permission for officers to proceed with the highways improvements to 

Cedars Gardens, as laid out in Appendix 1.  
 
3. RELEVANT BACKGROUND INFORMATION/CHRONOLOGY OF KEY 

EVENTS: 
 
3.1  Cedars Lodge and adjacent land was purchased in 1961 by the Brighton 

Corporation under s 214 of the Highways Act 1959 for the purposes of widening 
the London Road.  The property has remained under the control of Highways 

107



since that time, transferring to East Sussex County Council and then back to 
Brighton and Hove City Council in 1997. 

 
3.2  The road widening scheme has not been carried out and in August 2009 the 

property was declared as surplus and subsequently sold.  As part of the sale it 
was agreed to retain some of the garden land and ring fence £20,000 from the 
sale receipt to pay for the cost of highways improvements to Cedars Gardens.   

 
3.3  The Highway Engineering and Projects department subsequently developed a 

scheme to improve road safety and enhance access for pedestrians.  The 
scheme includes the provision of additional footpaths, improved visibility for 
drivers, additional signage and a one way system for entering and exiting Cedars 
Gardens.  A plan of the proposal is attached as Appendix 1 to this report.   

 
3.4  A Traffic Regulation Order (TRO) was prepared and subsequently advertised on 

Friday 10th December 2010 with a closing date for objections of the 7th January 
2011.  The additional time was allowed in recognition of the consultation falling 
over the Christmas and New Year period.  

 
3.5  One objection to the BRIGHTON & HOVE (CEDARS GARDENS) (ONE WAY 

TRAFFIC) ORDER 20** was received during the consultation period.  The 
objection was made by cycling campaign group Bricycles on safety grounds as 
they believe it will make passing the two junctions more hazardous for cyclists.  
Bricycles feel that motorists who are currently turning from the A23 into Cedar 
Gardens are more aware of northbound cyclists using the cylce lane on the A23 
as they know they are going to meet oncoming traffic.  Under the proposed 
arrangement it will be one-way and there will be no oncoming traffic. They also 
believe that motorists exiting Cedar Gardens, especially those waiting to turn 
right, are going to wait with their vehicles blocking the cycle lane, therefore 
creating a hazard for cyclists. 

 
3.6  Officers feel these concerns are unfounded as there is clear intervisibility 

between motorists and cyclists in this area and no evidence to suggest these 
proposals will make motorists less aware of cyclists.  The situation regarding 
vehicles waiting to turn right on the cycle lane will actually be improved as a 
result of this scheme as vehicles will only be exiting from one road as opposed to 
two as is the current situation. The number of locations where vehicles could 
possibly block the cycle lane is therefore reduced.  

 
3.7  Furthermore, officers consider there is no alternative to the proposed one way 

system as the road width in Cedars Gardens will be reduced through the 
introduction of the new footway meaning that there will be insufficient width for 
two vehicles or a vehicle and cyclist to pass safely.  Leaving the carriageway as 
two-way or exempting cycles from the one way order would create potential for 
direct conflict between these users and therefore would create a road safety 
hazard.  

 
4. CONSULTATION 

  
4.1 The Traffic Regulation Order was advertised between 10th December 2010 and 

7th January 2011. 
 

108



4.2  The Ward Councillors for the areas were consulted and requested alterations to 
the public footpath to improve safety.  Statutory consultees, such as the 
Emergency Services, were also consulted.   

 
4.3  Notices were also put on street for the entire consultation period, these 

comprised of a legal notice and a plan showing the proposal as well as the 
scheme justification statement and the reasons for it. The notice was also 
published in The Argus newspaper. Detailed plans and the order were available 
to view at Hove Library, Jubilee Library and at the City Direct Offices at 
Bartholomew House and Hove Town Hall. 

 
5. FINANCIAL & OTHER IMPLICATIONS: 
 
 Financial Implications: 
 
5.1 The costs of the consultation were met from the capital budget available for 

Cedars Gardens. There is a further capital budget of £18,000 available to fund 
the costs of implementing the highways’ improvements. 

 
 Finance Officer Consulted:   Karen Brookshaw   Date: 21/04/11 
 
 Legal Implications: 
 
5.2 Broadly, the Council’s powers and duties under the Road Traffic Regulation Act 

1984 must be exercised to secure the expeditious, convenient and safe 
movement of all types of traffic and the provision of suitable and adequate 
parking facilities on and off the highway. Also, as far as is practicable, the 
Council should have regard to any implications in relation to:- access to 
premises; the effect on amenities; the Council’s air quality strategy; facilitating 
the passage of public services vehicles and securing the safety and convenience 
of users; any other matters that appear relevant to the Council. 
 

5.3 Before making Traffic Orders, the Council must consider all duly made, 
unwithdrawn objections. In limited circumstances it must hold public inquiries and 
may do so otherwise.  

 
 Lawyer Consulted:  Carl Hearsum                        Date: 20/04/11 
 
 Equalities Implications: 
 
5.4 There are none. 
 
 Sustainability Implications: 
 
5.5 There are none. 
 
 Crime & Disorder Implications:  
 
5.6 There are none. 
 

109



 Risk and Opportunity Management Implications:  
 
5.7 There are none. 
 
 Corporate / Citywide Implications: 
 
5.8 The highways improvements will provide a safer environment for pedestrians and 

car drivers entering and existing Cedars Gardens. 
 
6. EVALUATION OF ANY ALTERNATIVE OPTION(S):  
 
6.1 No alternative options have been considered.  
 
7. REASONS FOR REPORT RECOMMENDATIONS 

  
7.1 Cedars Lodge was sold by the City Council in 2010 as it was deemed surplus to 

requirements.  A sum of £20,000 was retained from the sale receipt to implement 
minor highway improvements to Cedars Gardens, adjacent to the property.  
Following an objection to the Traffic Regulation Order, this report seeks 
permission to seal the Order and implement the highways improvements.  

 
 
 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION 
 
Appendices: 

 
1.   Plan illustrating proposed Highways improvements. 
 
Documents in Members’ Rooms 
 
None 
 
Background Documents 
 
None 
 

 

110



It
e

m
 1

5
 A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 1

111



112



ENVIRONMENT CABINET 
MEMBER MEETING 

Agenda Item 16 
 

Brighton & Hove City Council 

 

Subject: Supported Bus Services: Area Network Review 
Consultation 

Date of Meeting: 26 May 2011  

Report of: Strategic Director, Place 

Contact  Officer: Name  Paul Crowther Tel: 292479 

 E-mail: paul.crowther@brighton-hove.gov.uk 

Key Decision: No  

Wards Affected: All  

 
FOR GENERAL RELEASE 
 
1. SUMMARY AND POLICY CONTEXT: 

  
1.1 Under the 1985 Transport Act, local authorities are empowered to contract with 

bus operators for the provision of bus services which meet the needs of the 
general public, but which are not provided commercially. 

 
1.2 The current batch of contracts was let following an Area Network Review carried 

out during 2007/8.  These contracts expire in September 2012. 
 
1.3 The purpose of this report is to seek Cabinet Member approval to start the Area 

Network Review process for new contracts to start in September 2012, and to 
undertake a full consultation process with elected members, user groups, and 
community groups. 

 
2. RECOMMENDATIONS:  

  
2.1 That the Cabinet Member authorises a full consultation exercise to inform the 

Area Network Review. 
 
2.2 That a report be brought to a future Cabinet Member Meeting, once the results of 

the Area Network Review consultation have been collated, tenders from 
prospective contractors have been analysed, and recommendations for the future 
Supported Local Bus Network have been formulated. 

 
2.3 That the Cabinet Member approves the enhanced vehicle  emission standards 

specified. 
 
3.       RELEVANT BACKGROUND INFORMATION: 
 
3.1 Using powers under the Transport Act 1985, the city council contracts with bus 

operators, following a competitive tendering exercise, for the provision of bus 
services which are necessary to meet the needs of the community, but which are 
not provided commercially.  The current batch of contracts was let in September 
2008, and expire in September 2012.  

 

113



3.2 These supported bus routes comprise a number of complete routes, the 
extension of some commercial routes to operate during the evening or at 
weekends, and some diversions of commercial routes to serve particular 
communities.  A complete list of the current Supported Bus Network is attached 
as Appendix 1. 

 
3.3 In preparation for the next batch of supported bus network tenders, the city 

council is to undertake an “Area Network Review”.  This will consist of the 
consultation process outlined below, together with a detailed analysis of the 
current commercial network, to identify any missing links.  At the same time a 
review will be undertaken of those requests made by passengers for changes to 
routes, timetables and times of operation. 

 
3.4 The proposed timetable for the Area Network Review is : 
 

Draft network design begins May 2011   
Discussions with Procurement team June 2011 
Meet with bus operators to discuss commercial network June 2011 
Report to CMM seeking approval for retendering process to begin July 2011 
Consultation July 2011  
Analyse Consultation response August 2011 
Advert for Tenderers List August 2011  
Advert in European Journal August 2011 
Begin preparation of Tenders August 2011 
Tenders issued November 2011 
Closing Date for Tenders December 2011 
Analysis of Tenders January 2012 
Committee / Board / Cabinet decision April 2012 
Tender Award decisions to operators April 2012 
Consultation / information document May 2012 
Operators to register services June 2012 
New services commence (Schools) 3 September 2012 
 (Other) 16 September 2012 
 

3.5  The city council’s contract documents specify minimum exhaust emission standards for 
vehicles.  For the current contracts the minimum specified is EURO 3.  For the new 
contracts it is proposed to raise this to EURO 4 (or equivalent), in support of the city 
council’s Air Quality Action Plan. 

 
3.6 Tenders let under this process will be in accordance with the city council’s Standing 

Orders for procurement.  In view of the value of the contracts to be let, this will involve 
the European Union procurement procedures, and the contracts will be advertised 
through the European Journal, as well as locally.  Fuller details of the procurement 
process will be given in the consultation document proposed for circulation in late July 
2011.    The contract will be advertised in Lots (individual or groups of routes and a 
combined City Lot) so as to enable smaller operators the opportunity to bid. 

 
4. CONSULTATION: 

  
4.1 The city council’s Public Transport Team maintains a database of consultees on 

matters relating to public transport.  There are 380 entries on this list, comprising 
resident’s associations, community groups, affinity groups, ward councillors, 

114



MPs, and user groups.  The input from these groups will be sought to inform the 
Area Network Review. 

 
4.2 The city council will consult with neighbouring local authorities, to investigate 

possibilities of joint working on cross-boundary services. 
 
4.3 The city council will liaise with all commercial bus operators serving the city, in 

order to ensure that the supported bus network supplements and enhances the 
commercial network, to provide the best possible journey options for residents 
and visitors. 

 
5. FINANCIAL & OTHER IMPLICATIONS: 
 
 Financial Implications: 
 
5.1 The full cost of the consultation exercise will be met from the existing Public 

Transport revenue budget. 
 
5.2 The extent of the future Supported Bus Network will be dependant upon the 

available budget at the time.  A further report will be brought to Cabinet for 
approval after the completed tenders have been analysed and officer’s 
recommendations made. 

 
 Finance Officer consulted: Karen Brookshaw   Date: 21/04/11  
     
 Legal Implications: 
 
5.3 With regard to the provision of subsidised bus services, the Transport Act 1985 

  imposes a duty on the council: 

(i) to have regard to the transport needs of members of the public who are elderly 
or disabled; and 

(ii) when entering into agreements for the provision service subsidies, to have 
regard to the interests of the public and of persons providing public passenger 
services in the Brighton & Hove area. 

 
 Lawyer consulted:   Oliver Dixon     Date: 08/05/11  
 
 Equalities Implications: 
 
5.4 The city council’s consultation database includes representatives of minority 

communities, to ensure that the needs of these communities are taken into 
account in planning the future supported bus network.  The city council’s 
contracts specify that vehicles must be wheelchair accessible, in support of the 
city council’s Equalities Policies, and the city council’s obligations under the 
Disability Discrimination Act and the Equalities Act 2010. 

 
  Sustainability Implications: 
 

5.5    Sustainability Implications are dealt with in Paragraph 3.5. 
 
 
 

115



Crime & Disorder Implications:  
 

5.6   It is not considered that there are any Crime & Disorder implications associated 
with the proposed consultation exercise. 

 
 Risk and Opportunity Management Implications:  
 
5.7 It is not considered that there are any Risk and Opportunity Management 
 Implications associated with the proposed consultation exercise. 
 
 Corporate / Citywide Implications: 

 
5.8    The consultation exercise will be citywide, and will inform the future corporate 

strategy for the supported bus service network. 
 

6. EVALUATION OF ANY ALTERNATIVE OPTION(S): 
 

6.1 Legislation now permits Tendered Bus Contracts to run for a maximum of eight 
years.  The existing contracts could be extended for this period.  However, it is 
felt that this option would not allow a full evaluation of current travel needs, 
bearing in mind changes to the commercial network. 

 
7. REASONS FOR REPORT RECOMMENDATIONS: 

 
7.1 The recommendations for which consideration and approval are sought  are to 

commence the consultation stage of the Area Network Review. 
 
 
 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION 
 
Appendices:   
 
1. List of current tendered contracts 

 
Documents in Members’ Rooms:  
 
None 
 
Background Documents:   
 
None 

116



Item 16 Appendix 1 

List of Current Tendered Contracts 

 

Public Transport Contracts 
 
Contract Route Route description 

2875 21 Mon - Sat eves. Brighton Station - Marina 

2876 47 Mon - Sat. Brighton Station - East Saltdean 

2877 52 
Mon - Sat. Woodingdean -Brighton Station/ Cardinal Newman 
School 

2878 56 Mon - Sat. Knoll Estate - Patcham 

2879 57 Suns & Public Holidays. Brighton Station - East Saltdean 

2880 37B 
Mon - Sat. Bristol Estate - Kemp Town - City Centre - 
Meadowview 

2881 74 School Days only. Lewes Road - Patcham High School 

2882 75 School Days only. Lewes Road - Patcham High School 

2883 76 School Days only. Saltdean Vale - Longhill School 

2884 76A School Days only. Peacehaven - Longhill School 

2885 81 Mon - Sat eves. Old Steine - Goldstone Valley 

2886 81A Mon - Sat eves. Brighton Station - Meadowview 

2887 81A Suns & Public Holidays. Brighton Station - Meadowview 

2888 81B Suns & Public Holidays. Old Steine - Goldstone Valley 

2891 95 School Days only. Burwash Road - Cardinal Newman School 

2892 95A School Days only. Foredown Drive - Cardinal Newman School 

2893 96 
School Days only. Carden Avenue - Blatchington Mill & Hove 
Park Lower Schools 

2895 91 
School Days only. Coombe Road - Hollingdean - Cardinal 
Newman School 

   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

117



118



ENVIRONMENT CABINET 
MEMBER MEETING 

Agenda Item 17 
  
Brighton & Hove City Council 

 

  

Subject: Pedestrian Crossing Assessment Methodology 

Date of Meeting: 26 May 2011 

Report of: Strategic Director, Place 

Contact Officer: Name:  Robin Reed Tel: 29-3856 

 E-mail: robin.reed@brighton-hove.gov.uk 

Key Decision: No  

Wards Affected: All  

 
FOR GENERAL RELEASE 
 
1. SUMMARY AND POLICY CONTEXT: 
 
1.1 Requests for new pedestrian crossings are received regularly from Members of 

the public and Local Ward Members.  Subject to the availability of funding, 
potential crossing locations are currently assessed based on a number of factors 
including the number of pedestrians crossing the road, the number of vehicles, 
and the number of pedestrian accidents in the immediate vicinity. 

 
1.2 The Environment & Community Safety Overview Scrutiny Committee (ECSOSC), 

as part of its annual work plan, requested officers to provide information on 
pedestrian crossings and how requests from members of the public are 
prioritised.  Following the initial ECSOSC review, officers have developed a more 
robust and up to date prioritisation procedure that takes into account Members 
concerns such as residents fear of crossing busy roads and the public perception 
of dangerous roads.   

 
1.3 At its meeting of 25th January 2011, ECSOSC resolved to welcome the new 

methodology and agreed that it should be put forward for approval at a future 
Cabinet Member Meeting.   

 
1.4 This report provides a summary of the proposed revised assessment 

methodology and includes worked examples of several locations that are 
currently on the pedestrian crossing request list.   

 
2. RECOMMENDATIONS: 
 
2.1 That the Cabinet Member approves the revised pedestrian crossing assessment 

methodology and grants permission for officers to carry out the assessment on 
all sites on the pedestrian crossing request list in the financial year 2011/12.  
Subject to funding, sites identified as a priority would be implemented towards 
the end of financial year 2011/12.   

 
 
 
 

119



3. BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
 
3.1 Potential locations for pedestrian crossings have historically been assessed 

based on the number of pedestrians crossing the road, the number of vehicles 
passing the site, and the number of pedestrian accidents in the immediate 
vicinity.  Whilst this approach is robust, it does not take into effect many of the 
social issues that can result from a lack of safe and accessible crossing facilities.   
For example, crossings can improve the public perception of dangerous roads 
while also addressing community cohesion issues and access for mobility 
impaired people.     

 
3.2 During the ECSOSC review, officers undertook a review of procedures used by 

other authorities in the South East region and it became clear that a point scoring 
system would enable a more wide ranging assessment to take place, taking into 
account the social factors referred to previously.   

 
3.3 Using the new scoring system, each site will be assessed and scored against a 

series of factors as set out in Appendix 1. These factors are intended to reflect 
either the difficulty experienced in crossing the road or the benefits that could be 
derived from improved facilities. The relative priority of assessed sites will be 
based on their overall score and subject to the availability of funding, those sites 
with the highest score will be implemented as soon as possible thereafter.   

 
3.4 The assessment would be carried out once annually, usually in advance of the 

new financial year, and a report detailing the results would be prepared for 
consideration at a Cabinet Member Meeting and the priority list made publicly 
available.  This would provide clarity in the decision making process and would 
allow members of the public to see where a particular request is positioned 
relative to others on the list.   

 
3.5 The full assessment method is included at Appendix 1 and an outline of the 

procedure is provided below.   
 
3.6 When a request for a pedestrian crossing facility is received, an initial 

assessment will be undertaken to determine if the site meets the agreed pre-
qualification criteria, as follows: 

  
§ Pre-qualification criteria: 
§ Where a relevant pedestrian casualty has been recorded within 50 metres of 

the site in the last 3 years that site will be deemed to have met the criteria and 
will go on to be fully assessed.   

§ Where there is no pedestrian casualty record, a sample one hour count of 
pedestrians and vehicles will be undertaken during the busiest time and only 
sites that demonstrate a clear need for a crossing will be put forward for full 
assessment – see Appendix 1 for more information.   

 
3.7 All sites meeting the pre-qualification criteria set out above will be assessed in 

detail and prioritised using the proposed assessment procedure.   
 
3.8 5 sites from the current pedestrian crossing request list have been assessed 

using the proposed new method and the results are included as Appendix 2 in 
the form of worked examples.    

120



4. CONSULTATION 
 
4.1 The proposed assessment methodology has been considered and approved by 

Members of ECSOSC.  
 
4.2 Consultation on individual proposals at specific locations will be undertaken once 

a priority list has been developed.   
 
5. FINANCIAL & OTHER IMPLICATIONS: 
 

Financial Implications: 
 

5.1 Funding for pedestrian crossing schemes is via Local Transport Plan capital 
funding, or contributions from developers via S106 agreements.  There is an 
allocation of £50,000 for this project in 2011/12, to include the cost of undertaking 
surveys.   

 
Finance Officer Consulted:   Karen Brookshaw   Date: 21/04/11    

 
Legal Implications: 
 

5.2 There are no legal implications arising directly from this Report. 
 

Lawyer Consulted:   Carl Hearsum   Date: 20/04/11 
 

Equalities Implications: 
 

5.3 None identified directly in relation to this report 
 

Sustainability Implications: 
 

5.4 Improving the pedestrian environment will increase the number of people 
choosing to walk.  Walking is the most sustainable form of all transport modes as 
it produces zero emissions and also improves public health through increased 
physical activity.   

 
Crime & Disorder Implications:  
 

5.5 None identified directly in relation to this report 
 

Risk and Opportunity Management Implications:  
 
5.6 None identified directly in relation to this report 
 

Corporate / Citywide Implications: 
 

5.7 None identified directly in relation to this report 
 
 
 
 
 

121



 

  

6. EVALUATION OF ANY ALTERNATIVE OPTION(S):  
 
6.1 There are many ways in which the Council could prioritise requests for 

pedestrian crossings.  However, following a review of the various options 
available, the method presented in this report is considered the most fit for 
purpose.    

 
7. REASONS FOR REPORT RECOMMENDATIONS 

  
7.1 The City Council receives many requests for pedestrian crossing facilities each 

year.  The methodology presented in this report will ensure a fair and robust 
assessment is undertaken on each request and will lead to the establishment of 
a priority list for implementation subject to the availability of funding.  

 
 
 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION 
 
Appendices: 
 
1. Assessment and Provision of Pedestrian Crossing Facilities 
 
2. Worked examples for 5 potential crossing locations 
 
Documents In Members’ Rooms 
 
None 
  
Background Documents 
 
None 

 

122



Item 17 Appendix 1 

ASSESSMENT AND PROVISION OF PEDESTRIAN CROSSING FACILITIES 
 
 
PURPOSE OF POLICY 
To ensure that pedestrian crossings are provided on the basis of impartially 
assessed need 
 
POLICY 
 

1. When a request for a pedestrian crossing facility is received, an initial 
assessment will be undertaken to determine if the site meets the agreed pre-
qualification criteria, as follows: 

  
Pre-qualification criteria 

• Where a pedestrian casualty has been recorded that site will be 
deemed to have met the criteria and will go on to be fully assessed.   

• Where there is no pedestrian casualty record, a sample one hour 
count of pedestrians and vehicles will be undertaken during the 
busiest time and only sites with a sample PV2 value of greater than 0.2 
x 108 will be put forward for full assessment. 

 
2. All sites meeting the pre-qualification criteria set out in (1) will be assessed in 

detail and prioritised using an approved assessment procedure that takes into 
account factors such as pedestrian casualties, speed limits, severance, 
access to schools and existing conditions (See Overleaf). 

 
3. The type of facility constructed will be determined by site assessment bearing 

in mind the site characteristics including casualty history, vehicle speeds and 
difficulty of crossing. 

 
 
NOTE ON PV2 
PV2 gives an impartial measure of the need for a pedestrian facility at any site by 
determining the number of vehicles and pedestrians using the area; it is nationally 
accepted and has been tried and tested over many years.  Using a pre-qualification 
criteria ensures that detailed assessment is only undertaken for those sites with a 
proven need and reduces the impact on limited resources. 
 
CROSSING TYPES 
Traffic light controlled crossings can cost up to 5 times the cost of a zebra or a 
central island and, therefore, will only be provided where there is a clear identified 
need. 
 

123



Item 17 Appendix 1 

 
PEDESTRIAN CROSSINGS ASSESSMENT SCORING 

   

Factor Options Score 

1 Improvements for Mobility Impaired 
Score 2 for crossings specifically requested to improve conditions for mobility impaired 

  

2 Safer Routes to School 
Score 3 for sites specifically identified as an issue in a School Travel Plan 

  

3 Access to Public Transport 
Score 2 for sites which will improve access to public transport 

  

4 Reduction of Severance 
Score 2 for sites which reduce severance (e.g. to serve sole local store / shopping area 
or where a residential area is severed by a heavily trafficked A or B class road 

  

5 Pedestrian Casualties 
Score 3 for each pedestrian fatality 
Score 2 for each serious pedestrian casualty 
Score 1 for each slight pedestrian casualty 

  

6 Child Pedestrian Casualties 
Score 3 for each child pedestrian fatality 
Score 2 for each child serious pedestrian casualty 
Score 1 for each child slight pedestrian casualty 

  

7 Road Width 
Score 2 for roads over 9m 
Score 1 for roads between 7 and 9m 

  

8 Speed Limit 
Score 3 for roads subject to National Speed Limit 
Score 2 for roads subject to 50mph limit 
Score 1 for roads subject to 40mph limit 

  

9 Existing Pedestrian Facilities 
Score -3 for sites with an existing bridge or subway 
Score -2 for sites with existing traffic signals with no specific pedestrian facility 
Score -1 for sites with an existing traffic island 

  

10 Footpaths and Cycle Routes 
Score 1 for sites which serve an existing designated cycling or walking route such as 
the National Cycle Network, bridle path or footpath. 

  

11 Street Lighting 
Score 1 for sites with no street lighting 
Score 0.5 for sites with existing but sub-standard street lighting 

  

12 Walkability 
Score 1 for sites that will clearly improve the ‘walkability’ and urban environment, 
thereby resulting in additional pedestrian movements 

 

13 Links to South Downs 
Score 1 for sites that create a new link to the South Downs National Park 

 

14 Average PV squared value (busiest four hours) 
Score equals average PV squared x 10 (e.g. PV2 of 0.25 becomes score of 2.5) 

  

  
Overall Score 
 

  

 

124



Item 17 Appendix 2 

Assessment of Pedestrian Crossing Facilities - Worked Example 
 
Introduction 
 
This document has been prepared to demonstrate the proposed pedestrian 
crossing assessment methodology.  For the purpose of this exercise, five 
current crossing requests have been assessed using the new methodology 
and ranked accordingly.  
 
The five trial locations are: 

 
1. Preston Drove opposite Blakers Park 
2. Carlton Terrace (Boundary Road), north of railway crossing) 
3. Davey Drive  
4. Wilson Avenue 
5. Nevill Road 

 
Stage 1 – Pre Qualification 
 
Pedestrian Accidents 
Following a request for a new pedestrian crossing, initial investigations will be 
carried out to determine if there have been any recorded pedestrian collisions 
within the vicinity of the request area within the last three years.  If a 
pedestrian collision has been recorded then the request will automatically 
proceed to the detailed assessment phase.   
 
In this case, only site 1 (Preston Drove) has a recorded pedestrian collision in 
the last three years and will therefore proceed to Stage 2 of the process; 
detailed assessment.   
 
Sample 1 hour Survey 
Those requested sites where no pedestrian collisions are recorded will be 
subject to a sample 1-hour pedestrian and vehicle count during the busiest 
hour for that particular location.  The result of this 1 hour sample count will be 
expressed in terms of a PV2 figure which gives an impartial measure of the 
need for a pedestrian facility at any site.  The results of the 1 hour survey for 
the 4 remaining sites are shown in table 1 below: 
 
Table 1 – 1 hour sample survey results and corresponding PV2 Values 
 
Number 

Location  

Peak 
hour  
Ped 
count 

Peak 
hour 
Vehicle 
count 

PV2 x 10
8
   

2 Carlton Terrace, north of level crossing 124 1015 1.3 

3 Davey Drive  36 160 0.01 

4 Wilson Avenue/ Henley Road 22 810 0.14 

5 Nevill Road /Opposite Greyhound St 26 1250 0.88 

 
Guidance suggests any locations with a PV2 score equal to or greater than 
0.2 x 108 should be taken forward to the Stage 2 detailed assessment.  

125



Item 17 Appendix 2 

Sample sites 2 and 5 (highlighted) both scored higher than 0.2 x 108 and 
therefore will be taken forward to stage 3 for a full detailed assessment.  
 
Sites 3 and 4 did not score above the threshold, therefore suggesting that 
pedestrian and vehicle numbers are insufficient at these sites to warrant a 
pedestrian crossing at this time.  However, these requests will be retained and 
can be re-assessed at a later date should local circumstances change (i.e. 
new development).   
 
Stage 2 - Detailed Assessment   
 
Sites with a sample PV2 above the threshold of 0.2 x 108, as well as sites 
where at least one pedestrian casualty has occurred in the last 3 years can 
now be assessed in greater detail. The detailed assessment will lead to an 
overall score used to rank the priority of each individual crossing request 
against the others on the list.  
 
The full assessment includes a full 12 hour pedestrian and vehicle count from 
7am – 7pm which is then used to determine the average PV2 of the four 
busiest hours.  In addition to this there are a further 11 factors including 
pedestrian casualties, speed limits, road width and access to public facilities 
etc.  All factors considered can be seen in the full assessment scoring sheet 
at Appendix 1 to the main report.   
 
Once the scores are calculated a final score for a particular site is achieved 
and this can then be used to determine the priority of that site compared to 
the others on the waiting list.   Table 2 below shows the final priority order of 
the 3 trial sites that progressed to the detailed assessment stage.  The trial 
shows that Site 2 - Carlton Terrace is the highest priority for a pedestrian 
crossing facility.  This is consistent with what would be expected as it is 
known that there are high volumes of traffic in this area and also lots of 
pedestrians crossing the road, largely as a result of Portslade Rail Station.    
 
Table 2 - Pedestrian Crossing Priority List 
No. Location Average 

PV counts 
x 10  

Factor 
score 

Overall 
Score  

Priority  

2 Carlton Terrace, north of level 
crossing 

106.26 4  110.26 1 

1 Preston Drove opposite  Blakers 
Park 

22.60 3 67.80 2 

5 Nevill Road /Opposite 
Greyhound St 

10.25 5 51.25 3 

 
 
 
 

126


	Agenda
	2 Minutes of the previous meeting
	5 Petitions
	6 Petitions debated at Council
	Item 6(a)(ii) Petition Report - Save the Drive Cycle Lanes, Hove
	Item 6(b)(i) Council Extract for EnvCMM - Royal Sx
	Item 6(b)(ii)  Petition Report - Royal Sussex County Hospital parking

	12 Shoreham Harbour: Interim Planning Guidance (IPG) Update
	Item 12 Appendix 1a
	Item 12 Appendix 1b

	13 Rottingdean Character Statement
	Item 13 Appendix 1
	Item 13 Appendix 2
	Item 13 Appendix 3
	Item 13 Appendix 4

	14 Local Development Framework Core Strategy - Updated Background Studies
	Item 14 Appendix 1

	15 Cedars Gardens Highway Improvement Scheme
	Item 15 Appendix 1

	16 Supported Bus Services: Area Network Review Consultation
	Item 16 Appendix 1

	17 Pedestrian Crossing Assessment Methodology
	Item 17 Appendix 1
	Item 17 Appendix 2


